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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of F8 Enterprises
(Holdings) Group Limited (the “"Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibilities, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the "GEM
Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

To our Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of F8 Enterprises
(Holdings) Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2020.

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$439.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020, representing an increase of
approximately HK$209.6 million or 91.3% as compared to the year
ended 31 March 2019. The Group's net profit for the year was
approximately HK$4.5 million and approximately HK$0.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, respectively, representing an
increase of approximately HK$3.7 million as compared with the year
ended 31 March 2019. The increase in the net profit and net profit
margin for the year ended 31 March 2020 was mainly due to increase
sale and transportation of diesel oil business and the fair value change
on contingent consideration payables of approximately HK$3.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had eight diesel tank wagons of
various capacity to meet customers’ requirement. In order to increase
the total capacity of our fleet of diesel tank wagons to facilitate the
increasing demand from customers, and further reduce the level of
nitrogen dioxide and particulates to fulfill our social responsibility, the
Group had acquired two new diesel tank wagons and replace two
existing diesel tank wagons.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had a marine oil
barge. Besides, the Group had carried out marketing and promotional
activities and negotiated with potential customers to secure purchase
orders for marine diesel oil.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Looking forward, the Group will strive to improve its operational
efficiency and profitability of its businesses. Notwithstanding the
adverse impact brought by the outbreak of COVID-19, we believe that
market trend of sale of diesel oil and marine diesel oil market in Hong
Kong remains optimistic mainly due to the stable and high level
investment in public infrastructure including the railway network,
development of marine construction projects including the Hong Kong
International Airport’s third runway project together with the recovery
of logistics industry in Hong Kong.

The Board would like to extend its sincere thanks to our shareholders
(the “Shareholders”), business partners and customers for their utmost
support to the Group. We would also like to take this opportunity to
thank all management members and staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year.

FONG Chun Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally carries on the business of sales and
transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong. The
Group also supplies marine diesel oil used for construction vessels and
lubricant oil used for construction machinery and vehicles. Most of the
Group's customers are construction companies which require diesel oil
to operate their construction machinery and vehicles. The Group had a
fleet of eight diesel tank wagons of various capacity and a marine oil
barge as at 31 March 2020. The Group is also engaged in the business
of manufacturing and sale of steel products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “"PRC").

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company and Virtue Ever
Limited entered into an acquisition agreement for the acquisition of
100% equity interest in China Forest Food Limited (“China Forest
Food") which then became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and the financial statements of China Forest Food had consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements of the Group. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, the Company disposed of 90% of the
equity interest in China Forest Food (the “Disposal”). Following
completion of the Disposal, the financial results of China Forest Food
were no longer consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

The Group, together with ¥R #%E B A7 (Xinyu Iron and Steel
Corporation Ltd.*) and ¥R EZEBREEFR AT (Xinyu Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd.*), established a joint venture company in the
PRC which is principally engaged in the business of steel products
processing, motor parts and finished products manufacturing and
machining in the PRC during the year ended 31 March 2020. The
registered capital of the joint venture company is RMB30.0 million,
which is owned as to 55% by the Group.

Sale and transportation of diesel oil and related products
business

The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$328.1 million
from the sale and transportation of diesel oil and related products for
the year ended 31 March 2020, representing approximately 74.7% of
the Group's total revenue and an increase of approximately HK$98.4
million or 42.8% as compared to the year ended 31 March 2019. The
increase was mainly due to increase in demand from customers upon
the commencement of an existing customer’s project in October 2018
and the demand of marine diesel oil from three new customers.

* The English translation of names for identification purpose only. The official names
of these entities are in Chinese.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Sale of steel product business

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$111.2 million from
the sale of steel products for the year ended 31 March 2020,
representing approximately 25.3% of the Group's total revenue.

Meanwhile, the Group has executed strict control on costs and
expenses. The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$4.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The increase in profit was
mainly attributable to the loss of discontinued operation of health food
business of approximately HK$4.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2019 but compensated by fair value change on contingent
consideration payables arising from the disposal of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$3.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company would have been
approximately HK$4.7 million and approximately HK$0.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, respectively, representing an
increase of approximately HK$3.9 million as compared to the year
ended 31 March 2019.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2019, international oil prices fluctuated with a wide range and
dropped. The outbreak of epidemic brings uncertainties of
international oil prices in short-term. Notwithstanding, the government
has introduced massive emergency fiscal plans to support workers and
businesses, there is clearly a long way to go before we can put the
COVID-19 pandemic crisis behind us. We believe we could work
together to meet this historic challenge.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brought adverse impact on
the economic condition in an international and domestic context. The
Directors will continue to observe closely and manage risks associated.

In view of the challenging business environment and keen competition
in the diesel oil sales market in Hong Kong, the Group will deploy
more resources on talent recruitment and strengthen the business
development and marketing strategy on diesel oil guardedly and will
also proactively seek potential business opportunities that will broaden
our sources of income and enhance value to the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately HK$209.6 million or
approximately 91.3% from approximately HK$229.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to approximately HK$439.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Revenue from the sale of diesel oil, marine diesel oil and lubricant oil
accounted for approximately HK$271.6 million, HK$55.7 million and
HK$0.8 million, representing approximately 61.8%, 12.7% and 0.2%,
respectively, of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 March
2020. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue from the sale of
diesel oil, marine diesel oil and lubricant oil accounted for
approximately HK$213.6 million, HK$14.4 million and HK$1.7 million,
representing approximately 93.0%, 6.3% and 0.7%, respectively, of the
Group's total revenue. Sale of diesel oil remained the largest
contributor to the Group's revenue. The increase was mainly due to

more demand from construction customers and logistic customers.

Revenue from sale of steel products business accounted for
approximately HK$111.2 million, representing 25.3% of the Group's
total revenue (2019: Nil).

The increase in the Group's revenue was primarily due to the increase
in the Group's sale of diesel oil and increase in sale of steel products.
Increase in demand of marine diesel oil was attributable to the demand
of three new customers during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Cost of sales

Cost of the sale and transportation of diesel oil and related products
business primarily consists of diesel oil costs, marine diesel oil costs,
lubricant oil costs, direct labour costs and depreciation. The purchase
cost for the diesel oil, marine diesel oil costs and lubricant oil costs
depends on the domestic purchase price offered by the Group's oil
suppliers, with reference to the price indices such as Europe Brent spot
crude price. Cost of the sale of steel product business mainly consists
of raw material costs, direct labour costs and transportation costs. For
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's cost of the sales was
approximately HK$415.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 99.8% from approximately HK$208.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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Management Discussion

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit represented the Group's revenue less cost of sales.
The Group's gross profit slightly increased by approximately HK$2.1
million from approximately HK$21.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2019 to approximately HK$23.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2020. The Group's gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 9.5% for the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately 5.4% for the year ended 31 March 2020. The increase in
gross profit was mainly due to the bulk purchase discount given to a
major customer for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Other gains or losses

The Group's other gains or losses decreased from the gains of
approximately HK$0.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to the
gains of approximately HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2020 mainly due to the realised loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$0.4 million and the
unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$0.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's net profit of approximately
HK$4.5 million and approximately HK$0.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2020 and 2019, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately HK$3.7 million as compared with the year ended 31
March 2019, and the Group’s net profit margin increased from
approximately 0.4% to approximately 1.0% during the same periods.
The increase in the net profit and net profit margin for the year ended
31 March 2020 was mainly due to increase sale and transportation of
diesel oil business and the fair value change on contingent
consideration payables of approximately HK$3.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group finances its operations through cash generated from capital
contribution from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and interest-
bearing bank borrowings. The Group recorded net current assets of
approximately HK$82.0 million as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's current assets amounted to
approximately HK$118.7 million (2019: HK$109.0 million) and the
Group's current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$36.8 million
(2019: HK$26.1 million). Current ratio was approximately 3.2 as at 31
March 2020 (2019: 4.2). Current ratio is calculated based on total
current assets at the end of the year divided by total current liabilities
at the end of the year.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2020, the maximum limit of the banking facilities
available to the Group amounted to approximately HK$65.0 million
(2019: HK$20.0 million) and approximately HK$16.1 million (2019:
HK$4.2 million) of the banking facilities was utilised.

The bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars with
two banking facilities which respectively carried at variable interest rate
of the range from 3.57% to 4.88% and 2.76% to 3.97% per annum for
the year ended 31 March 2020. For the year ended 31 March 2019, all
the bank borrowings were interest-bearing which carried variable
interest rate ranging from 4.88% to 6.13% per annum. As at 31 March
2020, the bank borrowings of the Group were secured by the corporate
guarantee, fixed deposits and life insurance policy of the Group.

Gearing ratio was approximately 23.6% as at 31 March 2020 which was
calculated based on the total debt at the end of the year divided by
total equity at the end of the year (2019: 3.4%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the capital structure of the Group
consisted of equity attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$91.8 million (2019: HK$88.6 million). The share
capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

The Shares were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 12 April 2017
(the “Listing Date"). There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group since then, save as disclosed below.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the distribution of health food transactions settled in
Renminbi and financial assets with Malaysian ringgit. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entities’
functional currency. The Group however did not engage in any
derivatives agreements and did not commit to any financial instrument
to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31
March 2020.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group'’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.
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EEENWR DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 27 June 2019, Eastern Champion Development Limited (“Eastern
Champion”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, #1
RifE S E AR A A Xinyu Iron and Steel Corporation Ltd.*) and #75R
MEEZEREEGR2AF Xinyu Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.*)
entered into the joint venture agreement relating to the formation of
the joint venture company in the PRC (the “JV Company”) for the
purpose of engaging in, among other things, steel products
processing, motor parts and finished products manufacturing and
machining in the PRC. Pursuant to such joint venture agreement, the
JV Company shall have a registered capital of RMB30,000,000 which is
owned as to 55% to Eastern Champion, 35% by Xinyu Iron and Steel
Corporation Ltd. and 10% by Xinyu Investment Holding Group Co.,
Ltd. respectively. For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 27 June 2019.

On 23 March 2020, the Company and Mr. Zhu Yixiang and Mr. Li
Weinian (collectively, the “Vendor”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “SPA"), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell and the Company is conditionally agreed to purchase
51% equity interest in Meijia Shell (Global) Lubricant Technology
Limited at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$16,380,000. The consideration was satisfied by the allotment and
issuance of 78,000,000 Shares under general mandate (the
“Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.21 by the Company
to the Vendor. The acquisition was completed on 21 April 2020. Upon
the completion, 78,000,000 new Shares, representing approximately
8.9% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 21 April 2020 (as
enlarged by the issue of the Consideration Shares), have been duly
allotted and issued as fully paid to the Vendor at the issue price of
HK$0.21 each under the general mandate. Accordingly, immediately
after the completion, there are 878,000,000 Shares in issue. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 23 March 2020, 31 March
2020 and 21 April 2020, respectively for details.

* for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, save as disclosed from above of
this report.

FINANCIAL ASSETS THROUGH PROFIT AND
LOSS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had invested a total amount of
approximately HK$0.8 million in a company listed in Bursa Malaysia
Berhad and HK$4.7 million of key management personnel life insurance
with an insurance company. As at 31 March 2020, this investment was
reflected at fair value, and a net unrealised gain of approximately
HK$0.5 million and a realised loss of approximately HK$0.4 million were
recorded.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, save as disclosed below in the section headed
"Use of Proceeds” in this report, the Group did not have any other
material capital commitments or any material contingent liabilities

(2019: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend a payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's pledged short-term bank deposits in
the amount of HK$12.0 million and life insurance policy in the amount
of HK$4.7 million were pledged as security for the Group's banking
facilities.

BEARE BEARWEREHE®

HE2020F3ANALEFE BRAHRSE EX
PIRETEES  AEBYBEMNERKRE - EX
WiES L ENB AR MBE AT -

ERERTETHMEE

M2020F3A31H  AEBECR AR —HEE
BRATR G ETHARIKRELNSHERE
TRE—ERBRARFRREEEEABEASR
47 EEB L P20203 8318 » 1A
KEERRAFERM - WS AR K FE
HOSHEEETREEREEBN0AEEET -

EXEERIREE

20203 A31H  BARSE T [FBHIEAE
A& *ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁé%ﬁl\ P REE B AT EAD
EREARRESEMERKABE(20194F -
) o

IRE

EETEEREE2020F3A31 B IEFEIR
HEMRZ S, ©

BEERH

R2020F3 A31H  AEBME EME R
THEHRI2OBEETLEEALTAEETH
ASRECER  MEAREBRITRE IR
i o

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR 13



Management Discussion and Analysis
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COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS
FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS

The following is a comparison of the Group’s implementation plans for
its business strategies up to 31 March 2020 as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 29 March 2017 (the “Prospectus”) with the Group'’s
actual implementation progress:

Implementation plan
from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020
2017%4B1H%E2020F3A31H

Business strategy

RRRBETTERERETEE
HYEL B

LR ARRAR HEA2017F3 8298 B K
ZR(BRER [ RKTEIMATEFRERRR]
—fiFTE A EE H £20205F 3 531 B X
RISHEITET S AR B BRI THE AL

Actual implementation
progress up to 31 March 2020
EZE20203A31HK

E S

HYHEAT o B

BIREITEE

Expansion and enhancement e
of our fleet of diesel tank
wagons o

I R E SR AT TS R B

Purchase three new diesel tank
wagons

Replace three existing diesel tank
wagons

Continue to evaluate the
effectiveness and operating
efficiency of new diesel tank
wagons and assess our need for
additional diesel tank wagons in
view of our business development
BB = s miT i E

B =ER AR RITREE

BEET EAERITEENB R R
BITRER - WAT AP e 3%
BYHESEaBNENE S
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Two new diesel tank wagons had
been purchased and two existing
diesel tank wagons had been
replaced. The delivery of the rest of
new diesel tank wagon will be
completed at the end of March
2022.

The effectiveness and operating
efficiency of new diesel tank
wagons has been closely evaluated.
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COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS
FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS (Continued)

Business strategy

Implementation plan

from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020

2017481 8BZE2020563H31H

ERRIRETIHEHEERETEE
A EL B ()

Actual implementation

progress up to 31 March 2020

EZ202063A31HW

ES S HYHEAT R 8 BERETEE
Development and expansion e Commence trial and full operation e The Group had obtained all the

of our marine bunkering
business

TR L ERE LR ER

Upgrading our information
technology and systems

RAEM MRS

of the marine diesel oil barge

o Carry out marketing and promotional e
activities and negotiate with potential
customers to secure purchase orders

for marine diesel oil

. Evaluate the effectiveness

and e

operating efficiency of the marine

diesel oil barge
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licences and permits and commenced
trial operation of the marine diesel oil
barge in April 2018 and commenced
full operation in July 2018.

The Group had carried out marketing
and promotional activities and
negotiated with potential customers
to secure purchase orders for marine
diesel oil.

The effectiveness and operating
efficiency of the marine diesel oil
barge had been evaluated from
time to time.
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Minor upgrade of information
technology systems had been
done. The Group was still in
negotiation with the potential
suppliers on the requirements and
specification of the new office
administrative information
technology systems.

The Group closely monitors and
maintains the performance of the
information technology systems.
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COMPARISON OF IMPLEMENTATION PLANS
FOR BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH ACTUAL

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS (Continued)

Implementation plan

Business strategy

from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020

2017481 8BZE2020563H31H

ES S

HYHEAT R 8

ERRERETEHEERETEE
A EL B ()

Actual implementation
progress up to 31 March 2020
BEZ2020%3A31HH
BRIETEE

Strengthening our manpower  ®

R AFIEAF .

Recruit three drivers and three
logistics assistants to strengthen
our workforce required for our fleet
of diesel tank wagons

Recruit one safety supervisor to
enhance our occupational safety
management

Recruit (i) seafarers including two
coxswains, two technical operators,
four sailors, (ii) one administration
staff, (iii) one operation manager
and (iv) one independent
consultant to cope with our marine
bunkering business

Evaluate the performance of the
newly recruited staff and assess our
need to recruit additional staff in
view of our business development
Provide training to our existing and
newly recruited staff and/or
sponsor our staff to attend training
courses on occupational health and

safety
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One logistics assistant was hired, it
is expected that the rest of staff will
be hired around March 2022.

Safety supervisor was hired through
job reallocation.

The Group contracted with a
service company to operate the
marine bunkering business.

The Group evaluates and assesses
the performance of our manpower
continuously so as to facilitate the
Group's business development.
Training courses and on-the-job
training have been provided to
staff.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the annual report of the Company issued in 2019, the
actual net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the Share Offer (after
deduction of the underwriting commission and Listing related
expenses) were approximately HK$45.1 million, which was less than the
estimated Net Proceeds of approximately HK$50.9 million as set out in
the Prospectus and the allotment results announcement of the
Company dated 11 April 2017.

Set out below is the actual use of the Net Proceeds up to 31 March
2020:

P8 RERZ

AR R BN 2019 F T FHRARE - I
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(RINFRBHME K EMARRERAXIR) 19/545.1
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VAN &1 51) B % 2020 4F 3 A 31 H 8 P 15 58 %
BHERAR

Purchase of diesel tank wagons BB TS 7.8 17.3% 39 39 By31March 2022
(Note 1) (FsE1) R2022%3A31H
Z A
Purchase of marine diesel oil barge B B i FE 48 i BB 14.0 31.0% 85 55  By31 March 2022
(Note 2) (H#E2) M2022%3A31R
Z Al
Further strengthen our manpower E—TMEAT 6.1 13.6% 2.1 40 By 31March 2022
(Note 3) (F35E3) 2022534317
2Bl
Upgrade of our information RAGAHRERES 36 7.9% 0.1 35 By 31 March 2022
technology systems (Note 4) (HizE4) R2022F3A31H
Z A
Working capital necessary for the EEMLBTEER 9.1 20.2% 6.7 24 By 31 March 2022
operation of the new diesel tank B LR E B R202%F3A31H
wagons and marine bunkering ZEE S (BizEs) 280
business (Note 5)
Working capital 2EES 45 10.0% 45 -
Total ~ 45.1 100.0% 258 193
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Note:

1 Two new diesel tank wagons had been purchased and two existing diesel tank
wagons had been replaced up to 31 March 2020.

2 Marine diesel oil barge has been delivered in November 2017 and had commenced
full operation in July 2018.

3 The Group has been actively involved in the recruitment and selection of suitable
candidates through various means including job advertisements in major
newspapers.

4 The Group was still in negotiation with the potential suppliers on the requirements
and specification of the new office administrative information technology systems.

5 The Group contracted with a service company to operate the marine bunkering
business.

6 The expected timeline for utilising the remaining proceeds is based on the best

estimation of the future market condition made by the Group. It will be subject to
change based on current and future development of market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, the Group will apply the net proceeds
received from the Share Offer in the manners consistent with the
proposed applications set out in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The implantation plans for
business strategies and use of Net Proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus were based on the best estimation and assumption of
future market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing
the Prospectus. The Group will continue to implement its business
strategies and apply the Net Proceeds based on the actual
development of the Group's business and industry, as well as market
conditions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 53 employees (22
employees as at 31 March 2019) including the Directors. For the year
ended 31 March 2020, total staff costs amounted to approximately
HK$10.3 million (year ended 31 March 2019: approximately HK$4.7
million). Remuneration (including employees’ benefits) is maintained
within the market level and reviewed on a periodic basis. Employees’
salary and relevant benefits are determined on the basis of
performance, qualification, experience, positions and the Group's
business performance.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 March 2020, the Company and the Vendor entered into the SPA,
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Company has conditionally agreed to purchase 51% equity interest in
the Meijia Shell (Global) Lubricant Technology Limited at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$16,380,000. The consideration was
satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 78,000,000 Consideration
Shares under general mandate at the Issue Price of HK$0.21 by the
Company to the Vendor. The acquisition was completed on 21 April
2020. Upon the completion, 78,000,000 new Shares, representing
approximately 8.9% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 21
April 2020 (as enlarged by the issue of the Consideration Shares), have
been duly allotted and issued as fully paid to the Vendor at the issue
price of HK$0.21 each under the general mandate. Accordingly,
immediately after the completion, there are 878,000,000 Shares in
issue. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 23
March 2020, 31 March 2020 and 21 April 2020, respectively for details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board is committed to establish and ensuring high standards of
corporate governance and adopt sound corporate governance
practices. The Company's corporate governance practices are based
on the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”). The Directors strongly believe that reasonable
and sound corporate governance practices are essential for the growth
of the Group and for safeguarding and enhancing shareholders’
interests.

The Directors consider that throughout the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set
out in the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the board committees of
the Company. Further details of the board committees of the Company
are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the
success of the Group by the direction and supervision of the Group's
business and affairs and the ultimate responsibility for day to day
management of the Group which is delegated to the management. To
this end, monthly financial and operational information are provided to
the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries. For significant matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board, the management must report back to and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board is responsible for, among others, performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code, which include:

(@) to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;
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(c) to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

(e) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Board Composition

Details of the composition of the Directors of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman)

Ms. Lo Pui Yee

Mr. Chan Chi Fai

Mr. Li Hok Yin (resigned on 21 February 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap
Mr. Wang Anyuan

All Directors have appropriate professional qualification or substantive
experience and industry knowledge. The Board as a whole has
achieved an appropriate balance of skills and experience. The
composition of the Board is in accordance with the requirements of
Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three
independent non-executive Directors and one of them has account
professional qualification. More than one-third of the members of the
Board are independent non-executive Directors, which brings a fairly
strong independence element in its composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and independent judgment
on issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of
interests and management process to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 85 to 89 of
this report. Other than that Ms. Lo Pui Yee who is the wife of Mr. Fong
Chun Man, there are no family or other material relationships among
members of the Board.
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The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility
for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The Directors are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group's activities with
a view to developing its business and enhancing shareholders’ value.
The Board has delegated the daily operation and day-to-day
management of the Group as well as the implementation of the
Board's policies and strategies to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has established three committees, including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
"Nomination Committee”), on 23 March 2017 with delegated powers
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affair. Each of the
committees of the Board has been established with written terms of
reference, in which the terms of reference of Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee were amended and restated with effect from 1
January 2019.

The Board will conduct at least four regular meetings a year. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through other means of
electronic communication in accordance with the Company'’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). The Chairman also meets with the
independent non-executive Directors at least once a year without the
presence of other executive Directors. Notices and agendas of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before
convening the Board meeting. For all other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. All other schedules and
the relevant information of each Board and committee meeting are
generally made available to Directors or committee members at least
three days in advance. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the management whenever necessary.
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The attendance of each of the Directors at the Annual General
Meeting, Board Meeting and meetings of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee held during the
year is set out below:

BREENFARTZIRFBFAE EFg
% BERZECeE FMERESEREUR
REZBEERIHLFERBAT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HERE ERETRE

General 'Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting ~ Committee = Committee =~ Committee
] RRAE 'EZ88F 2 ENZE® FHZEEE® REZES
Executive Directors: HITES !
Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman) FEXEE(FE) 1”1 717 - A 171
Ms. Lo Pui Yee SERL 0/1 77 - - -
Mr. Chan Chi Fai BREEBELE 11 717 - - -
Mr. Li Hok Yin® FEBRLO 0/1 5/6 - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFHTES :
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EECEE 11 717 5/5 A 1/1
Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap BBy EAE 1/1 717 5/5 - 1
Mr. Wang Anyuan FRnEE 0/1 717 5/5 7 -
Note: Bt 5E
1. Include a Board meeting where the Chairman met the independent non-executive 1. BREFSER IRNZSRLENTEERE

Directors in the absence of the executive Directors and management.

2. Mr. Li Hok Yin was resigned as an executive Director on 21 February 2020.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
attended all the scheduled Board meetings to report matters arising
from corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
accounting and finance.

Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. At least 14 days’
notice should be given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board
and committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters
considered and decisions reached are duly kept by the Company
Secretary at the meetings and open for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Articles provide that at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years.

The non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. Each of the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company. The appointment letter of each of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors is for a
term of three years, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. The
aforesaid appointment letters are subject to termination provisions
therein and the retirement and re-election provisions in the Articles.
Details of the appointment letters are summarised in the Report of the
Board of Directors on page 70 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations. Records of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by
the Company Secretary of the Company.
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%MsA#Eﬂ:

The record of continuous professional development relating to EZREZE2020E3A31 B ILEEETNE
directors’ duties and regulatory and business development that have ERERRERESEEMBESEZELRED
been received by the Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020  #xifZE R :

are summarised as follows:

Executive Director

Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman)

Ms. Lo Pui Yee

Mr. Chan Chi Fai

Mr. Li Hok Yin (resigned on 21 February 2020)

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap

Mr. Wang Anyuan

Notes:

Types of training

HITES

FEX G (EE)

BiE L

BRAEIB A

AEB 44 (20204 2 A 21 B EHE)

o W W @

BIEHITES

BEECkE A B

BBz A B

TZtaE B
B -

EIER

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefing, seminars, A HEEI  BREETRABNE e €% -

conferences, forums and workshops

i & TES

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant B :  BIEMERBAHNE - 34K - B - MR GEM L3 8]

publications relating to the latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other

RMER  AMEREERERESRAABTY

applicable regulatory requirements and directors’ duties and responsibilities
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap and Mr. Wang Anyuan
were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors with
effect from 23 March 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors are experienced
professionals with expertise in respective areas of accounting, finance,
industry knowledge and expertise. With their professional knowledge
and experience, the independent non-executive Directors serve an
important function of advising the senior management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole; and participate in the Company’s various
committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence. The
Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Fong Chun Man was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director of the Company on 23 March 2017. Mr. Chan Chi
Fai was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company on 23 March 2017.

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is
also responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice and is
responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the implementation of the business strategies, policies
and objectives set out by the Board and is accountable to the Board
for the overall operations of the Group. These functions and
responsibilities are current being shared by the management team.
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BOARD COMMITTEE

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 23 March 2017
in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and with
written terms of reference amended and restated with effect from 1
January 2019 in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The full terms of
reference setting out details of the authority, duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee is available on both the GEM website and the
Company's website.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap and
Mr. Wang Anyuan meanwhile Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control and risk management system, overseeing the balance,
transparency and integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
the application of financial reporting principles, reviewing the
relationship with the external auditor and its independence assessment
and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the
Company's accounting staff, their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditors’
remuneration, the independence of the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (the “"HLB"), and recommended the Board to reappoint
HLB as the Company's auditors for the year ending 31 March 2021,
which is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group'’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held not less than twice a year and the external
auditor may request a meeting if they consider that one is necessary.

Details of the number of Audit Committee meetings held and Directors
attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of Meetings
and Directors’ Attendance” on pages 22 to 23 in this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 23 March 2017 in compliance with
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, which comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Anyuan and
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert together with Mr. Fong Chun Man. Mr. Wang
Anyuan is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group,
review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals, and
ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The full terms of reference setting out details of duties of the
Remuneration Committee is available on both the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by
reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks
into individual Director’s competence, duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group in determining the exact
level of remuneration for each Director.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.

Details of the number of Remuneration Committee meeting held and
Directors attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” on pages 22 to 23 in this report.
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Senior Management’s remuneration = AR E T B
HK$ Number of individuals
BT A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and senior
management members was based on their experience, level of
responsibility and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus
and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the Group
and the individual performance of the Directors and senior
management members.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 23 March 2017 which comprised Mr. Fong Chun Man
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Yuk
Lap and Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert. Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The written terms of reference are
amended and restated with effect from 1 January 2019.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to review the
policy concerning diversity of board members and the structure, size
and composition of the Board on regular basis and disclose such
policy, including any measurable objectives that the Committee has set
for implementing the policy and progress on achieving those
objectives, pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules (including disclosure in
the Company'’s corporate governance report as appropriate); identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The full terms of
reference setting out details of the authority, duties and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee is available on both the GEM website
and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
meeting shall be held at least once a year and additional meetings
should be held if the committee shall so request.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the Policy as well as discussing matters
regarding the retirement and re-election of Directors.

Details of the number of Nomination Committee meeting held and
Directors attendance are set out in the section headed “Number of
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” on pages 22 to 23 in this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for
ensuring that the Group's consolidated financial statements for each
financial year are prepared to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, the financial results and cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has adopted appropriate and
consistent accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable
judgments and estimates. The Directors are responsible for
maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with reasonable
accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity
movement of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The statement of auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor, are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 90 to 96 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the remuneration for the audit
and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to the
Group was as follows:
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Services rendered HK$

R R A TT

Annual audit service for the year HE2020F3 31 HIEFER 700,000
ended 31 March 2020 FREE IR

Non-audit services for the year BE2020F3 A31HIEFER 120,000

ended 31 March 2020 IEFE T AR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies,
practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, etc.

The Directors will review the Group's corporate governance policies
and compliance with the CG Code each financial year and comply with
the “comply or explain” principle in the corporate governance report
which will be included in the annual reports upon the Listing.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirement as set out in the CG Code, which is summarised as
below:

The policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
members’ appointment will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
in Corporate Governance Report every year and supervise the
implementation of the Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revision that may be required, and recommend any such revision
to the Board for consideration and approval.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. The Company has confirmed, having
made specific enquiry of the Directors, that all the Directors have
complied with the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
March 2020 and up to the date of this report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and
encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for
separate issues proposed at the general meetings. All resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
shareholder meeting.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor
communication policy and to update investors on relevant information
on the Group's business in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements.

Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report,
there has been no significant changes in the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Articles are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting will be held on Thursday, 6
August 2020.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Convening of an extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. Shareholders
also have the right to propose a person for election as a Director,
the procedures are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to
the operations and management of the Group to be discussed at
shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be sent to the
company secretary of the Company by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene
an extraordinary general meeting by following the procedures
set out in “Convening of an extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders” above.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the
extent such information is publicly available to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board and communication relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
consumer complaints, to the Chief Executive Officer, in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the enquiries.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and investment public. The Company updates its shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance through its
annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the
Company (http://www.f8.com.hk) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Leung Yin Fai,
as its Company Secretary, Mr. Cheung Lee Kwok, the chief operation
officer of the Group, is the primary extract person when Ms. Leung Yin
Fai can contract.

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the Company Secretary, is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board procedures
and all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating communications among Directors as well
as with management.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company Secretary has
undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018
which sets out the principles and measures on how the Company may
propose a dividend.
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The Board will take into account the following factors when considering
the payment of dividends:

The general financial condition of the Group;

ii The actual and future operations and liquidity positions of the
Group;

iii The future cash requirements and availability;

iv. Any restrictions on payments of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group's lenders;

v The general market conditions; and
vi  Any other factor that the Board deems appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the dividend
policy will be subject to the Board’s determination that the same would
be in the best interests of the Group and the Shareholders of the
Company as a whole. In addition, the declaration and payment of
dividends may be subject to legal restrictions or any applicable laws,
rules and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Group's systems of risk management and
internal control include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. The systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's
objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established.
The division/department head of each core business segment is
accountable for the conduct and performance of such segment within
the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and the Board
together, and reports directly to the Board.
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In the course of conducting the business of the Group, it is exposed to
various types of risks. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
following principal risks of the Group were identified and classified into
strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.

Risk Areas
B B 4B

Principal Risks
FTERE

ERRASEEEKBRY  HABRSERR -
REZE2020F3A31BLEEFE - AEEHBT
TEZRBBR NS @%ﬁ%@ﬁ~%@@
b2 - BIESRER kA RER

Strategic Risks
market competition risk, reputation risk

B Rg R

Operational Risks

HEAR SHNRGTR - T  EMBERGRE

Financial Risks

R MEE SRR R~ F R E B

Compliance Risks

BHABEROGURE - REFRMEREFL MK - TEHFRAR

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers’ taste;

BERR

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

Liquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, inflation risk

CHNERER - A

R

Risk related to occupation safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to

employment; change of GEM Listing Rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

B HBEZ2MEFEARBNRR
B 2 A5 51 3B 2

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the
Group and it has delegated to executive management to carry out the
risk identification and monitoring procedures. The objectives of the risk
management are to enhance the governance and corporate
management processes as well as to safeguard the Group against
unacceptable levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, among others,
(i) an annual risk identification and analysis exercise which involves
assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks and the
development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; and
(i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management

plans and fine tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

Although the Group does not maintain an internal audit function, the
Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and for reviewing its effectiveness.
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The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls and risk
management annually and further enhance the Group's internal control
and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and are of
the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of
the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform internal audit function for the
Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will continue
to review at least annually the need for an internal audit function.

Internal control on connected transaction

As a general control, the Group maintained a list of connected persons
and entities for the monitoring and identification of connected
transaction. The risk management and internal control of the Group
were reviewed by the Board and the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

The Board and the Audit Committee considered that (i) the risk
management and internal control system of the Company was
adequate and efficient; and (ii) the resources allocated, staff
qualifications and experience in respect of the accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions of the Company as well as
training programs and budget were adequate and sufficient.

Independent non-executive Directors’ view on internal
control for connected transactions

The management and independent non-executive Directors will
continue monitor connected transactions of the Company. The
management and independent non-executive Directors consider that
information provided by the Company’s management to assist
independent non-executive Directors in their annual review of
connected transaction are fair and sufficient. The independent non-
executive Directors also made regular enquiries upon whether there is
any continuing connected transaction exceeding the proposed annual
caps to ensure that continuing connected transaction was identified
timely. The independent non-executive Directors have not
encountered any challenges or difficulties in their annual review of
connected transaction of the Company save as disclosed in this report.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the CG Code.

ARRBUEBIEFINBBLEEATTFEH
AEBENAREERRARERBR - E—Fh0
RAKE M A BB R M E R EIE AR (0@
Fa) e

AEEE B AT EABEZBE -  EEC RN
MELBENTE  TRBENANEBEEHR
B MEREMIEE  EREIERAL
TR RREAX BB B R A A R ek DA R AR
EFFR - A EFEHEBFELRA AR
PE B HRE -

BEX 5 KRR IZ
ER—RIEH  ARECFEMEATRER

3= ae

BE UEEREAIBEERS - Bl = 20204 3
A3MBLEFE  AEENRREERAIZE
SlEhEEeREZZESEMN -

EXeNERZEERR/NAAFNEREE
RS R RE RN B (i) AR A
AEF  ARBERMPBREBEMDENE
R BTEENES  ARIEIEERBEES
BRIETESD

BYFHTESHRERZABEFHNE
P73

ERERBUFATESHFEEEARFN
ERS ERERBUFATESFARBA
NEEREREABB B IFNITESHEE
RPETFREERNERNBRF RIS - B
FRTEENEHNEARDABHERFEL
[REVEAIFBRIER S - AR N B 85 #548
FRER D - RAREMREESI - BULIFMTT
EERNETARAMERINFEEHNRARE
BEEAI B -

RE KRR

AEESEERBENELEEAEE M
FEHRNRMABIEN - UREHARTE
BRIBE - BIEREEATRNKS -

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR 37



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HBRERRE

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES
F8 Enterprises (Holdings) Group Limited (“F8 Enterprises”,

"noou

“Company”,
"Group”), was principally engaged in the provision of the business of

we"” and “our”), with its subsidiaries (collectively, the

sale and transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong
Kong.

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates its
commitment to sustainable development.

Our Business

F8 Enterprise was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with the stock code of 8347. The principal operating activity of
the Group is sale and transportation of diesel oil and related products
in Hong Kong, and also supply of marine diesel oil for construction
vessels and lubricant oil for construction machinery and vehicles. With
the competitive advantage of economies of scale, with our experienced
management, our own diesel tank wagons and marine diesel oil barge,
the Group enjoys a competitive edge in the diesel oil industry in Hong
Kong.

Our Vision
To maintain the leading position in the industry in order to provide
high quality products and services in Hong Kong.

Our Mission

To provide the best quality and safe products and services to meet
customers’ demands and create value to the shareholders and
investors.
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Board of Directors EES
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
HITES BYFHITES
Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman) Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
FEXFE(FE) EXECEE
Ms. Lo Pui Yee Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap
St BB~ oA
Mr. Chan Chi Fai Mr. Wang Anyuan
Bk 0 5 A FTLRTEE
The ESG Governance Structure ESGERHEE

The Group has set up an ESG working taskforce (the “Taskforce”), ANEED A ARSI E THMKKIRE « 1
composed of staff from relevant departments, in which, full-time staff &KkERITIEFER/NMA(EENA]  EHE
has been assigned to collect the data relevant to ESG and compile the 15k Z2HE TIWEBRIRE - g RERHNE
ESG Report. The Taskforce would periodically report to the board of  IEWREIRE - tE RERRE - E5/ATE
directors of the Company (the “Board”), assisting in the assessment HAARREEZL ([EEE])FHE - LT
and identification of risk management of the Group on ESG aspects & R ANEEERE - 2 RE AT EME
and whether its internal control system is appropriate and effective. BEBURERNIPERZGETEE REW
The Taskforce reviews the ESG performance of the Group, including H&E/NABEEETAEENRE  HekE8
environmental, labour practices, and other ESG aspects. The Board £ EHREFERHE - LT ERIUAREMIR
sets the tone at the top for its ESG strategies and is responsible for 3% » f @ R ERFE - EEYHHERE - 1E
ensuring effective risk management and internal controls. The detail of NEARBER G - WEERREREER
the ESG strategy is stated below. NEMEIERIEE N © IRIF - 14 REGEHEIEH
FIEERNT o
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Detail of the ESG Strategy

We established an ESG management system with clarified

management functions and responsibilities at all levels. We carry out

specific work through the Taskforce and help the Board understand

our ESG risks and performance in a timely manner, so as to better

incorporate ESG factors into company planning and daily operations.

40

The Board is responsible for:

assessing and determining the Group's ESG risks

ensuring the establishment of appropriate and effective

ESG risk management and internal control system

developing ESG strategies, action plans and objectives

monitoring the progress and performance of ESG work

reviewing and approving annual ESG reports

The management is responsible for:

reporting ESG-related risks and opportunities to the Board
implementing ESG risk management and internal control
systems

informing the Board of the effectiveness of ESG risk

management and internal control systems

arranging work in accordance with the ESG strategies,
action plans and objectives developed by the Board

reporting to the Board on the progress and performance of
ESG work

reviewing and submitting annual ESG report to the Board
for approval
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J The Taskforce is responsible for:
—  carrying out specific ESG work
—  reporting to the management on the progress of the work
—  collecting information and data

— preparing annual ESG reports and reporting to the
management

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This ESG Report covers the Group's business activities of offices in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), which
represent the Group’s major sources of revenue. The ESG key
performance indicator ("KPI"”) data is gathered and included
subsidiaries under the Group's direct control. The Group will extend
the scope of disclosures when and where applicable. The KPIs are
shown in the ESG Report as well as supplemented by explanatory
notes to establish benchmarks.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 20 of the Rules (the
“"GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
This report complies with the “comply or explain” principle and
represents the disclosure or explanation of the Company'’s sustainable
operation activities for the year ended 31 March 2020 with reference to
the Company's actual situation. Information relating to the corporate
governance practices of the Group has been set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 20 to page 37 of this annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2020.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures
taken by the Group from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (the
"Reporting Period”).
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback regarding our
businesses and ESG aspects. In order to understand and address their
key concerns, we have maintained close communication with our key
stakeholders, including but not limited to the Stock Exchange,
government, suppliers, investors, media & public, customers,
employees, as well as society.

We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in formulating
our businesses and ESG strategies by utilising diversified engagement
methods and communication channels, shown as below.

ERASH

BMERES AAREEEMEBRIRE - 1+
GREBHTHNREER - ATHREERES
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&= o
=
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Stakeholders Expectations and Requirements Means of Communication

A HERER BEAR

The Stock Exchange e Compliance with GEM Listing Rules o Routine meetings, website updates and
announcements

Bt 22 P . H<F GEM ETM#E A
Government o Observance of laws and disciplines and
payment of tax according to laws
U o  ETERRLBRABERN
Suppliers o Fair competition/quality and price
o Stable payment terms
HiEm o  AVHFEERER

o IBTEENH

Shareholders/ o Financial performance
Investors ° Corporate governance
J Market image
BREEH o  RIBEE
o BEER
° MEER
Media & Public o Corporate governance, environmental

protection and human rights
BEHENR o  EETR BERERARE
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o PITER  WUEHLAE

o Compliance checks in cooperation with
government and regulatory authorities

o Periodic filings workshops/seminars
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° Business communication/procurement
contract/e-mail and telephone contact

° Fair competition

o EBEB/RBAN/BTBURERM
E S

. AT

o Information published on websites of
the Company/the Stock Exchange (e.g.
announcements, circulars, quarterly
results reports, interim reports, annual
reports, etc.)

o RARAE/MRABUAMALE(HIIMA
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o Explanation on key issues/press releases
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HE

Stakeholders Expectations and Requirements Means of Communication
s A HERER BEAR
Customers o Product quality o Setting up a variety of communication
J Prohibited/restricted substance channels to understand customers’
management needs by email, phone call and client
J Environmental, safety and health questionnaire
management performance U Audit feedback/self-managed
o Implementation performance of the performance feedback
code of conduct (labour relations/labour
rights/compliance with laws and
regulations)
o Transparency and reliability of
information disclosure
EY e EmmE s RBURBEBRE BBASRH FELE
s FR/REAMEER FHRERTHREPHR
e RIR LREREEEREN o RO /BEXEBREMOE
o TTRERIITER(BERMEKR
R SERRBPIARE)
o  EAREFAEEAEE
Employees J Good salary and benefits o The Company'’s internal website/e-mail/
o Fair promotion and career development employee suggestion box/discussion
o Good and safe working environment between employees and executives/
surveys (irregular)

o Strengthening communications with
employees to provide fair promotion
and establishing training system to
equip employees with adequate working
skills

EE . R AF e Er B S A8 o ARRREEY  EFEHE EEE
o RFMEBEARBEERE M/ EEBRTER HERE(TEH)
e  REHZEWI(FRER e MAREEBTER REATFHEAKER
BEVIEIIGE - FE TABRBNIIER
g o
Society o Environmental issues/compliance with Sponsoring community public welfare
laws activities/community visits/corporate
° Transportation website
J Employment opportunities/community/ Environmental protection
public welfare
o Corporate responsibility
e e  RIRFH ETEE o EPHEAREY MEFHME QR
s Bl o RERE
o MERE HE/KFTEF
s DBXARME
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We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our ESG
performance and create greater value for the wider community on a
continuous basis.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group's respective major operations
have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to assist the
Group in reviewing our operations and identifying relevant ESG issues
and assess the importance of related matters to our businesses and
stakeholders. Based on the assessed significant ESG issues, a data
collection questionnaire was prepared to collect information from
relevant departments and business units of the Group.

The following is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues
included in this ESG Report:

Material ESG aspects of the Group
° Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions

° Energy Consumption

o Paperless Office

° Recruitment, Remuneration, Promotion and Dismissal
o Customer Privacy Protection
° Customer Services

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies and
internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the
disclosed contents are in compliance with the requirements of the
"ESG Reporting Guide”.

CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and suggestions.
You can provide valuable advices in respect of the ESG Report or our
performances in sustainable development by sending your feedback
and enquires to our Customer Service Manager at cs@f8.com.hk.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 Emissions

Governance on Air Pollutants, Greenhouse Gas (the “"GHG")
Emissions and Waste Management

The Group is strongly committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which we operate. As such, the Group
has established relevant procedures to detect and prevent any possible
pollution incidents which affect the surrounding environment that may
occur in the course of our business operations. During the Reporting
Period, we measured and managed our environmental performance in
several aspects throughout our operations.

In terms of the Group's sale, supply and transportation of diesel oil and
related products businesses in Hong Kong, we understand there are
environmental emissions such as air emissions, GHG emissions, waste-
water discharges, general waste, and hazardous waste disposals.
During the Reporting Period, the emissions and waste were produced
from the operations of eight diesel oil tank wagons, two private
vehicles and one marine diesel oil barge. By integrating environmental
consideration into our decision-making processes, we embrace our
responsibilities to create an environmentally sustainable business. We
are also committed to raising our employees’ environmental awareness
and complying with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

To enhance our environmental governance practice and mitigate the
environmental impacts produced by our operations, we have
implemented relevant environmental protection policies and
communicated such policies to our employees. These policies
encourage our staff to contribute towards sustainability by adopting
environmentally friendly operation methods. In the long run, we will
continue to enhance our environmental management strategies in
monitoring and minimising the environmental impacts brought by our
businesses regularly in the coming years.

BAERREXRARER

A BIE

A1BER

ERIERY - BERE ([BERE ) HHRE
EYEBRLENER
AEBRTABREREGATRERTENR
BRI ERREE N - At AEECHTEEH
B LR R IER, (15 2 iE R Al e g
R GFEFESRBENSREEM - FRELR -
ZPEREeEERETRZAEmEGE REER
RERIR -

RAEBNBBETNSARBEERES
HEMEREBME - AABREFERKES
RPEW - Bl RISRERY - RERET
P BEKBEN - —REMRERENRE - R
HEHE - R MEDE N\ AR EE
M ERFLZR B K — R A S m B A ) & E B Ag
EL - BBRBRREEBEAZMARMNAEKE
B BHAREAERRAFEEREENE
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STRBRIROA AR ©
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EREE  BACERARRRRERR
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Air Pollutants Emissions

The total air emission produced by the Group during the Reporting
Period amounted to approximately 2,955 kg, which increased by
approximately 7.47% compared to last financial year. The emission
intensity was approximately 296 kg per vehicles (2019: 250 kg per
vehicles). The increased air pollutant emissions were mainly attributable
to the rising demand of diesel oil and related products leading to the
increased usage of vehicles for transportation. The Group strives to
save energy and reduce waste as much as possible in its daily work,
thereby reducing air pollutants emissions. Through different

EROTRYPEIL
RBEMHE - AEBEEANZERIENDEED

52,955F %% + SRR R R IR LI T7.47% ©
T ENBERGEE 4 5296 T 7 (20194 -
T E250TR) o Z2R75 Y HE g i
LALLM MR E S H @ EAREIER
EIERAEEES AR - AEBBOIREE
TERREMNERIAIRE - TR =
TSP - BB TRMRRERE  EBEY
B BRI B BB - RekEHIR

environmental protection measures, employees’ awareness of reducing  AREB M ZEF)5 LRI OT
exhaust gas emissions has been raised. The Group's air emissions
during the Reporting Period were as follows:
Air Pollutants Emission Unit 2018/2019 2019/2020 % Change
ZERISRMBEB By 2018/2019 F 2019/2020 BOLLEE
Nitrogen oxides ("NOx") KG 2,562.78 2,754.09 +7.46%
sty ((agLyw)) T
Sulphur oxides ("SOx") KG 2.36 2.54 17.63%
Aty ([REL ) TR
Particulate matters (“PM") KG
AL IR ASFBIORL (AT IR A SBSF A0 T 184.27 198.03 17.47%
Total
HE 2,749.41 2,954.66 17.47%
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy Conservation R ESRBEHER R B HIBETT

The GHG emissions generated by the Group are summarised below in
direct and indirect section respectively. The direct emissions are from
the Group's vehicles’ consumption of fuels while the indirect emissions
are via using energy and paper disposal at landfills.

During the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions were
approximately 433 tonnes, which increased by approximately 7.04%
when comparing with last financial year. Our GHG emissions were
mainly classified into three scopes:

Scope 1:  Direct emission from the usage of fuels by our vehicles;
Scope 2:  Energy indirect emissions; and
Scope 3:  Indirect emissions of paper disposal at landfills.
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The following table shows the figures of the Group’s GHG emissions ~ NRERANEBRREHFAEERESHEN -
during the Reporting Period.
Greenhouse gas emissions Unit 2018/2019 2019/2020 % Change
BEREHEK By 2018/2019 F 2019/2020 F ADLEEE
Direct emissions of GHG Emissions
from the usage of fuels by vehicles tonnes 386.19 415.02 17.47%
FTEREAMURER R ER BRI BEL
g
Indirect emissions of GHG Emissions
from the energy tonnes 16.57 16.24 12.01%
BEIR A& AKX B == SR BB Rl BE L R
WA
Indirect emissions of GHG Emissions
from the paper disposal at landfills tonnes
REERBEERRENERERE R
I HEIR W 1.56 1.52 12.33%
Total
we 404.32 432.78 17.04%
In line with our policies to minimise air pollutants and GHG emissions, A& HMBmERM D ERITEY KR E RIEHE
the Group's offices air conditioning are set and maintained at a fixed ~ WHBE - NEERAEHZEHRE RIRFR
temperature and requiring employees to turn off all the lights and EE&RE WEKEETMHERBLMBEEER
switch off the desktops after work. RAPAE K -
Employees are also encouraged to turn off the lights at lunch time and ~ F P 7Rt Bl fE B R FER FFERBARE - I PMEfaI R
using power saving appliances all the times. fEfE e BE T =S ©
Waste Management EEYE
Hazardous waste handling method ElREMEER R
Despite the Group did not generate hazardous wastes during the EEREENREHET BEEBRED - &

Reporting Period, we have established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes. In case there is any
hazardous waste produced, we must engage a qualified chemical
waste collector to handle such waste, which is complied with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules.

FMESEREBREYEELEENES - i
BEEEEAEREY  BALEBFEERD
LBy EERIZUAREY - BT HER
BEMRARA -
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Non-hazardous waste handling method

During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous waste produced by
the Group was mainly the paper waste, which amounted to
approximately 325 kg with no change compared to last financial year.
The paper wastes produced per employee was 12.23 kg per employee
(2019: 14.77 kg per employee). The paper consumption decreased
when comparing with last year since the awareness of paperless
environment has been keep raising among our employees.

With the aim of minimising the environmental impacts from non-
hazardous wastes generated from our business operations, the Group
have implemented measures to handle such wastes and launched
different reduction initiatives. The Group have disposed the waste
generated by business operation into three categories, which are
general waste, recyclable waste and special waste. Recyclable waste
includes papers, bottles, cans, etc. Special waste includes toner,
battery, etc. The three categories are handled in different ways based
on their nature.

We have implemented the following procedures to encourage
employees to share responsibilities in waste management and
minimize waste generations:

o Using double-sided printing or photocopying wherever possible

o Avoiding unnecessary paper using in the office

o Recycling one-sided printed paper

o Reusable tableware is provided in the pantry

o Recycling bins are placed in the office

o A food waste decomposer machine is in place for handling food
waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material non-
compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and the PRC, including but not limited to the “"Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of Laws of Hong Kong)”, "Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of Laws of Hong Kong)”,
“Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of Laws of Hong Kong)
Hong Kong and “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” of the PRC that had a significant influence on the
Group's operations.

"

of
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A2 Use of Resources

The Group strives to optimise resource usage in our business
operations and take initiatives to introduce measures on promoting
resource efficiency and adopting eco-friendly approaches in our
operations. The Group's major resource consumption contributes to
energy consumption. We have established related policies and
initiatives related to energy consumption management, which will be
mentioned in this section.

Energy Consumption

The major energy consumption of the Group was electricity
consumption in the daily operation. The Group aims to minimise
environmental impacts in our operations by identifying and adopting
appropriate measures in our operations. We continuously explore the
use of new energy in our business operation and how to optimise,
integrate and use the resources in a highly efficient manner with the
support of the latest science and technology information, thereby
achieving sustainable development. Related policies and initiatives on
energy conservation have been developed to show our concern on
energy efficiency. All employees must implement the adopted policies
and measures in resource utilisation. Regular review is conducted on
our energy objectives and targets to seek continuous improvement in
the Group's energy performance.

Monthly monitoring on the usage of electricity was implemented.
Unexpected high electricity consumption would be investigated to find
out the root cause and preventive measures would be taken. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has implemented the following
measures relating to mitigating emissions:

o Switching off unnecessary lightings and electrical appliances
when not in use

J Implementing “no light policy” during lunch time

J Using appliances and devices which are eco-friendly or energy-
saving

o Setting all printers, photocopiers and computers to energy saving
mode
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CHERERRE

Water Consumption

As our principal business was focusing on sale and transportation of
diesel oil products, we did not consume significant amount of water
through our business activities. In respect of water sourcing for office
use, since the water source is from the government department, there
was no water sourcing issue during the Reporting Period.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to the nature of the Group's business, the Group has no industrial
production and no factory facilities. Therefore, no significant amount of
packaging materials is used for packaging products.

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

Protecting the Environmental Impact and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/significant impact
on environment and natural resources. The Group nonetheless
commits to using natural resources wisely and efficiently while we
encourage the reuse and recycling of materials within our operations.
We spent efforts in mitigating our potential environmental impacts
through adopting industry best practices targeted at reducing natural
resources consumption and developing effective environmental
management. We regularly assess the environmental risks of our
businesses, adopt preventive measures to reduce potential risks and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Due to the increased usage of vehicles for transportation of diesel oil
and related products and the expansion in our business, our air
emissions, carbon emissions and electricity consumption increased
when compared with the emission from last financial year. Nonetheless,
the awareness of environmental protection and sustainability has been
raised among our employees.

In addition, in order to prevent any diesel oil leakage during both land
and water transport, the oil tank wagons and barge are inspected
frequently and are closely monitored. Instant repairs and maintenance
are carried out in case any unusual conditions are found in our vehicles.
Besides, we have enough space vehicles for backup when needed. For
the oil tank barge, we have contracted with a crew of experienced
sailors to monitor the daily operations of the water transportation.
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Paperless Office

In order to reduce paper usage, the Group strongly advocated
paperless office operations. All offices are operated in the electronic
system as far as possible to reduce the use and consumption of office
paper in order to save forest resources. We also encouraged electronic
medium for communications within the office and with suppliers.

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting nature and the
environment has become an integral part of the Group's corporate culture
and important value, the Group constantly looks for ways to maximise
benefits with minimal resource consumption and environmental impact,
and continues to strive for sustainable development.
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CARING FOR THE PEOPLE AND SOCIETY

B. SOCIAL

B1 Employment and Labor Practices

Equal Employment Practices

The Group puts significant emphasis on the welfare of employees
whom it considers the Group’s most valuable assets. Hence, the Group
strives to attract and retain talents and reconcile economical
imperatives with well-beings, aiming at reinforcing satisfaction, loyalty
and commitment of human capital.

The Group has adopted comprehensive human resources manual
which includes policies and procedures applicable to staff. All
employees are treated fairly regarding recruitment, training and
development, appraisal of work performance, promotions, rest periods,
remuneration and benefits. Staff dismissals are based on the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of Hong Kong) or relevant
local laws and regulations, as well as the requirements stipulated in the
employment contracts. The Group is committed to provide equal
opportunity for all employees and applicants without regard to race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual
orientation, disability, political affiliation, personal appearance, family
responsibilities, matriculation or any other characteristic protected
under local law.

Throughout its operation, the Group strives to provide an excellent
and comfortable working environment. Based on the features of the
principal business, the Group understands that taking a break by its
staff from time to time is necessary for accomplishing the long term
goals of the Group, and so, it strikes a proper work life balance of its
employees, providing them 6-day-work per week with 8 working hours
per weekday and 3 working hours every Saturday. We appreciate the
efforts of employees during their working hours, and advocate a no
over time working culture, to allow sufficient rest time for employees.
In case overtime is needed, overtime compensation is paid to
employees according to the actual additional working hours. The
Group provides paid annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
funeral leave in addition to statutory holidays for the employees.

In addition, we contribute to the Mandatory Provident Fund and
employee’s compensation insurance with reference to the relevant
regulations and laws. Medical allowance is also provided by the Group
to employees covering their clinic consultation, traditional Chinese
medicine, dentistry, as a basic benefit for employees.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed 53 staffs in total. In terms of
gender, there were 9 females and 44 males in the Group. Among them
19 staffs below 35 years old, 22 staffs are between 36 to 45 years old
and 12 staffs are over 46 years old. All of the employees are employee
under full time basis while 38 staffs serving the Group under three
years, 6 staffs had served the Group between 3 years to 5 years and 9
staffs are serving the Group above 5 years.

As an illustration, the workforce statistic by gender, age group and the
employment type are illustrated in pie graphs while and years of

serving the Group are disclosed as bar chart:

Gender and Age Distribution

Employee Breakdown
by Gender
BRI E D KBS A

83%

m Male ®m Female

St =gk

Employment Type and Years of Serving the Group

Employee Breakdown by
Employment Type
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The Group is committed to comply with the relevant labour standards
and employment laws and regulations which are applicable to our
business. During the Reporting Period, no material and significant
disputes between the Group and the employees were occurred.

B2 Health and Safety

Promoting Health and Safety

The Group considers health and safety of its employees as one of its
primary responsibilities. As such, the Group is committed to provide a
workplace free from injury and illness through effective procedures and
practice on occupational health and safety.

Regarding workplace health and safety, first aid boxes are available at
readily accessible locations in the Group's offices. Treatment for minor
injuries can be obtained on request to the supervisor in charge at the
site of the first aid box nearest to the scene of the accident. The Group
conducted health check from time to time to ensure the health of
employees. Employees who suffer from injury arising out of and in the
course of employment are entitled to compensation in accordance
with the related regulations. During the Reporting Period, there were
no fatal cases reported, in which we successfully achieved a 0% rate of
fatality.

The measures for emergency situations in respect of fire occurring in
certain buildings or installations are also regulated in terms of
guidelines assisting employees to take sensible immediate action when
discovering a fire. The Group provides fire drill for the employees to
ensure they can evacuate quickly and safely from the premises and
assembled in the designated area away from the building in the event
of a fire.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has ensured full compliance
with relevant occupational health and safety legislations of Hong Kong,
the PRC, and other relevant legislations. No severe injury or fatality was
reported throughout the Reporting Period.
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B3 Development and Training

Talent Management

The Group recognises the valuable contribution of our talents for the
continuous success of the Group. Nurturing talents and polishing the
skills of our human capital is crucial in leading us to excellence. This is
achieved through development of training strategy that focuses on
creating values and serving the needs of our customers, talents and
society. Therefore, we encourage our employees to attend trainings
and obtain professional qualifications.

We notice the importance of training and development for our staff to
keep abreast of the latest trend in the industry and the dynamic pace
in current market. During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly
provided informal on the job training to employees. The Group
provided also regular formal safety trainings for all its drivers and Excel
programming updated for its office staff. The training time hours for
the male staff is 194 and for the female is 6 and the Group has
established relevant policies in the staff handbook stating that
employees are welcome to participate in external training sessions
organized by government agencies on occupational safety and
environmental awareness.
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B4 Labour Standards

Prohibiting Child and Forced Labour

The Group prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory
labour at all its units and suppliers. No employee is made to work
against his/her will or work as forced labour, or subject to corporal
punishment or coercion of any type related to work.

Personal data is collected during the process to assist in the selection of
suitable candidates and to verify candidates’ personal data to ensure no
child labour will be recruited. The human resources department also
ensures identity documents are carefully checked. Overtime working is on
a voluntary basis. Also, compensation is provided for overtime working
with prior approval obtained from respective supervisor. If violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of the circumstances.

Also, the Group has zero-tolerance to employment of child labour and
forced labour and the Group is not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant rules and regulations on preventing child or forced labour.

B5 Supply Chain Management

Upholding High Procurement Standards

The Group highly values the relationship with suppliers and regards
them as important business partners. All suppliers are evaluated
carefully and subjected to regular monitoring and assessment. The
Group has formulated related procurement policies and procedures to
manage its suppliers and the policies and procedures are reviewed
annually.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had several major suppliers for the oil
supply in relation to its business operations. The Group has set clear
requirements on selection and management of suppliers to ensure
standardised management and proper selection of suppliers and
effective control over operational risks resulting from improper
selection, unreasonable method or fraudulent practice of suppliers.
The Group's policies regarding the purchase from suppliers focused
on quality, environment protection, price, and reputation, etc.

In order to manage the progress and quality of work conducted by our
suppliers, we have established standards for tendering and purchasing
from suppliers. We have also established a database of suppliers,
which includes the basic information of suppliers, the types of products
or services providers, the types of suppliers and the supply prices for
the Group’s long-term follow-up assessment of suppliers. Our
managers and project coordinators conduct regular review with the
appointed suppliers.
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Related policies are formulated by the Group to ensure that the
suppliers could participate in competitions in an open and fair way.
The Group should not have differentiated or discriminated treatment
on certain suppliers; it would strictly monitor and prevent all kinds of
business bribery; and employees or personnel having any interest
relationship with the supplier should not be involved in the related
business activity.

B6 Product Responsibility

Delivering Unmatched Product Quality

The Group's business led by its experienced management team is
committed to offering higher-value services to customers, in order to
enhance the Group’s competitiveness and achieve mutual success
between the Group and customers. In order to ensure product quality,
careful supply quality inspection is performed as mentioned above.
Moreover, to ensure the service quality, regular training is provided to
all drivers for the job-related skills and knowledge.

Intellectual Property Right

The Group is committed to safeguard intangible assets and
confidential information of its customers. The Group has strict
guidelines on the handling of intellectual property related products,
including patents, copyrights, trademarks, technology and trade
secrets. Any employee found to improperly handling intellectual
property rights will be subject to disciplinary action.

Customer Data Protection

The Group takes serious protection of our members’ confidential
information. The Group seeks to protect our members’ information
and accounts by employing data security measures such as encryption,
passwords and firewalls, etc. The Group has hired specific employees
to handle the storage and access of our customers’ information. Our
employees are prohibited to use the personal information of our
customers for purposes which are not related to the maintenance of
their accounts, unless their prior consent is obtained. If our employees
would like to access the information of our customers, they will need to
apply for approval. We do not sell, rent or otherwise share the personal
information of clients with any third parties without their prior consent.
Stipulated in our privacy policy, we make sure that the processing of
personal data for marketing purposes, fulfil the requirements of
applicable law.
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Complaint Mechanism

To provide a pleasant user experience for our customers, the Group
has long established a set of procedures to handle customers’
feedbacks or complaints in a professional manner. Customers’
information will be recorded, and enquiries or complaints cases
received will be transferred to the related departments or further
handling. Reviews on feedback or complaints is conducted, and action
plans are in place promptly to address the identified issues. The Group
will collect the information on the complaint cases, such as the
occasion, reason, and the contact of the client, etc. Customers’
satisfaction is evaluated after the cases are settled, and feedbacks or
complaints may be circulated to management if necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no case of non-
compliance with laws and regulations in relation to product
responsibility.

B7 Anti-Corruption

Commitment to Anti-Corruption

The Group commits to maintaining a high standard of integrity when
doing business as we strongly believe that it is essential to meet the
expectations of our stakeholders.

The Group promotes integrity and prevents unethical pursuits. The
Group has implemented an effective whistle-blowing policy for
reporting fraud, corruption, bribery, extortion and money laundering.
We encourage the reporting of suspected business irregularities and
provide clear channels specifically for this purpose. When suspected
wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of duty, abuse of power,
receiving bribes, staff should report to the Board for investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator and/or to law enforcement
authority when necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there are no concluded legal
cases regarding corruption brought against the Group or its employees
during the Reporting Period.

B8 Community Investment

Contributing to the Welfare of Society

During the Reporting Period, the Group participated in various
community activities to help the environment of the society. For
example, volunteering services, community sanitation cleaning, etc. To
have a better understanding of the needs in society and strengthen the
connection with local communities, we regularly communicated with
local charities. We have also encouraged our employees to participate
in community activities and suggested areas of contribution based on
their personal experiences in the community. In the coming years, the
Group will continue to pay efforts in the environmental, employees and
customers aspects and keeping the success of this year and at the
same time, the Group will intend to invest more resources into
volunteering initiatives to contribute to the society.
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RIE -HEKER

HE

ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RIEYE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2020 Unit
HZE2019%  #HZE2020%
3A31H 3A31H
Emissions BERR IHEE LLEE By
Air Emissions Z2 5 M HE R
Total air emissions ZERSAMPEREE 2,749.41 2,954.66 kg T
Nitrogen oxides (“NOXx") A&l ((BELw) 2,562.78 2,754.09 kg T35
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") maty ((maEty)) 2.36 254 kg TR
Particulate matter (“PM") AR A SRR 184.27 198.03 kg T3
(AT IR A SESZ R |)
Air emissions intensity ERSRAMBENEE 249.95 295.47  kg/vehicle
Fr/98
Greenhouse Gas Emissions = RS
Total greenhouse gas emissions BERENAE 404.32 432.78  tonne M#
Scope 1 Direct emissions from the 3 [E 1 /55 {5 IR EK 386.19 415.02  tonne [§
usage of fuel by vehicles R E R HERR
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions &2 2 s IR EEHEL 16.57 16.24  tonne M
Scope 3 Indirect emissions of paper ~ #3[E 3N HEIER E E 5K 1.56 1.52  tonne I
disposal at landfills 15 KR R B AR
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity R EREHNRZTE 18.38 8.19 tonne/
employee
L]
Waste Management FEEYEIR
Paper Waste REAR 325 318 kg T&
Paper Waste Intensity REMR R 14.77 12.23  kg/employee
T/ EE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2020 Unit
HE2019F  #HZE2020%
3A31H 3H31H
Use of Resources ERERA LFE ILFE B
Electricity Consumption ENHE
Total Electricity Consumption B EREESE 32.49 31.84 MWh JKEL B
Electricity Consumption Intensity SHERE 1.48 122 MWh/

employee
JKELRE
E&
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INDEX FOR ESG REPORTING GUIDE BIR

Subject Areas, Aspect,
General Disclosure and KPIs  Description

THEES  BH -

CHERERREESIRS

Section/Declaration

—REBERERERIER it &, 28
Aspect A1: Emissions
A1EME : B
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— R BRAEROREREBEEN - KR BEW
5 BENEERERZYVNELSH
@ BE: Rk
b) BTFTHETABEAZENHBEEZEK
ROIE RS -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Air Pollutants Emissions;
emissions data. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy
Conservation; Waste Management
BB RHEIR AL PR AR BE A K HER — %ﬁﬁm%ﬁkﬁﬁ( R E RS HE
NEFRIRLIR « BEEYE IR
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emissions
tonnes) and intensity. and Energy Conservation
RARE IR A2 RERBHNEE (W) RTE - P — IR E REEHE U BN K RE IR
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Emissions — Waste Management
and intensity. (Not applicable — Explained)
BARAEMIEIRAL3 EANGREDEE () RBE - P — BEEDER (TER —2®e)
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Emissions — Waste Management
tonnes) and intensity.
BB RIEIR AL EAEREEREDES () REE - P — BEEYER
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Subject Areas, Aspect,

HE

Report

General Disclosure and KPIs  Description Section/Declaration

THEEE  EH -

—REBERERERIER i pud i 2]

KPI A1.5 Description of reduction initiatives and Emissions — Air Pollutants Emissions;

RASETIBIZ A5

KPI'AT.6

RAR B TIEIZ A6

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
A2fEH : EAER

results achieved.

st R EHE P E BV B BTG RCR ©

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEEREZTEEYMNG L  RIEE
HEEMEBRTEAR

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy
Conservation; Waste Management

BRI — =R R
NERKIREIR - BEEMETR

Nl Rt

= BB HE IR

Emissions — Waste Management

Bk — BERYEE

General Disclosure

—RRINEE

KPI A2.1

FASAE IR IR A2.1

KPI A2.2

BAAEIEIRA2.2
KPI A2.3

RRAERIERA2.3

KPI'A2.4

RREMIEIRA24

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.
BRERER - BIEEIR - K REARME
BIBUR ©

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type in total and intensity.
BEER/SEEEREREGRELRERE
J_g— o

Water consumption in total and intensity.

FKRENREE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

8 i SKEGE A KR AT B IR
FHRKMER T8I R PA1SRCR

AR 42

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
FAERBRKEEEFENSG B - #iK
FHEI REIS R RV E o

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR

Use of Resources

EREIR

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

ERER — R

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

(Not applicable — Explained)
ERER — K (TER — ERE)

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

(Not applicable — Explained)
ERER—FK(NER — ERE)
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Subject Areas, Aspect,

General Disclosure and KPIs  Description Section/Declaration

TEES - EH -

—REERERERER it & B9

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished ~ Use of Resources — Use of Packaging

products (in tonnes) and with reference to
per unit produced.

R G (HR) B AT RHE & -
HEE o

‘g pR
W ZHR

FASAE IR R A5

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3EE : RERRRER

Material (Not applicable — Explained)

ERER — BEMEHHER
(TMEm —EER)

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

impact on the environment and natural

resources.

— R BEETAHRBEERAERENEATE
EIR e

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

AR RHHRFERRERNEATE
MREFKRERBBTENTTH -

PR AR TR A3

Aspect B1: Employment
B1/EME : &R

The Environment and Natural Resources

RIEERAER

The Environment and Natural Resources
— Paperless Office

REARAER —BARLE

Information on:
(a)
(b)

General Disclosure
the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

AN E RS - TIERE
RER - FE#E - Zioib - RERREA
B RAR AR -

—REE

(@) BR: &
(b) HEITABERFZEMMBBERELRD
KB K} o
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Subject Areas, Aspect,
General Disclosure and KPls
FTEES  EBEH -
—REERERENIEE

HE

Description

g

Section/Declaration

&, B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2EMH : RERZ2

General Disclosure

—fRINEE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BERARMLZ2TERERREEE B BBE

MfEER

@ BE: &

b) BTHBETABERTHRBERLR
DIV ERL

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3 B : BERIEI

Health and Safety

fERER S

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.

Development and Training

— R E BERRTEEERITIIEREN MBS  #HREME
BUR - B IES -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4fEME : &5 T%A|
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
— R BRI L E Taoaml%5 T ST AR

(@ B Rk
b) BTHBITABEAFZENHEBEEZK
R ER -
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Subject Areas, Aspect,
General Disclosure and KPls
TEES  EBEH -
—REERERENIEE

HE

Description Section/Declaration
HHat & B9

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

B5EMH : HEHEERE

General Disclosure

—fRINEE

Policies on managing environmental and Supply Chain Management
social risks of the supply chain.

EEHEENRE R SRBREEK HIEREE

Aspect Bé6: Product Responsibility

B6EH : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RRINEE

Information on: Product Responsibility
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.
BERMRERERMRBNREERELZE B EmEE
FBE DR EEUARERITEN
@ BE: &
b) FEFTHETABERZENHBERZN
MBI E RS o
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Subject Areas, Aspect,

General Disclosure and KPIs  Description Section/Declaration
TEEE - EH -
—REERERERER it & B9

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7EH : RES

General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— R BRI - 9% - MGFROLREN RES
@ BER:K
b) BTHETABEATZENHBEZR
MBI E R o

Aspect B8: Community Investment
B8EM : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to Community Investment
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—MRIXEE BENZERTREEMELERTEMER HEE
HEBKERSGEBHLEMRABOR

A

>
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE
OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 30
March 2016.

The shares of the Company have been listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange by way of placing and public offer on 12 April 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The principal activity of the Group is
the operation of the business of the sale and transportation of diesel
oil and related products in Hong Kong and the manufacturing and sale
of steel products in the PRC.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 and the financial position of the Group as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 97 and 99. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five years is set out on page 212 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisitions nor disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies save for the section headed
"Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals” in this
report.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

On the Listing Date, the Company's shares were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange. A total of 200,000,000 new shares with nominal value
of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the “Share(s)") were issued at
HK$0.32 per share for a total of approximately HK$64.0 million. The net
proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer, after
deduction of the underwriting commission and related expenses in
connection with the Share Offer, was approximately HK$45.1 million.
The net proceeds, upon receipt by the Company after Listing, has
been deposited at a bank and such net proceeds will be applied in the
manners consistent with the proposed applications set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2020 are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 31
March 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 101 and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operation, business and

prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The

followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group

relating to our business:

68

The Group is dependent on the major supplier (in terms of total
purchases) for the supply of diesel oil. Any shortage or delay in
the supply of diesel oil from it, or any change in its existing
marketing strategies may materially and/or adversely affect the
Group's business and results of operations if we cannot secure
alternative sources of supply immediately.

The Group's customers are not subject to any minimum purchase
requirement to purchase diesel oil from the Group.

A significant portion of the Group's revenue was attributable to
the sale of diesel oil and its profitability may be adversely
affected if demand for diesel oil declines for any reason.

The demand for our diesel oil would be adversely affected by the
delay in public sector projects caused by failures or delays in
passing funding for public work proposals by committees of the
Legislative Council due to lawmakers’ filibustering.

The Group's business and results of operations are dependent
on the oil price which are driven by factors beyond the Group's
control and the uncertainty of the crude oil price could have a
material adverse impact on the Group's financial condition and
results of operations.

Changes in the market conditions and trends in the construction

industry and in the overall economy may affect the Group's
operations and growth.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Up to 31 March 2020, there has been no purchase, sale or redemption
of any Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fong Chun Man (Chairman)

Ms. Lo Pui Yee

Mr. Chan Chi Fai

Mr. Li Hok Yin (resigned on 21 February 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap
Mr. Wang Anyuan

Pursuant to article 84 of Articles of Association of the Company (the
"Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles, provided that every Director shall be
retired at least once every three years. Accordingly, Ms. Lo Pui Yee and
Mr. Chan Chi Fai will retire from office as Directors by rotation at the
AGM and being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Confirmation of Independence

Each independent non-executive Director has given the Company an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and meet the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

(a) Executive Directors
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company and shall continue thereafter unless
terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the terms
of the service contract, the service contract may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice served by either party on the
other. The term of service of a Director is subject to retirement by
rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

(b) Independent Non-executive Director

Each of the independent non-executive Director has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company which may be
terminated by not less than one month’s notice served by either
party on the other. The term of service of a Director is three years
commencing on the Listing Date subject to the provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed to
have a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee by reference to the benchmarking of the market. The
Company also looks into individual Director’'s competence, duties,
responsibilities, and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 85 to 89 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party at any time during or at the end of the year
ended 31 March 2020.

As of 31 March 2020, no contract of significance had been entered into
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Company did not enter into or have any
management and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole
or any principal business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report,
the Directors are not aware of any business and interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company nor any of
their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
that compete or may compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person
has or may have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this report. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the internal control measures in relation to
managing actual or potential conflict of interest of the Group have
been properly implemented.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

On 23 March 2017, Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited
(being controlling shareholders of the Group) entered into a deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the
Company (for itself and each of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which each
of Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited has irrevocably and
unconditionally, jointly and severally, warrants and undertakes with the
Company that, immediately upon the Share Offer becoming
unconditional, each of them shall not, and shall procure each of his/its
close associates and any company directly or indirectly controlled by Mr.
Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited (except for the members the
Group) shall not, except through any member of our Group, directly or
indirectly (whether on its own account or with each other or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, or as principal
or agent, through any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement and whether for profit or otherwise), carry on,
engage in, invest or acquire or hold any rights or be interested or
otherwise involved in any business that is similar to or in competition
directly or indirectly with or is likely to be in competition with any
business currently and from time to time engaged by our Group in Hong
Kong and any other country or jurisdiction to which our Group carries on
business or grants franchise from time to time (“Restricted Business”).

Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited further undertake that
when he/it or his/its close associates other than any member of the
Group is offered or becomes aware of any new project or business
opportunity (“New Business Opportunity”) directly or indirectly to
engage or become interested in a Restricted Business, he/it (i) shall
promptly notify our Company of such New Business Opportunity in
writing, refer the same to our Company for consideration first and
provide such information as may be reasonably required by our
Company to make an informed assessment of such New Business
Opportunity; and (ii) shall not, and shall procure that the controlled
persons or controlled company not to, invest or participate in any such
New Business Opportunity unless such New Business Opportunity is
declined by our Company, or our Company does not proceed with
such New Business Opportunity within 30 business days from the date
of the written notice (of if requested by our Company in writing, such
30 business days period may be extended to a maximum of 60
business days), and the principal terms of which he/it and/or his/its
close associates invest or participate in are no more favourable than
those made available to our Company.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non-
Competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.
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Mr. Fong Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited have both confirmed
to the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the
Deed of Non-Competition have been complied by each of Mr. Fong
Chun Man and Grand Tycoon Limited and duly enforced during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

For the year ended 31 March 2020, there has been no purchase, sale or
redemption of any Company’s listed securities by the Company or any
of the subsidiaries.

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (i)
to be entered into the register required to be kept therein, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest shares held shareholding
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Mr. Fong Chun Man Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 440,000,000 50.1%
(Long position)

TRt RmEslEEES (M) 440,000,000 50.1%
(FE)

Ms. Lo Pui Yee Interest of spouse (Note 2) 440,000,000 50.1%
(Long position)

SRS L A 25 (3 2) 440,000,000 50.1%
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Notes:

1. The shares are held by Grand Tycoon Limited, the equity interest of which is owned
as to 100% by Mr. Fong Chun Man. Mr. Fong Chun Man is deemed to be interested
in all the shares held by Grand Tycoon Limited for the purpose of Part XV of SFO.

2. Ms. Lo Pui Yee is the spouse of Mr. Fong Chun Man and is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the shares which Mr. Fong Chun Man is interested for the purpose
of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company has any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part V of the SFO
(including interests and/or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) to be entered
into the register required to be kept therein, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders
and other persons in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2020, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or were deemed to have interests in shares or underlying shares which
(i) were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or (ii) which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the
GEM Listing Rules or, (iii) who will be, directly or indirectly, be
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any member of our Group.
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Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest shares held shareholding
BRREE HH 51 Rmty BERGEE BRESL
Grand Tycoon Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 440,000,000 50.1%
(Long position)
RFBRAF EmEEAHETD) 440,000,000 50.1%
(FE)
Mr. Li Hok Yin Beneficial owner (Note 2) 49,456,000 5.6%
(Long position)
BB EL Ema A (sE2) 49,456,000 5.6%
(FE)
Ms. Cheung Yee Lok Interest of spouse (Note 3) 49,456,000 5.6%
(Long position)
SRIKEE 2+ BofB s (M5 3) 49,456,000 5.6%
(FE)
Notes: BRE -
1. The shares are held by Grand Tycoon Limited, the equity interest of which is owned 1. FZERMBEFTERARFE - H100%KEHTT £

as to 100% by Mr. Fong Chun Man. Mr. Fong Chun Man is deemed to be interested
in all the shares held by Grand Tycoon Limited for the purpose of Part XV of SFO.

2. Mr. Li Hok Yin was the executive Director of the Company and had interest in shares
of the Company. Despite his resignation on 21 February 2020, there was no change
in his interests in the Shares. Accordingly, he had interest in the Shares in the
position as a substantial shareholder of the Company as at 31 March 2020.

3. Ms. Cheung Yee Lok is the spouse of Mr. Li Hok Yin and is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the shares which Mr. Li Hok Yin is interested for the purpose of Part
XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors have not
been notified by any person who had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme in
which certain eligible participants including, among others, the
Directors and employees of the Group may be granted options to
subscribe for Shares on 23 March 2017 (the “Adoption Date"). The
share option scheme became unconditional upon the Listing Date.
Under the terms of the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant
options to eligible participants to subscribe for Shares.
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No share options were granted since the Adoption Date up to 31
March 2020, and there was no share option outstanding as at 31 March
2020. As at 31 March 2020, the Company had 80,000,000 shares
available for issue under the Scheme, representing 10% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company.

Competing Interests

The Directors confirm that none of the Controlling Shareholders or the
Directors and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) is interested in any business apart from the business
operated by our Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with our Group's business during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed Guotai Junan Capital Limited (“Guotai Junan”) to be
the compliance adviser. As informed by Guotai Junan, neither Guotai
Junan nor any of its directors or employees or close associates had any
interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the
Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if
any) or otherwise in relation to the Company which is required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing
Rules except for the participation of Guotai Junan as the sponsor in
relation to the Listing and the compliance adviser agreement entered
into between the Company and Guotai Junan on 8 September 2016.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all of the Directors complied with such required standard
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions as at the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Director is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributed to the Group's largest and the five largest customers
accounted for 16.3% and 51% (2019: 22.4% and 53.1%) of the total
revenue of the Group, respectively. For the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Group's purchase from the largest and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 29% and 60.3% (2019: 44.8% and 87.9%) of the total
purchases of the Group, respectively. At no time during the year ended
31 March 2020 did the Directors, their associates nor any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any interest in the
Group's major customers or suppliers as disclosed above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30 August 2019, 18 September 2019 and 25 October 2019, JLFa#T
HEB HERHE AR QA (Jiangxi Xinji Power Technology Company
Limited*) (“Jiangxi Xinji”), a subsidiary of the Company, for the
purpose of its requirements necessary for production of steel products
and motor parts, had entered into certain purchase transactions with
il 8B S EMR AT (New Steel (Shanghai) Trade Co., Ltd.*) ("New
Steel (Shanghai)”) for the purchase of iron and steel materials (the
“First Purchase Transactions”). During the period between August
2019 and June 2020, Jiangxi Xinji had entered into certain purchase
transactions with F AR 77 (317R)/2 ELET M RHEAT B R A &) (Wisdri (Xinyu)
Cold Processing Engineering Co., Ltd.*) (“Wisdri (Xinyu)”) for the
purchase of iron and steel materials (together with the First Purchase
Transactions, the “Purchase Transactions”).

During the period between August 2019 and March 2020, the
aggregate amount of the Purchase Transactions incurred by the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB15,991,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,923,000).
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Jiangxi Xinji is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
holding 55% equity interest in Jiangxi Xinji. The remaining equity
interests in Jiangxi Xinji are held as to 35% by #1sR i & B AR A 7
(Xinyu Iron and Steel Corporation Ltd.*) (“Xinyu Steel Group"”) (a
state-owned enterprise) and as to 10% by a shareholder. Xinyu Steel
Group, being a substantial shareholder of Jiangxi Xinji, has held 100%
equity interest in New Steel (Shanghai), which in turn is an associate of
Xinyu Steel Group by virtue of Rule 20.11(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Furthermore, Wisdri (Xinyu) is owned as to 70% by TRl # R H B R A
A] (Xinyu Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.*) (“Xinyu Iron and Steel”) which in
turn is owned as to approximately 38.17% by Xinyu Steel Group.
Therefore, Wisdri (Xinyu) is an associate of Xinyu Steel Group by virtue
of Rule 20.11(3) of the GEM Listing Rules. As such, each of New Steel
(Shanghai) and Wisdri (Xinyu) is a connected person of the Company at
subsidiary level and the Purchase Transactions between the Group and
each of New Steel (Shanghai) and Wisdri (Xinyu) constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The purchase prices for the Purchase Transactions have been and will
be determined on order-by-order basis with reference to the prevailing
comparable market price after arm’s length negotiation between the
Group and each of New Steel (Shanghai) and Wisdri (Xinyu). The
purchase prices are settled in cash. Our Group has purchased the iron
and steel materials on an as-needed basis and will continue to do so
on such basis. As the iron and steel materials required are generally
readily available in the market, it is our policy to obtain quotations from
at least three independent suppliers that provide similar materials
before we make any purchase from New Steel (Shanghai) and Wisdri
(Xinyu). Based on the fee quotes provided by other independent
suppliers, we will be able to ensure that the purchase price to be paid
to New Steel (Shanghai) and Wisdri (Xinyu) by our Group represents
the prevailing market price and on normal commercial terms.

We have purchased iron and steel materials from Wisdri (Xinyu) and
New Steel (Shanghai) since August 2019 and November 2019
respectively. Since our Group is satisfied with the quality and timely
delivery of the materials provided by Wisdri (Xinyu) and New Steel
(Shanghai) and the terms offered by them to our Group are on normal
commercial terms, our Directors are of the view that it will be in the
interests of our Group and our Shareholders as a whole to continue the
Purchase Transactions with Wisdri (Xinyu) and New Steel (Shanghai),
where necessary.
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Pursuant to Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules, a connected
transaction between the listed issuer’s group and a connected person
at the subsidiary level on normal commercial terms or better is
exempted from circular, independent financial advice and
shareholders’ approval requirements if: (1) the listed issuer’s board of
directors has approved the transactions; and (2) the independent non-
executive directors have confirmed that the terms of the transaction
are fair and reasonable, the transaction is on normal commercial terms
or better and in the interests of the listed issuer and its shareholders as
a whole.

Owing to the latest situation of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
suspension of work of Jiangxi Xinji around January to March 2020
resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, the management of the
Company was not in a position to maintain effective communication
with the staff of Jiangxi Xinji for purpose of gathering sufficient
information for the Board of Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) to consider and approve the Purchase Transactions
on a timely basis. In June 2020, during preparation of the annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has managed to
gather all necessary information from Jiangxi Xinji regarding the
Purchase Transactions for approval by the Board in accordance with
Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Confirmation from the Directors in relation to Continuing
Connected Transactions

On 30 June 2020, the Company has obtained the approval from the
Board (including the independent non-executive Directors) regarding
the Purchase Transactions. Pursuant to Rule 20.53 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) have confirmed and ratified that the terms of the Purchase
Transactions have been entered into and will be carried out:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreements governing the Purchase
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions
set out above.

As such, pursuant to Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Purchase
Transactions are only subject to reporting and announcement
requirements, and are exempted from the circular, independent
financial advice and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong GEM
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Pursuant to Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board in respect of the
disclosed continuing connected transactions that nothing has come to
their attention that (i) causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company'’s board of directors; (i) were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; (iii) had exceeded the caps set by the company; and (iv)
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group did not enter into any transactions which need to be disclosed
as connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the material related party transactions are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements of this report. These related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Remuneration to key management personnel of the Group, including
Directors described in notes 13 and 14 to the Group's consolidated
financial statements are continuing connected transactions exempt
from the connected transaction requirements under Rule 20.93 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high
level of corporate governance standards and will review and improve
the corporate governance practices and standards constantly. During
the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code
Provisions”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20
to 37 of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no
equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020 or subsisted at the end of the reporting
year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers in order to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. During the Reporting Period, there
was no material or significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws
of Cayman Islands or the Articles which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a directors’ liability insurance
was currently in place to protect the Directors against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 53 employees (2019: 22
employees) including the Directors. The remuneration package the
Group offered to the employees includes salary, bonuses and other
cash subsidies. In general, the Group determines employees’ salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The
Group has designed an annual review system to assess the
performance of our employees, which forms the basis of the Group’s
decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and promotions.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and outlook of the Company as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position can
be found in the management discussion and analysis set out on pages
6 to 19 of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this report.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or tax exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

The Company received HK$165,000 tax relief for the year ended 31
March 2020, which is reflected in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 6 August 2020, the notice of which shall be sent to the
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 3 August 2020 to Thursday, 6 August 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of the shares of the Company
will be registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 July
2020.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The principal activity of the sale and transportation of diesel oil and
related products business of the Group is governed by Hong Kong
environmental laws and regulations including the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
Hong Kong.

These laws and regulations cover a broad range of environmental
matters, including air pollution, noise and gas emissions, leakage of ol
products or other hazardous substances. The Group recognises the
importance of environmental protection and has implemented various
environmental protection measures in order to minimise the operation
impact on the environment and natural resources.

The Group will continue to monitor the business operations in order to
ensure that it does not have only significant adverse effect on the
environment and that the Group's environment protection measures
are adequate to ensure compliance with all applicable current Hong
Kong laws or regulations.

As at the date of this report, no prosecution, penalty or punishment
has been imposed upon the Group for the violation of any

environmental laws or regulations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
significant events that have occurred requiring disclosure.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
has been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who shall

retire at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible to offer themselves

for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED
FONG Chun Man

Chairman
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Biographies of Board of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong Chun Man (“"Mr. Fong"), aged 40, is our founder, executive
Director, Chairman, compliance officer, member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, and is responsible for our
Group's overall corporate management and business development
strategies. Mr. Fong was appointed as an executive Director on 23
March 2017. Mr. Fong established our Group in early 2005 and was
appointed as the director of Great Wall (International) Oil Limited in
December 2005.

Mr. Fong has over 15 years of experience in the sale and transportation
of diesel oil and related products. The performance of the Company is
achieved in great level. He was responsible for the Company’s daily
operation, including but not limited to submitting tender proposals
and undertaking construction projects, managing its corporate
accounting and administrative matter, monitoring the logistics of
projects and contacting suppliers and customers, such as authorised
agents appointed by the Oil Majors. Mr. Fong has also been the
director of Jet Good Limited since April 2005, a company whose
principal business involves the provision of construction materials and
related logistics services in Hong Kong, where he has gained
experience in business operation and management expertise.

Mr. Fong has completed the Hong Kong Advanced Level Examination
in July 1999 and has been a committee member of the 13th and 14th
sessions of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Guangzhou City Yue Xiu District Committee (FEARBUAHEEEE
MiEFRZE BE) since May 2008 and the committee member of the
13th session of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Guangzhou Committee (FRARBUAHEEZEMTZE®) since
January 2017. Mr. Fong is the director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Pok Oi Hospital, a non-profit hospital in Hong Kong since
2012 and the director of the planning and procedure department of
the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol since March 2015. He is also the
current honorary president of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association
Shatin branch. Mr. Fong is the spouse of Ms. Lo.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Ms. Lo Pui Yee ("Ms. Lo"), aged 41, was appointed as our executive
Director, and vice chairlady on 22 August 2016. Ms. Lo is responsible
for supervising the overall administration and operation of our Group.
She has more than 17 years of experience in the business
administration and marketing area. Ms. Lo joined our Group in June
2016.

Ms. Lo has completed the Hong Kong Advanced Level Examination in
July 1999. Since June 2002, Ms. Lo has gained exposure in the daily
administration, operation and executive management and has been a
sole proprietor of Alpha Communications Company, which carries on
the business of the provision of telecommunication and internet
services, and has been responsible for supervising the business
development and corporate governance. Since 2011, Ms. Lo has been
a director and shareholder of Luxe Tuxedo Limited, an apparel
company offering high-end men'’s formal suit and attire in Hong Kong,
responsible for overseeing the administrative function, enhancing
communication channels between management and staff and product
branding. Ms. Lo is the spouse of Mr. Fong.

Saved as disclosed above, she was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Chan Chi Fai ("Mr. Chan"), aged 39, was appointed as our
executive Director and chief executive officer on 22 August 2016 and is
responsible for the operation of our fleet of tank wagon and business
strategies implementation. Mr. Chan has joined Great Wall
(International) Oil Company since September 2010.

Mr. Chan obtained a higher certificate and a higher diploma in Civil
Engineering from the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in
July 2007 and July 2009, respectively. Mr. Chan also completed the
certificate for Safety Supervisor (Construction Industry), Safety Training
Techniques Course and Safe Working Cycle Course in February 2002,
January 2009 and January 2009, respectively. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Chan worked as a foreman in Yuk Shing Engineering Co.,
Limited from March 2000 to February 2007 whose principal business is
construction and engineering, responsible for general site operation
for drainage work and earthwork. From March 2007 to July 2010, Mr.
Chan joined Vibro (H.K\) Limited and was promoted as a geotechnical
field technician, whose principal business is construction, responsible
for ground investigation arrangement and carrying out necessary
testing.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Mr. Li Hok Yin ("Mr. Li"), aged 42, was appointed as our executive
Director on 21 June 2018 and Mr. Li tendered his resignation as an
executive Director with effect from 21 February 2020 due to his own
Mr. Li has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Broad and there is no matter relating to his
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders or the Stock Exchange.

business commitments.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (“Mr. Chui”), aged 63, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 23 March 2017. Mr. Chui is
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chui obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in commerce from the
Concordia University in June 1978 and was awarded the Medal of
Honour by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2014. Mr. Chui is currently a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants since June 1991 and the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants since May 1989. Mr. Chui has over 35 years of
experience in the accounting field and is the founder of a Hong Kong
accounting firm, Robert Chui CPA Limited since August 1991.

Mr. Chui has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited, (Hong Kong
stock code: 417), National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited, (Hong Kong stock code: 8228), Wing Lee Property Investments
Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 864) and Asia Cassava Resources
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 841) since April 1999, May
2009, February 2013 and August 2018, respectively. From June 2015 to
July 2018, Mr. Chui was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of PPS International (Holdings) limited (Hong Kong stock code:
8201).

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 44, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 23 March 2017. Mr. Kwong is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Kwong obtained a Bachelor’s degree in electronics from The Open
University of Hong Kong in December 2001, a diploma in information
technology from the School of Professional and Continuing Education
of The University of Hong Kong in June 2004 and a master degree in
information technology from Charles Sturt University, Australia in
November 2005.
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From December 2013 to October 2015, Mr. Kwong was appointed as a
non-executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 8269), whose principal activities involve manufacture and
sale of fresh and dried noodles, investment holding in coal trading
business, trading of natural resources and commodities and money
lender. From November 2015 to August 2016, Mr. Kwong was re-
designated as an executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Wang Anyuan (“Mr. Wang"), aged 49, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 23 March 2017. Mr. Wang is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor's degree specialising in maritime and
communication accounting from the Shanghai Maritime University in
July 1994. He joined China Merchants Group and served as the
manager of the audit (risk assurance) department from September
1996 to July 2001, the chief financial officer of China Merchants
Securities (HK) Company Limited from July 2001 to January 2007 and
general manager of audit (risk assurance) department of China
Merchants Finance Holdings Company Limited from February 2007 to
February 2008. In April 2008, Mr. Wang served BOCOM International
Holdings Company Limited as an executive director and head of China
operation, responsible for the equity sales. From June to December
2009, Mr. Wang served CITIC Securities International as a director and
head of China operation, responsible for their securities business and
had been the account executive of CITIC Securities International
Company Limited from January 2010 to November 2012. In October
2012, Mr. Wang served as a deputy head of brokerage department of
China Investment Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited,
responsible for securities trading. In February 2013, Mr. Wang served
as a responsible officer of China Investment Securities International
Brokerage Limited of Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) regulated activities
as defined in the SFO. Since May 2013, Mr. Wang joined Orient
Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as a business director of the
brokerage department. Mr. Wang has been appointed as an executive
director, compliance officer and authorised representative of Code
Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8153) from
September 2015 to January 2018. Mr. Wang is licensed with the SFC as
a representative of Orient Securities (Hong Kong) Limited to carry out
type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity and as a representative
of Orient Futures (Hong Kong) Limited to carry out type 2 (dealing in
futures contract) regulated activity.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Cheung Lee Kwok (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 42, is our chief
operation officer and is responsible for overseeing the daily operation
and general financial management of our Group. Mr. Cheung has
joined our Group since April 2016.

Mr. Cheung has over 13 years of experience in operational
management. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in mathematics from
the National Central University, Taiwan, in June 2002. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as an information technology engineer
in Di Sheng Computer Limited (4 B JEH R A F]*) from March 2004
to July 2005, and from January 2007 to May 2007, responsible for
conducting products testing and providing customer support. From
June 2007 to April 2010, Mr. Cheung worked as an engineer in
Chunghwa Picture Tubes, Ltd. (T ZEE KD FR A 7)) whose principal
business is involved in the optoelectronic industry (Taiwan stock
exchange, stock code: 2475, and Luxembourg stock exchange, ISIN
code: US17133M7092), responsible for supervising the production
operation and quality control, as well as managing technicians and
support staffs for improving operational efficiency. Mr. Cheung then
worked in the sale of diesel oil related business in Great Wall
(International) Company for six years from April 2010 to March 2016,
responsible for the daily operations of the sole proprietorship.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai (“Ms. Leung”), aged 55, was appointed as the
Group's company secretary on 26 October 2017. Ms. Leung has been a
director of K E Corporate Services Limited (a company secretarial
services provider) since April 2016, the managing director of K E
Management & Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. since August 2015
and an independent non-executive director of Green Leader Holdings
Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 0061) from April 2014 to
January 2020. Ms. Leung was a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited
from August 2008 to October 2014.

Ms. Leung was admitted as a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (currently known as Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants) in the United Kingdom in July 1995. Ms. Leung
was also admitted as a fellow member of the CPA Australia in May
2004 and is currently a member of HKICPA. Ms. Leung obtained a
master’s degree in commerce from the University of New South Wales,
Australia in November 2002.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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B ot EH A R A
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of F8
Enterprises (Holdings) Group Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
97 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BHREER

BREESEE

RETEFRISRERMNEXHE - BRY
AR MBRENBETRAIEENTIR &
LEHEARMBABEREAMBHREAREA
BREETEIEN - AT SHELFHREH
BEREMNER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMETTNAEERRETSE

Allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") on trade
and other receivables

EZREMBERRRRMEFESE (FHEFEER]) BRE

Refer to Notes 5(b), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A2HEA M ERERMEESD) - 25526

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had trade receivables and
other receivables of approximately HK$76,596,000 and
HK$4,314,000, respectively (2019: HK$71,386,000 and
HK$3,650,000) and provision allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and other receivables of approximately
HK$1,771,000 and HK$716,000, respectively (2019:
HK$1,249,000 and HK$NIl).

M20205F3 A31 A - REEE ZEWGRIE KA M EKRIE S
RI#) 576,596,000 7T K 4,314,000 7T.(2019 4F : 71,386,000
77T 5 3,650,000 7T) - 2 5 FE WK IE I B fEUGRIE TR
B E R EREER D B4 /A1,771,0007% 7T K. 716,000/8 7T
(2019 4F : 1,249,000 7T R THETT) °

The determination as to whether trade and other
receivables are collectable involved high level of
management’ s judgement. Specific factors management
considered include the age of the balances, business
nature of customers, existence of disputes, recent historical
payment patterns and any other available information
concerning the creditworthiness of counterparties.
Management used these information to determine whether
a provision for impairment is required either for a specific
transaction or for a customer’ s balance overall.
BEESHMEMEWHIBREATWES REKFNERE
i - EREEZRNNTRERBIEERKREK  TREKN
B REFEFZE CHBRENTEARBAHFHESR
WEREMAESER ERECERFHENEERS
BT ERFNERE P ERERERME -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables included:
BMEEENE S RHEAM W IBERAE T HETHRE
FRE -

o Understanding and evaluating the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor its credit risk, and validating the control
effectiveness on a sample basis;

BRI EEECERNEREEERATE
MEmHEERR  THERIEZEERESA
R

J Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade and other receivables to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlements to
bank receipts;
mxiRE A BV BLENNE 5 &AM R RIER
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Key audit matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNNEEFARETSE

Allowance for expected credit losses on trade and
other receivables (Continued)

B2 kEMBERRARREEERRE (R

Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade and other receivables past due
as at year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
performing public search of credit profile of
selected customers, understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and
EHEEERAFHAOCANNSEERES LA
b MR TR AR S50 A e 7 32 i DA 7 i S s N R R (01
MEEERPEEMRRETARNAS ENEIH4L
BEMEZPNREEGER  REBEREERS
HESUREZER 2 MEMERER) : &

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit losses provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.

AETEHEERRRETERGRE  MEESH
R ABUBRNT AR EEE R TR - WERETE
FEEEEEIEFT AN RER (BIERE RATRIEER) -

We found that the management judgment and estimates

used to assess the recoverability of the trade and other

receivables and determine allowance for ECL on trade

and other receivables to be supportable by available

evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 3% BA R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B % B RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: P05895

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

melEaRkEMEEHKER

2020 2019
2020 2019 F
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2020F3 A31HILFEE Bt EE FET FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRECERK
Revenue I &5 6 439,338 229,718
Cost of sales $HE R N (415,521) (207,995)
Gross profit ER 23,817 21,723
Other gains or losses Hb e sk /Bia 8 291 802
Fair value change on contingent JER A RAE
consideration payables NFEZE 3,598 -
Administrative expenses THFAX (16,042) (11,342)
Other operating expenses Hibh B (3,135) (2,984)
Allowance for ECL on trade and other E 5 KHMEWHRIBFEHREES
receivables, net E R - FE (1,238) (1,249)
Profit from operations PRy 7,291 6,950
Finance costs BE A A 9 (1,363) (137)
Profit before taxation BR B AT A 10 5,928 6,813
Income tax expenses FRiS 5 2 11 (1,422) (1,477)
Profit for the year from FEREXBRBFRERR
continuing operations 4,506 5,336
DISCONTINUED OPERATION S JIb G F 3 S
Loss for the year from BRI TP EL
discontinued operation FNEE 12 - (4,532)
Profit for the year FREA 4,506 804
Other comprehensive loss FREMEZEER
for the year
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEEFHEEERN
profit or loss: HE
Fair value change on financial assets BRAES AEMEE
at fair value through other WS RERE
comprehensive income NEEES) (905) -
ltems that may be reclassified HEAgEEF I EZERD
subsequently to profit or loss: I5H :
Exchange differences on translating BREGINEBMIER Z5E
foreign operations (1,027) (27)
Reclassification for foreign operation FADLEGINEEER
disposed of during the year Pak| 27 -
(1,000) (27)
Other comprehensive loss for the BRERFAHM2EES
year, net of tax (1,905) (27)
Total comprehensive income FRAETEKREEE
for the year 2,601 777
Profit/(loss) for the year FREMER(BR) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZA/NIE Z S DN 4,664 804
Non-controlling interests FEPRRARHE 2 (158) -
4,506 804
Total comprehensive FREGKZEKRE (BX)
income/(expense) for the Mg
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company IN/NEIEZ =N 3,221 777
Non-controlling interests FEE AR R (620) -
2,601 777
Fetb (ER)EEBARAR / —Z_TFFR 97



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

melEaRkEMEEKER

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE2020F3A31HLLFE B E FHET THET
Earnings per share BRER
From continuing and discontinued REAREIRE ARG
operations attributable to the BESENERIE
owners of the Company 435 1 e 7
Basic and diluted (HK cents) %ZJX&E&% G 1) 16 0.58 0.10
From continuing operations Py oE 3
Basic and diluted (HK cents) E AR R ESE B 16 0.58 0.67

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

2020 2019
2020 2019
As at 31 March 2020 Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020%3A31H B & TR THT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - = MEE 17 20,494 9,960
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 18 245 -
Prepayment for right-of-use assets FHREEEENNKE 19 8,235 -
Deposits for property, plant and ME - BMEMKEZS
equipment 26 160 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEZH
profit or loss PRAE 22 4,678 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income W R E E 23 - -
Deferred tax assets EIEFIAE E 34 291 206
34,103 10,166
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 24 11,519 277
Trade receivables Z 5 rEWIE 25 76,596 71,386
Prepayments, deposits TERTRIE  me Rk
and other receivables Hth fE W 1A 26 11,153 4,913
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEER
profit or loss TREE 22 750 1,495
Pledged bank deposits SERITER 27 12,025 4,000
Cash and bank balances WL RIBITES 27 6,661 6,034
118,704 88,105
Assets of disposal group classified as DB AZFIEFEHE
held for sale EBEE 12 — 20,887
118,704 108,992
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B HRNFIBRENER 28 7,729 6,937
Accruals, other payables and EEtER - EibfENTUE K
deposits received Bz & 29 7,179 2,588
Contract liabilities ABHEaE 30 4,509 -
Bank borrowings IRITETX 31 16,090 3,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 252 -
Tax payables FERBiA 1,016 1,726
36,775 14,251
Liabilities of disposal group classified B AR{EFEHE
as held for sale £BaE 12 = 11,834
36,775 26,085
Net current assets REEEZEH 81,929 82,907
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERTBHERS 116,032 93,073
Fetb (ER)EEBARAR / —Z_TFFR 99



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE M BIR R &R

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 &
As at 31 March 2020 Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F3 A31H Bt EE FET FAT
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Contingent consideration payables FERTSARE 35 - 3,598
Bonds payable TERHES 33 8,800 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE 34 698 924
9,498 4,522
Net assets EEFE 106,534 88,551
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital B& R 36 8,000 8,000
Reserves = 83,772 80,551
Equity attributable to owners RAFIHE ANEEER
of the Company 91,772 88,551
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RS 14,762 -
Total equity HEER 106,534 88,551

Approved and authorised for the issue by the board of Directors on B 2020F 6 A26 HEE E St LIRET)

26 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by: B WA TATRERESSEE
Fong Chun Man Lo Pui Yee
FEX sz
Executive Director Executive Director
BHITEE HITEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  MizE A E4RE B ERER MBS ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZEBR

Attributable to owners of the Company

BATREAEL
Fair value
through Amounts
other relating to
Capital comprehensive disposal Non-
Share Share Other ~ contribution income  Exchange  groupheld  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve for sale earnings  Sub-total interest Total
RAFEHA KERE
5 EftRE HERE
B RMRE  HtEE 0 BEER  KERE  EXGR  ABEE  REEW Nt FERES &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr ThR Thx Thr Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn T T
For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Note ) (Note i) (Note i (Note iv) (Notev) (Note vi)
HENNFIANALEE (R (W) (BtaEii) (RfzEiv) (Mtv) (Bf3Evi)
At 1 April 2018 R01854A18 8,000 92 - 24,652 - - - 5901 87,774 - 87,774
Profitfor the year ERER - - - - - - - 804 804 - 804
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ £RE M2 ERE - - - - - 27 - - @0 27)
Profit and total comprehensive FrEfR2EhagE
income for the year - - - - - 20 - 804 m - T
Reclassification relating to BERERE
disposal group as held for sale HLEEENENSE - - - - - 7 2 - - -
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RO19EIANER
01954818 8,000 49,21 -+ 24,652 - - (27) 6,705 88,551 - 88,551
Profit/{loss) for the year ERER/(BE) - - - - - - - 4,664 4,664 (158) 4,506
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ EREHZESE - - - - (905) (565) 27 - (1,443) (462) (1,905)
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ F i FI R 2 ANG AR
for the year - - - - (905) (565) 27 4,664 3221 (620) 2,601
Recognisation of non-controlling interest  FEREM MR 1254 - - - - - - - - - 15,382 15,382
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3831R 8,000 49,21 -+ 24,652 (905) (565) - 11,369 91,772 14,762 106,534
Notes: LiEss
i) On 12 April 2017, 200,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were allotted (i) 722017 4 A 12 8B » 200,000,000 J% & % HE{E0.01 75

(i)

(iii)

and issued at a price of HK$0.32 per Share by way of Shares Offer.

Share premium represents the excess of shares issue over the par value.

Other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the total equity of
the subsidiaries and the aggregated share capital of the subsidiaries pursuant to the
Reorganisation where the transfer of the subsidiaries to the Company are satisfies
by issue of new shares from the Company. The balance was approximately HK$8.

Capital contribution reserve represents the amount of the financial impact arisen
from the transfer of business from Great Wall (International) Oil Company (Sole
Proprietorship Business) to Great Wall (International) Oil Limited.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income under

HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong.

The balance was approximately HK$8

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

(iv)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
BZE2020F3A31HLEE Bt EE FET FAT
Operating activities RETER
Profit/(loss) before taxation: BrEAER,(EE)
— Continuing operations — RBBREER 5,928 6,813
— Discontinued operation — ERIEREEE - (4,736)
5,928 2,077
Adjustments for: BUTREELAE
Finance costs BhE AR 9 1,363 137
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEMKRE
and equipment oliigey 8 (545) -
Depreciation of property, plant M - B RRETE
and equipment 17 2,231 2,437
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 18 1,224 -
Amortisation on intangible assets HiEEmTEE 20 — 815
Net loss/(gain) on financial assets at A EFFABTZ DR
fair value through profit or loss BERE (W) #E 8 471 (320)
Realised loss on financial assets at BATFEFABRD
fair value through profit or loss TREECELER 8 356 -
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HENRBAFEE 8 27 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 21 - 3,360
Allowance for ECL on H 5 R H b EWRIE
trade and other receivables TREMEEBEEE 25,26 2,257 1,249
Reversal of allowance for ECL on B 5 WA
trade receivables TEEME BB R A ROl 25 (1,019) -
Interest Income FLEWA 8 (41) -
Fair value change on contingent ERTSRAREBAFER
consideration payables (3,598) -
Operating cash flows before EELELRHH2KYE
movements in working capital ReERheE 8,654 9,685
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE g, SR (11,542) 65
Increase in trade receivables B 5 I FRIEIE N (5,739) (6,426)
Increase in deposits, prepayments e FENFUEREMER
and other receivables SRIEIE N (3,491) (5,600)
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FIEE N 1,948 1,602
Increase in accruals, other payables JEETER - HMEARIER
and deposits received RGN 3,974 3,300
Increase in contract liabilities SHREEEM 4,628 -
Cash (used in)/generated from KSR (R /FR8IR &
operating activities (1,568) 2,626
Income tax paid EATPTER (2,443) (5,041)
Net cash used in operating activities & EEFFARSEE (4,011) (2,415)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
BZ2020F3 A31HILLFEE Bt = FET FAT
Investing activities REEE
Deposits for property, plant and ME - BEREREES
equipment (160) -
Payment of acquisition of subsidiary, U B B /BB 1 RN 3R
net of cash acquired (BREKERE) - (8,304)
Prepayment for right-of-use assets FREEETENNZIE (8,452) -
Acquisition of property, plant WYX - BE MR
and equipment (13,087) -
Acquisition of financial assets at fair WHEIR A HEFT ABRE
value through profit or loss CRLEE (4,987) -
Net proceed from disposal of subsidiaries 1 & K& A 5] FT15 5 I8 F 58 46 4,491 -
Proceed from disposal of financial HEE QT ER ABR
assets at fair value through profit or EREEMSHIE
loss 227 -
Placement of pledged bank deposit FAREARITER (8,025) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - W%&?&ﬁ
plant and equipment P15 50 545 -
Interest income %'JE'MU\ 41 -
Net cash used in investing activities REEFEFFARLSTE (29,407) (8,304)
Financing activities BEEE
Capital contribution from —FNE R R TR E R
non-controlling interest of AE
a subsidiary 15,382 -
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITEFFTISIE 8,800 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERATSRIA 48,990 3,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EBRIBITER (35,900) -
Proceeds from bills payables FE EIBATISFRIE = 1,141
Repayments of bills payables BEENTEE (1,141) -
Repayments to lease liabilities BEHEAR (1,217) -
Repayments of obligations under BERAEMEERAE
finance leases = (188)
Interest paid [=ENEIES) (669) (137)
Net cash generated from RMETEHEREFHE
financing activities 34,245 3,816
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BERBESEEYN
and cash equivalents ®i O B8 827 (6,903)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURERBEEY
beginning of the year 6,041 13,179
Effect of foreign exchange rate BINEBEXREFHTE
changes on foreign operation (207) (235)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FREERBELEEY
of the year
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHEH 6,661 6,041
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BIE Al E 474 B T53h &R A 4E A E0 9
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 AILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on
30 March 2018. The registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Units 3304, 33/F, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Grand Tycoon Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). Grand Tycoon
Limited is controlled by Mr. Fong Chun Man (“Mr. Fong”), a
Director of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries principally engaged in the business of the sale and
transportation of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong
and the manufacturing and sale of steel products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands
(HK$'000), except when otherwise stated.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time in current year.

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

Leases
Prepayment Features with

—REH

ARARR2018F 3 A0 BBRIEARNER
MERESEMKIRERRBER AR -
XA B E) FE AT 3 % BR 7% Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands &2 &
BHFELEMBRBTENERELRRE
IR HEES T —E33EIBMUE - K
ANENEERERERRARAREZ AR
NAEl ZRARREBERES((HEE
RS DAMKY o AT ARAFHAK
NRAIESHEXEE(THEED EH -

ARBRREERRAR HNBLRFE
BEBBMFHE LB AR
MEMEXBRETFEARKMBE( S
B ) e EMEmMRIERHE

BRE IR IRAMBHRARRQA
BIhEEEMETT((BT D25 MAAE
BEZEESREZOTM(TET)

B PR 37 5T B B B RS 4B 4
(B BHEREEE ) R EE
ST
REFEREERNIFTE R MK
EEARAERT A

AEERAFEEREATIHELES
e AE ((EEEEAE ) BARH
Rl BB ME EA BRI -

FEMBHREER HE

104

Negative Compensation
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatment
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement
Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17”), and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

As a lessor

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.
Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on leases where the
Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting requirements are
brought forward from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the

cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
April 2019.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following practical

expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases

under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to

the respective lease contracts:

0]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with a
similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying assets
in similar economic environment. Specifically, discount rate
for certain leases of office in Hong Kong was determined
on a portfolio basis;

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date
of initial application in determining the lease term for the
Group's leases with extension and termination options; and

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by
applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment review.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental

borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial

application. The incremental borrowing rates applied by the

relevant group entities is 3.67%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

(i)

(iii)

the Group elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets to leases for which the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months from the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31
March 2020;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of lease with reasonably similar
characteristic (such as leases with a similar remaining lease
term for a similar class of underlying asset in a similar

economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the previous
assessment for onerous contract provisions as at 31 March
2019 as an alternative to performing an impairment review.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related
lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the

opening retained profits and comparative information has not

been restated.

2.
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108

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments
as disclosed in annual report as at 31 March 2019 to the opening
balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019:

P& H ¥ 7] & 78 B 15 3R 5 2 A
%ﬁiﬁﬁ!ﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂj)&ﬁﬂ%
Al A (%)

ERMBREENE 16 RHEE(H)
HEEZ (F)
1ERAHNA (BB)

TEREFN2019FI AN HEFRIFE
FEEHEREEM2019F4 A1 8 #E
RO EaERVAHRNEER

HK$'000

FHET

Operating lease commitment at 31 March 2019 R 20194 3 A 31 B EHERIE 1,808

Less: total future interest expenses W KRR E A ERE (30)

Less: recognition exemption — short term leases  Jg : R E—REHEE (309)

Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 R2019F 4 1EHMNHEEERE 1,469
Analysis as: FaRiv=1E

Non-current IERE 251

Current E 1,218

1,469

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified
as operating leases have been recognised at an amount equal to
the amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of
financial position at 31 March 2019.

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1
April 2019 comprises the following:

HERMDBAKEHENHEERBNE
REEECREENRSGHEHEABD R
RN TRABR - LN 2019F3 A
3B BN KRAERBREZEEN
ERFEN SREHENRE BT -

R2019F4 A 1BEERAMERAEEER
HEBENTEE :

HK$'000
FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases B FE R BB E ERIZE 165712
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 BERNKLHEBHNEREEE 1,469
By class: AR -
Office premise NS 1,469
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial

ER#HITEBMBERE
(BB ERELED ) REE
HE:NE )

ERMBREENE 16 RHEE(H)
HEEZ (F)
1ERAHNA (BB)

TR IR N E B RS 2R F 1655
HAREBN2019F4 A1 HNEA TH
MRARNTE RS ENE

position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

BY T EFEA -

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported HKFRS 16
at 31 March at 1 April
2019 Adjustments 2019
SRl R2019 F
R2019F AR1BRE
3H31H EEMERE
2|/H ZERIZE 1655
BREE HE  FEMNREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHTT
Line items in the consolidated ZRMAE B KREXEL
statement of financial F16 R ENFZEMK
position impacted by the MRKIEE -
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 1,469 1,469
Total non-current assets EMENEELE 10,166 1,469 11,635
Lease liabilities (current) HEAEGRR) - 1,218 1,218
Total current liabilities BB EEEE 26,085 1,218 27,303
Net current assets MENEEFE 82,907 (1,218) 81,689
Total assets less current BEAERREEE
liabilities 93,073 251 93,324
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBEGERE) - 251 251
Total non-current liabilities IEmBE ERE 4,522 251 4,773
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110

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material'
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related Rent Concession®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued
in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards,
will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and related interpretations issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosure requirements by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basic of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
applications of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basic of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidation financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, together with the fair value of any
contingent consideration payable.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets and contingent
liabilities acquired is recorded as goodwill. Where the fair values
of the identifiable net assets and contingent liabilities acquired
have been determined provisionally, or where contingent or
deferred consideration is payable, adjustments arising from their
subsequent finalisation are not reflected in the statement of
profit or loss if (i) they arise within 12 months of the acquisition
date and (i) the adjustments arise from better information about
conditions existing at the acquisition date (measurement period
adjustments). Such adjustments are applied as at the date of
acquisition and if applicable, prior period amounts are restated.

All changes that are not measurement period adjustments are
reported in income other than changes in contingent
consideration not classified as financial instruments, which are
accounted for in accordance with the appropriate accounting
policy, and changes in contingent consideration classified as
equity, which is not remeasured.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies as
business combination, except for those acquisitions which qualify
as a common control combination and are therefore accounted
for using the merger accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value for
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange and, all acquisition-related
costs are expensed. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policy adopted by the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provide to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocation resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Non-current assets (or subsidiary) held-for-sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset or disposal group and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Non-current assets (or subsidiary) held-for-sale
(Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of
an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate, the
investment or the portion of the investment that will be disposed
of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described above
are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment is classified as held for sale.
Any retained portion of an investment in an associate that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for
using the equity method. The Group discontinues the use of the
equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal results
in the Group losing significant influence over the associate.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any
retained interest in the in accordance with HKFRS 9 unless the
retained interest continues to be an associate, in which case the
Group uses the equity method.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of profit or
loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to
a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Revenue from the from sale and transportation of diesel oil,
related products and steel product in the Group’s revenue
happen at a point in time and do not include any significant
separate performance obligations.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to
a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange
for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified good
or service provided by another party before that good or service
is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent,
it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency, have
been converted into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities
have been translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand- alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of ownership
interests of a property which includes both leasehold land and
non-lease building components, unless such allocation cannot be
made reliably.

F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FESFHBEK @)

ShEE (8)

RiraPBmERD  EREAFRIR
AEE2INEBENEE2IINBEBINES
BUYHHRRCEBRAET - EERA
EERBERROBMERTRERE
TCe WARRXBRXR S B AITE
FIE /BT WIRHmEBEHFIHE
KE - AIIRRZERT TG ANEND -
HItEFEENEREZECEEMBERE
Yoak MRER - WA mAEL FEETE
SRR e

HEBINEBR  ZFELZENER
NER AL E RS HERN—#ED ©

HE(REMI2BERIXEREE
R EERFE165ER)

HEES

8 E A BT A D — B B Re) 942 W T i BI &
ENARUARBRENER  BIE0A
HEEMHEE -

PR B R ER B IS 2RI BIERT 3
REBEHFMELNANME - AEH
REBEEBMHRELEAF165E TAE
ENE - BRAMKEAR(NSE
B HEZEHNERERABEEE < BR3F
BRNEREIREERERES - BRI
BRAHOS T TEMNE

FEBMEREBA (RBME2BEKX
ERERBMBREEUE165RE)
DEREZE KK ES S

Es —BESAKE D M —EXZIE
BMOMEEFFEEEARB A LM
5 AKEREBEHEEAKE DA E
BERKIFHEAKRI DR EFERA
MEEHRESEESEREERE
o BREB-EME(BEHELR
FHEBRTHENE D) HREERENE
%) BRIEAEE DT BRI AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account
for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight- line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the

lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease

if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Lease (Prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to leasees. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as a lessee (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1
April 2019)

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019)
(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1
April 2019) (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are included.

Retirement benefits costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries and an associate were required to contribute a
certain percentage of the payroll of their staff to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the

initial recognition exemption.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account of their residual value, on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvement Over the lease terms
Motor vehicles 30%-33%

Office equipment 20%-33%

Oil barge 10%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at each reporting date.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of property plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. These liabilities
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that are
not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. Contingent assets are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
with absorption cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Absorption cost represents
the amount of proportion of direct cost and indirect cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in banks and deposits held at call with
banks.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the financial
assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other revenue
and other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“"FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently of HKFRS 9 measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the "“other gains and losses” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period. Assessment are done based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on its historical observed default rates which is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting period
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

FESFHBEK @)

SRMIAME)

ERMEE(E)

@A ERE(E)

EERBRAREE N

Rt EERR B P EBARREX
BIRINES - AEREELRER T ARNK
SHRHREONEAREZSRTAR
VI HER B MR Z OO R - 1ELLFF
i AEEEERAEAENEENR
EUHER BT emetgnkBAT
EBZRARB N ESORIEIEE
£t e

LER FHEEER
SEETINER

B B AR L N By

o BT AN (INE)XAIEEF
RNERNFERERER(

e FEERBRMNIMBHEEERER
b PlEREERZREE N - E
AREEEQRE BER

o X MBREEINANIREXNTE
AN S IERE BT ABITHE
BIE B (EaE I AIE N

o ERAKEEEERNTBHRESR
1t

s EBAFEMNEE  EEIEIMR
SRNERKBHERTHESHEHK
BEHABITEEH R TN KE T

2

i Bt P & Ranfel - REBRR
HAEHNNFEHEB308 - AEERR
B YRR LARD KIEIE N - HERAE
BEA SRR SEMNERBRE NI IELN
RIS PRI o
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables are each assessed as a separate group);

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, bonds payable,
lease liabilities, trade and bills payables, deposits received,
accruals and other payables (excluding receipt in advance)) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFEE®
(Continued)
Related parties transactions (Continued) BEE X5 (E)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) HITE AT ERMEE  BNE e A
conditions applies: SEERE
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same iy %EREASEBR -—S£E
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and KR E AR (BIERRF] - M
fellow subsidiaries is related to the others); NGNS A E =N Y)g
ZEEEBE)
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEEAR —TEMNHE
entity or an associate or joint venture of a member of NAlEGEE (KBS —F2
a group which the other entity is a member; BRERRINEEETKE
DA E QARG &1
%)
(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third (il MEEEHAR —F=1HH
party; BERE:
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HEBAE=-FEENE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE MR —EBEBARZ
FE=ZFERNBE AR
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the vy ERARAEELHEAEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EBENEENEENZEM
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, R RBER R AT A - A
the sponsoring employees are also related to the EBAGAEBE - HR
Group; EETTEAEEFRHE
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EEEX()FTHEAIEALTIES
person identified in (a); s L [EE S
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) P (a)i) P A M A =¥ &H 88
over the entity or is a member of the key management BERFENNBZER (X
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or ZERHSEAR)TEERE
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEBEXZEEFBESRE 2
part, provides key management personnel services to ERKE R A RAEEIE AR
the Group or to the Company'’s parent. NAIERARIEHEEERE
ABRRTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person'’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources or obligations between the Group
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the management have made in the
process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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146

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 5(b).

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables is approximately HK$76,596,000 and
HK$4,314,000 (net of loss allowance of HK$1,771,000 and
HK$716,000). The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group's
trade and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 5(b), 25
and 26.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for indications of impairment at each
reporting period. In analysing potential impairments
identified, the Group uses projections of future cash flows
from the assets based on management'’s assignment of a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

U

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgment is required in determining provision
for taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amount that we initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Valuation of inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Management estimate the net realisable value for
finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. In addition, the
management perform an inventory review on a product by
product basis at the end of each reporting period and
assess the need for write down of inventories.

Determining the lease term

As explained in Note 3, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease term
at the commencement date for leases that include renewal
options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to
the Group's operation. The lease term is reassessed when
there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.
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148

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. ¢®ITA
Categories of financial instruments (@) &I EAEER
2020 2019
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets SREE
At amortised cost (including cash and — #Z# §EK 7K (B 5 &
bank balances) RIR7THEER)
— Trade receivables — B F WA 76,596 71,386
— Deposits and other receivables — Be R HEMEWRIAE 5,387 4,707
— Pledged bank deposits — BEMIRITER 12,025 4,000
— Cash and bank balances —IRe hiBITESR 6,661 6,034
100,669 86,127
At fair value BR-FE
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEFFABHN S MEE
profit or loss 5,428 1,495
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEFFAH MM EEREW
other comprehensive income DRLEE - -
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Amortised cost #EHER R
— Trade and bills payables — B S RNRIERENERE 7,729 6,937
— Accruals, other payables and —EFEA - HtENFIER
deposits received Btz e 7,179 2,508
— Bank borrowings — RITIEK 16,090 3,000
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 252 -
— Bonds payable — ENES 8,800 -
40,050 12,445
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The management monitor and manage the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risks reports which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk
(including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, financial assets at FVTPL,
financial assets at FVTOCI, trade and bills payables,
accruals, other payables, bank borrowings, lease liabilities
and bonds payable. Details of these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets, mainly the interest-bearing bank balances,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The Group
monitors the interest rate exposure on a continuous
basis and adjusts the portfolio of bank saving
balances and borrowings where necessary.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings and bills payables. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50-basis point increase or decrease throughout the
reporting period is used internally for assessment of
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$67,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$17,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank borrowings and bills
payables.
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5.

150

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities. The
Directors of the Company manage this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk
is mainly concentrated in equity securities listed in
Malaysia industry sector quoted in ACE Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the years ended
31 March 2020 and 2019. The Directors of the
Company will monitor the risks and consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

If the prices had been 15% higher/lower, the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
increase/decrease by HK$94,000 (2019: HK$187,000)
as a result of change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances.
At 31 March 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amounts of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables

Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit terms. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as to the
economic environment.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arises when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.

In respect of trade receivables arising from the sale
and transportation of diesel oil and related products
in Hong Kong and steel products in the PRC, the
Group has a concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. At the end of each reporting
period, the five largest receivable balances accounted
for approximately 64% (2019: approximately 59%) of
the trade receivables and the largest trade receivable
was approximately 34% (2019: approximately 16%) of
the Group's total trade receivables respectively from
diesel oil business. The Directors closely monitor the
risk exposure of the customers and would take
appropriate action to ensure the risk exposure is
acceptable.
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5.

152

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management
reviews the recoverability of each trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowance for ECL are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group applies simplified approach on
trade receivables to provide for the ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9. The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. @I Am
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BHEREEEERBEE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) (i) EERBREBEFG(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) B ZEWIE (8)
The following table provides information about the TRIEBMHA BEASER 2020
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FR201963A31BE 5 E
receivables as at 31 March 2020 and 2019: WHIBMEERR &XIBEHE
BEEEER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIE A R AR E EERE
At 31 March 2020 % HK$'000 HK$'000
M 20203 A31H % FET FET
Current (not past due) BNHA (R HER) 0.95 44,146 (421)
1-90 days past due #H1£90H 2.87 25,009 (719)
91-180 days past due #EI91 £ 180 H 6.57 4,583 (301)
181-365 days past due #HF181 & 365 H 7.25 2,483 (180)
1 year to 2 years —EWF 6.98 2,136 (149)
More than 2 years BB F 10.00 10 (1)
2.26 78,367 (1,771)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAES 18 R RERH(E Eria e
At 31 March 2019 % HK$'000 HK$'000
M2019F3 A31H % FAT FAT
Current (not past due) BNHA (SR HA) - 49,630 -
1-90 days past due BHEA1E90H - 10,854 -
91-180 days past due #HI91 £ 180 H 0.66 6,201 41)
181-365 days past due #HI181 2 365 H 3.74 4,926 (184)
More than 1 year HBiE—F 100.00 1,024 (1,024)
1.72 72,635 (1,249)

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE S AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 AILFE

5.

154

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
The closing loss allowances of expected credit losses
for trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2020
and 2019 reconciled as follows:

5. @I A
(b) HMBEKRSEBERRE(H)

(i)

FERRBRBERNG(E)

B NG IE ()

MN202049F 2201943 A318 -
HEEE 5 REAMmERFIE
EHEEEENBBREEN
HERWT -

Trade Other
receivables  receivables Total
BEZEWFE HitEWRIE et
HK'000 HK'000 HK’'000
FH&TT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2018 R2018F 4 A1 H - - -
Increase in loss allowance FRRIBEPER
recognised in profit or loss ETIE RN
during the year (1,249) - (1,249)
At 31 March 2019 and 7R2019F 3 A31H
1 April 2019 K 2019F4H1H (1,249) - (1,249)
Increase in loss allowance FARIE R
recognised in profit or loss &5 18 A 1
during the year (1,541) (716) (2,257)
Reversal of loss allowance FARE=THER
recognised in profit or loss iR H RO
during the year 1,019 - 1,019
At 31 March 2020 A 202063 H831H (1,771) (716) (2,487)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments for a period
greater than agreed contract terms.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 2 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statement.

The management monitored the financial background
and creditability of those debtors on an ongoing
basis. The Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing
with counterparties which have good credit history.
Majority of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have no default payment history. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Deposits

For deposits, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of deposits based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The Directors
of the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of deposits.
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5.

156

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables

In respect of the other receivables, the credit quality
has been individual assessed by general approach
with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rate 19.62% and financial
position of the counterparties. The Group recognised
the allowance for expected credit losses by assessing
the credit risk characteristics of other receivables
discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and
considering the prevailing economic conditions.
During the year end 31 March 2020, the Group net
provision of the allowance for the expected credit
losses related to the other receivables was amount of
HK$716,000 (2019: HK$NIl).

Deposits with bank

In respect to the Group's pledged bank deposits and
cash and bank balances, the Group limits its exposure
to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institution with high credit rating and no recent history
of default. Given the high credit ratings of the banks,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations. Management will continues to
monitor the position and will take appropriate action
if their are changed. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in relation to deposit with bank.

In these regards, other than the credit risks mentioned
above, the management considers the Group does
not have any other significant credit risk and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.
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)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a
substantial portion of its financial assets and financial
liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its
operations from existing shareholders’ funds and
internally generated cash flows.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and
cash deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of
fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
current and expected liquidity requirements on a
regular basis.
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(b)
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5.

158

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(iii)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BBEBREEEEREEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) MBELEAR(E)
The following tables detail the Group's contractual TRAJNAEESREESN
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have EREHE - TRELSR
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows BEMNABRIBSRERE
of financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on AEBAEFTFEMNRNZR
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables HEIRE - WEIENE KR
include both interest and principal cash flows. SIRERE °
The tables below analyse the Group's financial T 5% 7 & 1% ME B BR AR Rl
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on AREEMSRMAE D HEE
the remaining period at the end of reporting period HEDW - D EAERR
to the contractual maturity date. Specifically, bank HHREEHIN BB BT &
borrowings with repayable on demand clause are Hiffl - THE EEZXE
included in “on demand or within one year” BIGRRSRITIERAA[EE
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to KR —FR] - TimiRTTE
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non- BITEEBEM AT - H
derivative financial liabilities are prepared based on IESTAE M ABENEIEAE
the agreed repayment dates. The amounts disclosed DiEHTERBHMmMER -
in the table are based on the contractual TRIABESBEIHIEREL
undiscounted payments, are as follows: ARERAF HAOT
More than ~ More than
Weighted ~ Ondemand one year but two years but Total
average or within less than lessthan ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear  two years five years five years cash flow amount
il EZR BB-F BBRF RERRE
THFR g-FR  BOREE BOREEF BBAF REAR fREfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAL TEL TEL TAT TEL TEL
As at 31 March 2020 2020538318
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3£+ 4 REE
Trade and bills payables B oENTERENER - 7,729 - - - 7,729 7,729
Accruals, other payables and B ER - EttEMAFTER
deposits received Bl - 7179 - - 7179 7179
Bank borrowings BITER 34 16,230 - - 16,230 16,090
Lease liabilities BERE 3.67 253 - - 253 252
Bonds payable ERES 10.00 880 8,984 - 9,864 8,800
32,211 8,984 - 41,255 40,050
As at 31 March 2019 R2019F3A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3 {74+ 4 REE
Trade and bills payables ZORAFERENZR - 6937 - - 6,937 6,937
Accruals EER - 2,508 - - 2,508 2,508
Bank borrowings RITRER 4.88 3012 - - 3012 3,000
12,457 - - 12,457 12,445

5. @I A
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

5. 2@ A
(b) HMBEEKRESEBERRE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) MBELEAR(E)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause M5 1 2 BB G R R IRTT
are included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” fERRET AL ERIHA AT R [
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 Zskek DR —@EA | A -
March 2020, the aggregate carrying amounts of these 2020663 A31H - ZE R
bank borrowings amounted to HK$16,090,000 (2019: TTHE R ARBRTE 4 16,090,000
HK$3,000,000). Taking into account the Group's & 70 (20194 : 3,000,000 7%
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it IL) ° E E B K E H B Ik
is probable that the banks will exercise their Mo EBERRBRITHE A 88
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. BITHREBRIEEERENEE
The Directors of the Company believe that such bank Ko RANBIEERE  Z%Z%
borrowings will be repaid within one year after the IRITE KRB BRIFRITER
end of the reporting period in accordance with the EPTEATEFEERE HR®
scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank FHRZB—FREER &
borrowings agreements, details of which are set out HENTX -
in the table below:
Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings with a B — MR EKIERIE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled B IRTT 18 5 (B R E A
repayments Z)
Less than  Undiscounted Carrying
1year  cash outflows amount
KRB
PR-F RERLE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL FERL AT
31 March 2020 20203 A31H 16,230 16,230 16,090
31 March 2019 201963 H31H 3,012 3,012 3,000
Feb¥ (ER)EBMBERAR/ —T_TFFR 159
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

160

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

(i)

(ii)

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in
active markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively,
and

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models (e.g. discounted cash flow
analysis using observable and/or unobservable
inputs).

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining

and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilities,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

5. 2@ A

(c) DFEMFE)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets are measured at AEBSREEMNAFEUNRES
fair value on a recurring basis. MEEN A ERE -
Fair value as at
RUTBHANATE
Valuation Significant
Fair Value Techniques unobservable
Financial assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019  hierarchy and key inputs inputs
HERER FETTRE
TMEE 2020638318 2019437318 ATEZR IRGAER A DN -t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Financial assets at FVTPL: 750 1,495 Level 1 Quoted market N/A
— Equity securities listed in Malaysia & prices in an Tam
BATEANBRNEREE : active market
— RS RAE S L mHRAE S RERTS
FrRmmIEEAE
— Key management personnel life 4,678 - Level 2 Quoted redemption N/A
insurance policy F_R value by insurance TEH
—FEERAEASRE company
LalVNGIE )
EOEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI:
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements
BRATEF AR ZERENEREE -
F=RATEENHE
— Unlisted equity investment in - - Level 3 Market approach  Discount for lack
Hong Kong F=R &% of marketability
—ERBNFE LTRERE of 16%
Rz REE
16% 565
Except as disclosed as above, the Directors consider the br LT EEIN EERBEHEIHEK
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities ARGEEMBRERARNEREERS

recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial

statements approximates to their fair values.

RAGREEEZEQFERS -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

162

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets.

5. @I A

(c) DFEMFE)
ERMEEE=-RLQFEHFENY
E\% o

Unlisted equity

JE FTiE R
HK$'000
FHET

At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 M2018F 4 A1BE2019F 3 A31H
and 1 April 2019 20194 A1 H -

Initial recognition of financial assets at FVTOCI & AF{EzT A B4 2 Em k=AY

TRUEE B RHER 905
Fair value change N EE (905)

At 31 March 2020

A 2020563 H831H _

FEAEM 2 E YRR TR AR E H

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
HK$905,000 loss relating to financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income held at the end of
the current reporting period and is reported as fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve.

No sensitivity analysis was performed as at 31 March 2020
due to the nil balance of unlisted equity.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged during the reporting period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total
borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and injection of capital.

5. 2@ A

EXmEpER

AEBEEREER  AHERERER
Frgge R ERE(ER kg
BAERBRREREADER - AE
ENEBERRENRSHEES T

(d)

IR A RIS MKR IR - ANEH
HERNRBEBREAER AR AE
BARGED  BEFEEEAN -
B AR R

ARREFTHENEARE - K
KEEERENRAREZERIE
AEBROER - WFEBIKMRE R
TEFEREBENGRE -

The following is the gearing ratio at the end of each LT ASREHAmEERGBLH
reporting period: b2
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings (Note (a)) AR (P (a) 25,142 3,000
Total equity (Note (b)) 1aRERs (MIFE (b)) 106,534 88,551
Gearing ratio BEAMBLE 23.6% 3.4%
Notes: ffeE -
(a)  Total borrowings represent bank borrowings, lease liabilities and (@) 45 FRAE M FE30 ~ 31 R 32FTE IR 1T
bonds payable as set out in Notes 30, 31 and 32; and Bk HEBBEMENES &
(b)  Total equity includes share capital and reserves at the end of each (b) AERERBESRERARNOBAREE -

reporting period.
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6.

164

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. An analysis of the
Group's revenue for the reporting period is as follows:

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

LoE
WatEo ERmNERFE(HKREE

BRI - AEBR HREHEAK
mAIE

KEEFPAHNNREDHF

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Type of goods or services BmRREESR
Goods transferred at a point of time REREEZETR
Sale of diesel oil and related products SHE Seom R ARREE M@
Diesel oil L5 271,646 213,612
Marine diesel oil MR Sm 55,696 14,439
Lubricant oil B 777 1,667
328,119 229,718
Sales of steel products 5 & 3 E W 111,219 -
Total revenue from contracts with KEEFENMNAKRZFH
customers 439,338 229,718

The Group operates in two continuing operating segment for the
sale of diesel oil and related products in Hong Kong and sale of
steel products in the PRC.

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Details of performance obligations for contracts with customers
for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 3.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All revenue from sale of diesel oil and related products are for
the periods of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

A single management team reports to the Directors (being the

chief operating decision-maker (the

“CODM")) who

comprehensively manage the entire business. During the year,
the Group commenced the business in engaging in the sales of
steels products, and it is considered as a new operating and

reputable segment by the CODM.

China Forest Food Limited and its subsidiaries (“China Forest
Food Group”) constitute a major line of business in sale and
distribution of health food. Upon the Group entered the sale and
purchase agreement in relation to disposal of 90% equity interest
in China Forest Food Group on 28 March 2019, it reclassified as
discontinued operation and the segment information reported
below does not include any amounts for the discontinued

operation, which are disclosed the details in Note 12.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are

as follows:

° Sale and transportation of diesel oil and related products

o Sale of steel products

Segment revenues and results

Continuing operations

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by

reportable and operating segment:

N
okk
=
s

B 3

E-EEEERRNEEEEERERN
ER(MEBLERRE([ZELERR
HIER - REBPNFARBRERE
MIBEER MIBLEREEREA
e EFEEREESE -
FERMRRERARRENB LA
([PEHMARREE D ERERER M
ERDHEBNEZLD - BH2019F 3
E%E$%E%ﬁ%¢ﬁﬁwﬁ5%5
0% MEHEMT L EE ik HIEH
DEAEDKRILEEEL M TNX23F
B S E R N B E B AR I L E T
ES5E (EBRHE 12 HE) -
W§'$%lmﬁé‘ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ

D fm

>m
/I
MR
oo

o
3

2FHEWT

o  RmNMBEMERNEER

o MEMBKAE

DU R EE
BEREEK
AT B 23 kg

KRR EENDT

FaE iR S

i)

Sale and transportation
of diesel oil and Sale of
related products steel products Unallocated Consolidated
KuRABERHE
REH AEMHEE WA R &4
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 019 2020% 019 2020% 0196 2020% 20194
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
TRn TEr TEx T TER TERT  TExn  TERn
Revenue Wz 328119 229718 111,219 - - - 439338 229718
Segment result DiEEE 8,608 9,614 (350) - (1,258) (3,466) 7,000 6,148
Other segment information: HippaEst
Other gain or losses Eth R e 291 802
Finance costs BERAK (1,363) (137)
Profit before taxation BB AR T 5,928 6,813
Assets and liabilities AENEE
Segment assets NHEE 107,858 91,929 40,427 - 4,522 6,342 152,807 98,271
Segment liabilities AHEE 27,614 14304 8,005 - 10654 4469 46,213 18773
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7.

166

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit/(loss) represents the profit/(loss) from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, other gains or
losses, fair value change on contingent consideration payables,
certain allowance for ECL on other receivables and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, certain
prepayment, certain other receivables, certain bank and
cash balances and other assets for corporate use;

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than bonds payable, certain accruals and other liabilities for
corporate use.
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

Continuing operations

Sale and transportation
of diesel oil and related

7.

DEER (&)

Htt o5&
FRREER

products Sales of steel products Unallocated Consolidated
ShRERER
HERES AEREE e B&a
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020  2019F 2020  2019F 2020 20194  2020%  2019F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
TEr T#x TEx Thr TEx TEr  TExn  TEx
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBERFEE - - = - (27) - (27) -
Additions to non-current assets  FEREEERE 510 - 12,577 - - - 13,087 -
Depreciation on property, n¥ BEREERE
plant and equipment (2,222) (2,424 9) - - - (2,231) (2,424
Depreciation on right-of-use assets {FFREZENE (1,224) - - - - - (1,224) -
Gain of disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment Bl 545 - - - - - 545 -
AllowanceforECLontrade and B 5 R EfoEUFIETEH
other receivable, net EEBERE 38 (516) (1,249 (6) - (716) - (1,238) (1,249)
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets & AT Ei ABZNE R
at fair value through profit or loss B & (E518) /W %8 - - - - (471) 390 (471) 390
Realised loss on financial assets A T{ER ABEA
atfair value through profitorloss £ BEECEREE = - = - (356) - (356) -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information
Continuing operations

The Group's operation is located in Hong Kong and PRC during
the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. The Group's revenue
from continuing operations from external customers based on
the location of customers are detailed below:

DEER (&)

B E R

HECERE

B ZE20205F R 201963 A3 HIEFE -
AEBNEBUREERTE - AEE
BEPHREHLE N KREINDEFPHIHE
REEH W F BT -

Revenue from external customer

RENDEFLE
Year ended
BENTRELEE

31/3/2020 31/3/2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
3HA31H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong B8 328,119 229,718
PRC F 111,219 -
439,338 229,718
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)

Information about the Group's non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets are detailed

DEER (&)
1 78 B} ()
=Y P AF T A¢ )

REBREEMEMIE D 25 EIER
HEENHEBERFBHT

below:
Non-current assets
IRBEE

31/3/2020 31/3/2019
2020 F 2019 4
3H31H 3A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 8,653 9,960
PRC H 20,481 -
29,134 9,960

Non-current assets excluded financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as

FERDEETBRRAFEFAREME
MmN EREE RO FER ARS
NEBEENMBERBREE °

FREEEFNESR

RIERFE  EFERMEAKEE KRS
1838 10% H sz an T

follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Customer A ZEA = 51,449
Customer B’ =5 B! 45,415 —*
Customer C' ZHEC 45,581 —*
Customer D' Z2HED 71,455 —*
* The customer contributed less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group. * BRIRABTBMEAR S BB DR 10% ©
Note: B E

! Revenue from the diesel oil and related products.

' S R AE R E m i o
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8.

170

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES

8. HttWmsiEiE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT T
Continuing operations BEREXK
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HFE KR EHO KR
plant and equipment 545 -
Realised loss on financial assets BATEF ARG SREE
at fair value through profit or loss E#BEE (356) -
Unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets A EFFABZNE©/MEE
at fair value through profit or loss REIR (Ei8), W (471) 390
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HENRBAREIE (27) -
Bank interest income (Note) HRATA WA (BFEE) 41 -
Transportation services fee ERRGE 452 243
Rental income from diesel vehicle REHEHERNHESKA 79 135
Sundry income KA 28 34
291 802

Note: Bank interest income mainly represents interest generated from the share

offer fund deposited in bank.

FINANCE COSTS

SEENTIR -

9. BEMAE

BiRE - RITHBRA T BERFARITHRMN BITE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Interest expenses on bank borrowings ARRAFAEEERIRT
wholly repayable within five years BEFMF B 632 134
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts HRITEZ W B 8 1
Interest expenses on bonds BEENF B 694 -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENNERAX 29 -
Interest expenses on obligations under RMERERENTEFHY
finance leases - 2
1,363 137
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10.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

10. BRELATEF

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFET FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived FREMNEMNBR(GEA) THIEE
at after charging/(crediting):
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) FEEM(FHFE13) 2,920 2,512
Other staff costs: Hih8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits — e MEMmET 6,985 2,108
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIRBFIGT 85K
contributions 360 87
7,345 2,195
Auditors’ remuneration % 85 B 25 B
— Audit services — ZEBRTS 700 700
— Non-audit services — IEZERTE 120 -
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERINFERA
as expenses 409,278 202,855
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB RBETE (FiEE17)
equipment (Note 17)
— Cost of sales — HEKAR 1,790 2,018
— Administrative expenses — ITHAX 441 419
2,231 2,437
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (H:E18)
(Note 18) 1,224 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE R&ENKE
plant and equipment (545) -
Allowance for ECL on trade and ZSNEMBWFIETERER
other receivable, net EriEEE - FRE
Allowance for ECL on trade receivables B o EWRIBIEHEEEERE 1,541 1,249
Allowance for ECL on other receivables HEib el R IBIEH = BB RE 716 -
Reversal of allowance for ECL on B S EBGATEREEEE
trade receivables BRI (1,019) -
1,238 1,249
Operating lease rental expenses MAEYENKEHER A
in respect of office premises - 1,636
FEE¥ (IR EBMBR AR/ —E_TFFH 171
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11.

172

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

11. FIEFHHAX

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
Continuing operations BEREXK
Current tax BNH#AHE IR
Hong Kong Profit Tax ARG 1,733 1,942
The PRC Enterprise income tax PR RS - -
Deferred tax EEHIE
Credited for the year (Note 34) FRE L (F5E34) (311) (465)
1,422 1,477

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 millions of assessable profits of qualifying corporations
will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2
millions will be taxed at 16.5%. The assessable profits of
corporations not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-
tiered profits tax rates regime is applicable to the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 millions of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 millions.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 1. FREHAX @)

12.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the FAMSHAYHGSEBERREMEE
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss W R FTHI E R TR R R e B8R 20T
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
2020 2019 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Profit before taxation BB AR T 5,928 6,813
Tax at domestic income tax rates WEMATEHR R EMTIE 978 1,124
Tax effect of: s 2
Tax relief of 8.25% on first HK$2 million B2 H S8BT EREEN
assessable profit 8.25% T 5 F Rk (165) (165)
Tax effect of incomes not taxable for BARTRANR G &
tax purpose (794) (1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  NA[FFLF T T 52 &
tax purpose 815 693
Tax effect of temporary differences RS NS E (311) (465)
Tax effect of the tax losses not recognised KIERTRIBE BN ETE 949 469
Effect on different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 Efth B35 @ 2 EH B A FH
operating in other jurisdiction TRBETE (30) (48)
Tax reduction TR (20) (20)
Income tax expenses for the year FERERHRX 1,422 1,477

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS HELD
FOR SALE

On 28 March 2019, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement to dispose the 90% equity interest in China
Forest Food Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiary (the “"China Forest Food Group”)
which engaged in sale and distribution of health food business,
at total consideration approximately of HK$8,148,000. The
disposal was completed on 9 April 2019, on which date the
control of China Forest Food Group ceased. There were no
movement between the date 1 April 2020 to 9 April 2019.

12. %%Jﬁ%&“%i@/ﬁﬂi =EE

20193 A28H - AK’EI‘ETQW%FF
EEHEUALEARR =2 EMBR
Tqﬂlmmﬁuuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁrﬁ%@ﬂ
(TFEGMRLEE]  TEREHER
DHEERERMER) 0% - BRED
78,148,000/ 7T o & FIEMN 2019F 4
A9BSR » WHE B & LR & B R
BEmEEMZESI# - 120204818
E2019F4 A9BWEEE) -
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS HELD 12. BRI Q& %7k HEFEE

FOR SALE (Continued)

The result from the discontinued operation for the year, which

have been included in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss, were as follows:

E )

EAREGEERNFADRKRIERER
BEEMT

HK$'000
FET
Revenue sk 44,808
Cost of sales HEKA (44,348)
Gross profit EH 460
Other gains HAb W as 13
Impairment loss on goodwill EE R ERE (3,360)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (1,849)
Loss before taxation bR AT E 1B (4,736)
Income tax expense FRiS il 2 204
Loss for the year FNEE (4,532)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR R #E (B (0.57)

Loss for the year from discontinued operation has been arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

ERIEEXBOFABRE NG GG
AN TFHIEIE

HK$'000
THET

Discontinued operation BRI EER
Auditors’ remuneration A EIER =
Directors’ emoluments EE=0) =
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRA 43,547
Depreciation (Note 17) PrE (HEE17) 13
Exchange gain, net HE 5 e - HER (12)
Operating lease rental in respect of leased premises HHEW XML EHEHE S 183
Staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) BIRA(TBRIEEESM) 445
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EHH 815
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS HELD

FOR SALE (Continued) E (#8)

The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as disposal
group held for sale in relation to the discontinued operation as at

12. BRILREX BESEE

R2019F3A31H  LTEERBER
B BREDRIEEEXHRBNSE

31 March 2019: EFELERR

2019
2019 4F
HK$'000
T

Assets classified as held for sale DEABEGFENEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) ME - BB R&E (HEE17) 27
Intangible asset (Note 20) & E (FiEE20) 10,907
Goodwill (Note 21) 2 (fFEE21) 6,608
Trade receivables H 5 ERFUR 3,244
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE ~ Re RE M EIIE 93
Cash and bank balances B MB1TEe 8
Total assets classified as held for sale DEAFBIEGTENEELE 20,887

Liabilities classified as held for sale DEABESENEE
Trade payables B 5 ENFRIA 658
Accruals and other payables ST B A I B fth T RRIE 4,799
Due to the Group (Note) e A6 B 5RIE (P EE) 3,650
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 34) EEFRTEE & (M5 34) 2,727
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEARIESFENRERS 11,834
Net assets classified as held for sale DR GFENEEFE 9,053

Note: Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the independent third
party purchaser of the China Forest Food Group, the balance will be settled
within one year from the completion date of the disposal.

Non-recurring fair value measurements:

In accordance with HKFRS 5, disposal group held for sale were
written down to their fair value less cost of disposal with reference
to the consideration price of sale and purchase agreement under
the fair value hierarchy level 2.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the disposal group
contributed a net cash outflow used in operating activities with
an amounting of approximately HK$1,676,000 to the Group.
Cumulative amount of approximately HK$27,000 relating to the
disposal group classified as held for sale has been recognised in
other comprehensive expenses and included in equity.

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR

M BREAEREFRGARAERNBIE=
HEHZREMmE  BHREREEFRTK
AHIEA —FREE -

AR ATEE
RIEEBI SRS ERBSR B
0 EEE MRS AT B
RA WBSEATHEBAERET
HE GBI -

HE2019F3A3NHLIFE HEERE
AEAEEEECLEHMARS RN F
B4 1,676,0008 70 - BOMEARIEFE
HESERENRETSEEL 27,0007 T
ERAEM DR MR A AERS ©
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13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020

13. EEHE
HZE2020F3HA31BLEE

Salaries  Retirement

Directors’ and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
HER BRI
E20e Hit @ HE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors YTES

Mr. Fong Chun Man FEXEE - 755 18 773

Ms. Lo Pui Yee BiELt - 755 18 773

Mr. Chan Chi Fai BEELAE - 885 18 903

Mr. Li Hok Yin (Note (i)) ZEBE () = 107 4 1M1

Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EECELE 120 = = 120

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap BB %E 120 - - 120

Mr. Wang Anyuan FTRTAE 120 - - 120
360 2,502 58 2,920

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE201953A31BLFE

Salaries Retirement

Directors' and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
EEvikn Hip g7 REESA @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEL TR

Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. Fong Chun Man HEEE - 600 18 618

Ms. Lo Pui Yee ShExt - 600 18 618

Mr. Chan Chi Fai BEBEE - 805 18 823

Mr. Li Hok Yin (Note (i) FEERE W) - 93 - 93

Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert ErCEHs 120 - - 120

Mr. Kwong Yuk Lap BB 120 - - 120

Mr. Wang Anyuan FTRTAE 120 - - 120
360 2,098 54 2,512
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13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive Directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their
service in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration
received and receivable from the Group by these Directors in
their capacity as employees to the Group and/or in their capacity
as Directors of the Company during the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019. No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Note:

(i) Mr. Li Hok Yin was appointed as executive Directors of the Company on 21
June 2018 and resigned on 21 February 2020.

14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals included three (2019: three)
executive Directors of the Company for the years ended 31
March 2020, details of whose emoluments are set out above in
Note 13. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining two (2019: two) highest paid employees who are

13. EEHFM

FIRATESHFMEIZEREFREE
RRRRAEBEEHA B IR -

ENFIRNEEZEESNEZE20204F
F2019F3A3MAILEFEEALREER
BES R/ FIEARRREZGHEW
MERASEBENHE - IESEENEE
2020 F 22019 F 3 A31 B IEFEHREK
BB RE T H B -

BiIRE

(i) TEBERAN2018F6 821 BHEZTAARR
RIBITEE WM 202042 A 21 BELHE -

14. BEFME SREEANSEHMH

HE2020F3A3MHILFE A4 &ES
FHALTBERRG =ZH2019F : =
BIPTES - BEFINFIEEN XXM
T3 B TMA(019F : MEB) &Zm b
BEE GEARAESHEBITHAE)

neither a director or chief executive of the Company are as KB aasEm S
follows:

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Salaries and other benefits e MEMET] 1,082 999
Retirement benefit schemes contribution R {R1EFzH 2L TR 35 33
1,117 1,032

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

HHEMBRATHEANFEERSH

emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: BEE ASUN T
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N 4
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2% 1,000,000 7T 2 2
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14.

15.

16.

178

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The number of the senior management (excluding directors)
whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

14.

BEFMRSREEANSHMN

(%)

HEMBRUATHEANSREREAER

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 % 7T

(TBEEESE) AEWT -
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AEX
1 1

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest
paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

15.

16.

REZE2020F K 2019F3 8318 IFFE
AEEBESTNERFHNTESHER
hEE=HEE  {EANMAIR AR
SEEMNERXEABBEE - BIEE
EREZE2020F M 2019F3 31 HIEF
EREXREHEEAEH -

Bﬁ/%\

HE2020F3A831BItFE  EFT T
ERREMRE (20194 « TEIT) ©
BRER
BERERCARIEREER

RRABHEE ANEETRERNREERF
TR TBURRTE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to owners of KRa)ER A LG
the Company 4,664 804
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 16. BREF 9
Continuing and discontinued operations (Continued) BFESERCRIEREEK (BE)
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares RGHE

Weighted average number of ordinary STEEIRERZTIR T HAR

shares for the purpose of calculation hniEFEgE

basic earnings per share 800,000 800,000
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the years ended HZE2020F K 2019F3A31BIEFER
31 March 2020 and 2019 is based on profit attributable to owners BRERBFTIERNNGEE AFE(L
of the Company and the weighted average number of shares. i M) R B D ) pniE I BET E -
The weighted average number of ordinary shares is based on 3 T DA 19 D E R E = 2020 F 3
800,000,000 (2019: 800,000,000) shares in issue during the year A 318 It % E #9800,000,000 (2019 4F :
ended 31 March 2020. 800,000,000) I 2 1T A ETHE -
Diluted earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per BREZ2020F KX 201963 A31 BHIEF
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary share in EMEFESEE SRR  HERiE
existence during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. SBRANBEENZREARZF -
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 16. BRER (%)

180

Continuing and discontinued operations (Continued)
Continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company are
based on the following data:

FERERCRIEREXK(E)
FRREER

ARBERANBERFERLEXEBNER
EANESRN AT BIRTE -

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic and FAAGT E G M E AR K 5% & A
diluted earnings per share (profit for MEF (R AREE AR
the year from continuing operations FEREEBNFREN)
attributable to owners of the Company) 4,664 5,336

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used herein are
same as those detailed above for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations respectively.

Discontinued operation

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
discontinued operation attributable to owners of the Company
are based on the following data:

OB ERBEEERDRIERERE
MEREARBETATIME @ LEKA
B B A N4 T SR E AT R E AR
A o

ERIEEERK

RRABREAABEEREKEXBNE
PR EAR R EEE R IR A T BIEAE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss BE
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted ~ F AR E &M E A K S E 18
loss per share (loss for the year from RIE R (AR ARER AL
discontinued operations attributable to BRI EEBHFENER)
owners of the Company) - 4,532)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used herein are
same as those detailed above for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations respectively.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BMERKRE

Leasehold Motor Office  Construction
improvement  Oil barge vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
RENFEE SomE M RE PARE ERIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAT TAL TAT
Cost A
At 1 April 2018 HR2018F4A18 662 8,500 11,431 33 - 20,626
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1) =UNS )

(Note 40) - - - 39 - 39
Transferred to assets of disposal ~—~ BENHAREEELE

group classified as held for sale SEAE (WE12)

(Note 12) - - - (40) - (40)
Exchange alignment 5% - - - 1 _ 1
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R 20193 F31H

R2019%4A1H 662 8,500 11,431 33 - 20,626
Additions NE - - 515 37 12,535 13,087
Disposals HeE - - 217 - - 217
Exchange alignment EHRAR - - - ] (321) (322)
At 31 March 2020 12020F3A31H 662 8,500 9,775 69 12214 31,220

Accumulated depreciation: RihE:

At 1 April 2018 01854418 131 283 7,815 12 - 8,241
Charge for the year ERTH 198 850 1,367 2 - 2437
Transferred to assets of disposal ~—~ BENHABEEELE

group classified as held for sale SEAE(ME12)

(Note 12) - - - (13) - (13)
Exchange alignment [EH A% - - - 1 _ 1
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 FA2019E3 A 31 H

R2019F4A1H 329 1133 9,182 2 - 10,666

Charge for the year ERTH 198 850 1,164 19 - 2231
Disposals HE - - 217 - - 217
At 31 March 2020 120205 3H31H 527 1,983 8,175 41 - 10,726

Carrying amount: BRAE

At 31 March 2020 #202063A31H 135 6,517 1,600 28 12,214 20,494
At 31 March 2019 R2019E3 4316 333 7,367 2,249 11 - 9,960
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18.

19.

182

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. FREEE

Office premise

FEENEL Y 3
HK$'000
FAT
Cost RS
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16 as at M2019F4 A1 BIEABAMERE
1 April 2019 HERIE 1650 1EH AR 1,469
Additions NE -
At 31 March 2020 R 2020% 3 A31H 1,469
Accumulated depreciation Ritine
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16 as at R2019F 4 A1 BEBBBYHHRE
1 April 2019 ERIF16FRIREFE —
Charge for the year FRZH (1,224)
At 31 March 2020 7K 20203 A31H (1,224)
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 March 2020 202063 A31H 245

The Group does not have the opinion to purchase the right-of-
use assets for a nominal amount at the end of the lease terms.

PREPAYMENT FOR RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the balance represents the prepayment
paid by the Group in connection with right-of-use assets in the
PRC.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. B EE

HK$'000
FET
Cost SRS
At 1 April 2018 MR2018F 4 A1H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W g BT A A 11,722
Transferred to assets of disposal group BESBRAREGFELESEEE
classified as held for sale (Note 12) (fF5E12) (11,722)
At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 5201993 A31H - 201944 818 X
2020F 3 A 31 H -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: 2 EBHETRE
At 1 April 2018 201854 A1 H -
Charge for the year FAXH 815
Transferred to assets of disposal group HBESEARESFELHERREE
classified as held for sale (Note 12) (Kt3E12) (815)

At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

M2019F3A31H 20194818 K%
20203 A 31 H

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2020

FREIE

A 20203 A31H

At 31 March 2019

R2019F3 A31H

Note:

The intangible assets represent the distribution right for sale and distribution
of health food in the PRC.

The useful life of distribution right's used in calculation of amortisation is 9.58
years. The amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group reclassified the intangible
assets as assets of disposal group classified as held for sale upon entered
the sale and purchase agreement with vendor on 28 March 2019. Detail
information reference to Note 12.

The valuation of the distribution right is based on the Greenfield method
and uses cash flow projections based on financial estimates covering a five-
years period, the expected sales deriving from the distribution right in sale
and distribution of health food. The pre-tax discount rate used is 32.86% per
annum. The cash flows beyond the five-years period are extrapolated using
a steady 3% growth rate per annum. Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken into account the business plan
going forward. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors
determine that no impairment loss was recognised in respect of intangible
assets.

GEE

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR

BREERRTEHEERD HERRAND
S

e E B E AR D SRR {E A H1A9.58
F o BT ARE219F3A31BLF
ERABERTWITHAY - REIE20194F
3AMBIEFE  AEERK20194F3A28H
BBV EERZERSEVEEENHA
AREGELERENEE - AHFERZ
BMIEE12

2 R 5 18 T E R Greenfield /)& 0% 3
ERAFHNVBEERAHERDHEE
RmOHEMEENATHETENRER
SEAMSE - IEANBRFAMRERS
F32.86% c AFHLEMNRESRETHERE
FERERGFI%HE - EREEER LR
HRIGEE - MO RARNERTE - NE
Z2019F3ANBIEFE EEHRAMERMR
EREEERRERS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 AILFE

21. GOODWILLS

21. BE

HK$'000
THT

Cost %S
At 1 April 2018
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40)
Transferred to assets of disposal group

R20185F4 A1 H
U B B B A &) (B 5 40) 9,968
HESBARIEGELESEEE

classified as held for sale (Note 12) (fF5E12) (9,968)
At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 7201943 H31H 201944 HA1H
20203 A31H -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: EF @B RREE
At 1 April 2018 201854 A1 H -
Impairment for the year (Note 12) FRRE(HE12) 3,360
Transferred to assets of disposal group EESARBEFELEEEREE
classified as held for sale (Note 12) (FFzE12) (3,360)

At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

MR2019E3A31H ~2019F4 A1 H

K& 202053 A31H -

ARMEE -

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2020

R202053A31H =

At 31 March 2019

MR2019FE3 A31H

Note:

Particular of impairment testing on goodwill is disclosed below:
Gooduwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the following
cash-generating units:

— Sale and distribution of health food

Impairment testing on goodwill

The recoverable amount of the above cash generating unit was determined on the
basis of value in use calculations. The recoverable amount is based on certain
assumptions. All value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on the
financial budgets approved by the management covering a 5-year period. The
pre-tax discount rate used is 31.48% per annum. Cash flows beyond 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate per annum. The Directors believe
that any reasonably possible further change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

The key assumption used in the value in use calculations are as
follows:

GEE

BERENANFERENT :
AEEHRENABNDREATREELFM

—HERDHRER®A

AR RERA

ER e EAF MA@ e R R B EES
HmMETE - ATRESBIREE TREMEE © 7
BRAEEFEERAREEEEMENTFHTR
BEFENRSREFRRELT - FTEMNRTAIR
RERBTH31.48% AFHARNRERE L
BB EXEGFI%HEE - EFREURESHERE
MTIBHRBOERNAREEE - FEYETEER
REEBELA DS -

EREEFEMANEIZE/RRAOT

Budgeted market share Average market share in the period immediately before the budget period. The
values assigned to the assumption reflect past experience.

BETS 0 R REZBEMAPRNFETISNE - HREBRRNEERBBELR
Budgeted gross margin Average gross margins achieved in the period immediately before the budget
period which reflect past experience.

JEETEM=E RERFREHATSREROFHENE » REBELR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22. EBAVEFABENEREE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
Investment in a listed equity in Bk D LRI E (M)
Malaysia (note i) 750 1,495
Key management personnel life FTEEREABASRE
insurance policy (note ii) oA, 4,678 -
5,428 1,495
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REWMBEBIN R :
Current assets MENE E 750 1,495
Non-current assets ERBNE E 4,678 -
5,428 1,495

Notes:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value
which are determined by reference to quoted market bid prices.

The Group entered into a life insurance policies with an insurance company
to insure against the death and permanent disability of executive Director.
Under the policy, the beneficiary and policy holder are the Company, Great
Wall (International) Oil Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the total insured sum is approximately US$2,600,000 (equivalent to
HK$20,280,000). The contracts will be terminated on the occurrence of the
earliest of the death of the key management personnel insured or other
terms pursuant to the contracts. The Company paid the total insurance
premium with an aggregate amount of approximately US$639,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,987,000) at the inception of the policy.
The initial premium charge was approximately US$38,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$309,000). The Group may request a surrender of the
contracts at any time and receive cash back based on the cash value at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid at
inception plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus insurance
premium charged (the “Cash Value”). A guaranteed interest rate of 4.25%
per annum applied to the contracts for the first year, followed by the
discretionary portion with a minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2% per
annum for the following years until termination. The fair value is based on
redemption value quoted by the insurance company.

Details of fair value estimation for the year ended 31 March 2020
and 2019 are set out in Note 5(c).

GER

(i)

BAVESARENEBEETIRATFET
B WS EMIGRERET -

AEERRBAFRE—NDAZRE %L
TEEFWEKABERR - IREBERE - 2
HARREFBHEABRARRARRAZEAMN
BRARRM(BEE) AABRAR - BIRRE
#%2,600,0003 7T (#8%17420,280,0004 7T ) ©
AHBRZROETEEEEAB SHEFNIR
BENEMGETREM FULLE(UHEE
HEEBE) - RRFIERRERBIFEBEEEL
RE A $£49639,800 % 7T (FE 7 474,987,000
BIT) AR E B B4 538,000k T (HE
7 %9309,0004 7T ) o A 5 [# A BE B 2 KGR
R UREBEERAARSEENDRE - &
PAEERERANSINORBAENEH
BHRHREFBFIBRE ((BREEHE])
BE GHEFHNREFMNERBIBE  H
BEFNARERBFEFR2EMEEHS -
HERIEAL - ATFEZRRRB AR FHRERD
BEE -

BR2020F 2019 FE3A31HIEFEA
A ET B E M FES(C) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 AILFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BAFEFAHMEBEKEN
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE cREE
INCOME
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Unlisted equity ¥ LR
— Investment in an unlisted equity — R—EFLHEZNERE = -
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HEHRENSWTR -
— Non-current assets —FRBEE - -
Notes: BeE
The investment in an unlisted equity is measured at fair value. It is the remaining R—EFEETEZNRERATEFE - HABH
equity portion of the disposed subsidiaries. The fair value is based on the market EMBARNFISRERLD - DT ERTISETH -
approach. HK$905,000 was charged to other comprehensive income relating to fair B ZE202053 A31 HIEFE » 9050008 LE AR
value loss on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income BERATEFAEMEZARENESREEATER
during the year ended 31 March 2020. EMEM P EWE -
Details of fair value estimation for the year ended 31 March 2020 BEE=Z2020F 2 2019F 3 A31 B IEF
and 2019 are set out in Note 5(c). ERFEMGHFBEHNHTTS(0) -
24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Finished goods — Diesel oil BIRK o — S 109 277
Finished goods — Steels products Fpkm — BEMEM
in transit 11,410 -
11,519 277
Inventories represent the merchandise of diesel and steel GFEERRERNER MHERTE

products at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. B 5 BUWRIE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFET FAET
Trade receivables 2 B ERFA 78,367 72,635
Less: Allowance for impairment B B S EBGRIERE S ERE
losses on trade receivables (1,771) (1,249)
76,596 71,386
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BERERDAT

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting periods:

AT R/RBERARZERTAHLS
K8 5 e WA BRIk D AT -

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Within 30 days 30HA 20,298 18,911
31 to 60 days 312 60H 10,825 14,581
61 to 90 days 61%£90H 13,023 13,951
91 to 120 days 91%&120H 25,009 6,501
121 to 150 days 1202150 H 9,190 18,691
Over 150 days 3@ 150 B 22 -
78,367 72,635

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group's trade MR2020FE3 831 H st AREEHE FE

receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$34,221,000 (2019:
HK$23,005,000) which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, approximately HK$9,212,000
(2019: HK$12,151,000) has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default due to a number of
independent debtors that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

WRIB & # A E TS B AR (B 49 34,221,000
7 70 (2019 4F © 23,005,000 7T ) E R )
SHHEB S REBLEHP B
9,212,000/ 7T (20194 : 12,151,000 7T)
EEHOBAERMIAHERAELD R
AAEETEBUGEHSACAEEIHER
FEE - REBRATLR  BEERAH
REEEEZTEERNE  MZSEH
DR A 2EIRE - WEARZSE
BR1E BB -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 AILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

The Group's average credit term with its customers is, in
general, 3 days to 150 days. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Details on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note 5(b).

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Net losses allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables of approximately HK$522,000 and HK$1,249,000
have been recognised to the consolidated profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 respectively.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note
5(b).

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

188

25. ESEWFRIE ()

(a)

(b)

AR 20 AT ()

AEBEEEFPHFHEER R
RIBE0R - AEERNE K
AR ] Y R AR TR e S BRARAE )
BHEREEREEETHEN -
AEEEEBERFH BN HIEESD) °

8 5 BWRIRREE
B 5 RUGRRTREEBRNER

B 5 F B #4)522,0008 T &
1,249,000 T E D R EREZEHE
20204 20193 A31H Lt FE
MirABEm R HEMmEE R

#H £2020F K2019F3 318 1k
FE - BZRUBERE GO
BRI EE S(b) ©

26. ENRIE RERAEMERRK

RECEIVABLES 15
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TFE T FHT
Deposits e 1,073 1,057
Prepayments TR IR 5,926 206

Other receivables*, net of allowance H bR IR (IKRIEEEE

for ECL E R ) 4,314 3,650
11,313 4913
Less: non-current portion of deposits W RS IERNERE S (160) -
Current portion ENERER 5 11,153 4,913

The other receivables include the amount due from a disposal group
classified as held for sale was approximately HK$3,650,000 and loss
allowance for expected credit losses on other receivables of approximately
HK$716,000 and HK$Nil have been recognised to the consolidated profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
2019 respectively.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are set
out in Note 5(b).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK 27. BB {TER BE KRBT

28.

BALANCES P
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Pledged bank deposits BIIRIRITER 12,025 4,000
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTTHES 6,661 6,034
18,686 10,034

At 31 March 2020, the cash and bank balances of the Group
included currencies denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately HK$1,242,000 (31 March 2019: Nil).

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at bank and cash on hand
held by the Group. Bank balances earn interests at floating rate
based on daily bank deposit rates and is placed with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The pledged bank deposits were pledged as collateral for bank
facilities and carried interest ranging from 0.31% to 1.60% (2019:
0.31%) per annum.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

MR2020FE3 A31H  ZREBEMIRS IR
THHBEFEUIAREFENEEY
1,242,000/ 7T (201943 A31 0 « M) -

RekfTERERRTERRAEE
FENFTERE - |RITERIZEHRT
TR EIAF B RBRERF L - FRE
HAYY 22 AR ek B E RAFROERTT o

BEMIRIT IR IR AR TR E A
& WA FFEN F0.31% = 1.60%

(20194 : 0.31%) 5t 8. °

28. EFENREREMNERE

2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Trade payables 2 S IER IR 7,729 5,796
Bills payable JER R = 1,141
7,729 6,937
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28.

29.

190

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The average credit term from suppliers is up to 3 to 90 days. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

28. EZEMNRERENREE®

HEBETHOFHEERRZ HIEN
He ATRRBEHREERAHZS
HE 5 e FUR ME N RIEMRER DT |

period:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THET
Within 30 days 308X 7,727 5,796
31 to 60 days 312 60H = -
67 to 90 days 61290H 2 -
7,729 5,796

Bills payable mature within 90 days.

Notes:
The bills payable are secured by:

(a) unlimited personal guarantee provided by an executive Director of the
Company Mr. Fong; and

(b) pledge of the property which owned by an executive Director of the
Company Mr. Fong.

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEPOSITS RECEIVED

790 B NEBIEARO e R -
Wi
BRI TSI SRR

(@)  ARFMITERTEERHENEREAER
&

(b)  ARBERITEERSEEEANMELRR

29. BstER - HttENRERE
Wizs

2020 2019

2020 2019

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Accruals Rt & 4,215 2,508
Other payables (Note) HAth B A RRIE (B 5E) 2,879 -
Deposits received [EEerEn 85 80
7,179 2,588

Note: The amount included bonds interest payable of approximately HK$694,000
(2019: Nil).

F8 ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

iRt SEEEEMNESNEK694,0007 7T (2019
£



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #(Z 20203 A31 HILFE

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. AW AT
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T
Contract liabilities BREE
Provision of selling steels products At EmIEE
— Billings in advance of performance — KRB RTTEIIE 4,509 -
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HEHERENEBGESEENTEN—R
liabilities recognised are as follows: RFIER T
Provision of selling steels products RUHBEREE
When the Company receives a deposit before the sales contract RANREHEES WRBATIWEIZ &R
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of B EENRRRELEANEE BES
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant contract. TIEES LR E AL -
Movements in contract liabilities BREERE
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHBT
As at 1 April R4aH18 = -
Decrease in contract liabilities as FAERU B
a result of recognising revenue arasERd
during the year (110,807) -
Increase in contract liabilities as FARRNIA3AE
a result of receiving deposits ) AR BN o IR &
during the year in respect of MmEHA LB FEEM
the goods not until progress
as at 31 March 115,435 -
Exchange alignment FE W, A EK (119) -
As at 31 March M3H31H 4,509 -
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31. BANK BORROWINGS

31.

Secured bank borrowings (Notes (i) and (i) 23R R1TE R (B EE () X (i)

Carrying amount repayable:

FEBEMAREE

On demand or within one year and shown & ZKsiZ R EN & EFTRE

under current liabilities

R—F P

BITER
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
16,090 3,000
16,090 3,000

Notes:

(i) As at 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings of the Group was secured by the
corporate guarantee, fixed deposits and life insurance policy of the Group.
As at 31 March 2019, the bank borrowings of the Group was secured by the

corporate guarantee and fixed deposits of the Group.

(ii) The bank borrowings of the Group with financial institutions amounted to
approximately HK$16,090,000 with the bank facilities 1 and 2 which
respectively carried at variable interest rate of the range from 3.57% to 4.88%
and 2.76% to 3.97% per annum for the year ended 31 March 2020. The bank
borrowings of the Group with financial institutions amounted to
approximately HK$3,000,000, carried at interest rate 4.88% per annum, for

the year ended 31 March 2019.

Wi

(i) R2020F 3 A31H « REBMAIRITIE AR
EEMARER  THEARASRBEE
R A2019F3A31 8 » AEBMMRITHEK
LAZR 52 B/ A AHEAR e BATF SRR AR ©

(i) HZE2020F3A31HIEFE » AEEHED R
15 89 88 17 15 X 495 16,090,000 7T + H A
SBITRNE N R 2D B SAE B F FI K357% =
4.88% K 2.76%ZE3.97% B o ELE 201943
ANBIEEE AEERSHEENIRITE
FK#/53,000,00078 7T © 1ZFFIELAL88%AE ©

32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HE&AE

2020
2020 F
HK$'000
FHET

Minimum lease payments due: FIEAREEENK
Within one year —FR 253
Less: Future finance charges W RRMEER (1)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 252

Present value of lease liabilities: HEBERE:

Within one year —FR 252

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1

April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which

were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

Comparative information as at 31 March 2019 has not been
restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS

16 are set out in Note 2.
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33. BONDS PAYABLE

33.

The bonds payable are interest bearing at the fixed coupon rate

of 10% per annum, payable annually in arrear and repayable as
P pay Y

follow:

EEZ

ENEFZEEREFFEI10% S
ARNEBFFEN  LRATHAEER -

2020
2020
HK$'000
FHE T
Within one year —F A -
More than one year but not later than two years BR—FELRME 8,800
8,800

Analysed as reporting purpose as: MEWMENSWTR
Current liabilities nRBBE -
Non-current liabilities JEREBAE 8,800
8,800

The effective interest rate of the corporate bonds for the year
ended 31 March 2020 is 10% (31 March 2019: Nil) per annum.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, transactions costs totalling of

approximately HK$42,000 had been incurred for the issuance of

the corporate bonds.

HE202063A3MBHIEFE ArlEH

B E B R R &10% (20193 83180 ¢
7)o

HE2020F3A831BIEFE > BT A A
BHFEEER HKAE ££4942,00075 7T °
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34. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES 34. EEBIR(EE) AfE
The followings are the major deferred tax balances recognised AT BREZE 2020F 2 201943 A31H
and movements thereon during the years ended 31 March 2020 I FERAN T ERTERIBAR N EE
and 2019: &) :

Expected  Accelerated

credit loss tax Intangible
allowance  depreciation assets Total
HHEE
BREE MEVERE EBYEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THT THT
At 1 April 2018 201854 F1H - 1,183 - 1,183
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries BYENB D RMES - - 2931 2931
Transferred to assets of disposal group BENBARESELE
classified as held for sale (Note 12) EEEE (ME12) - - (2,727) 2,727)
Credited to consolidated statement of profit ~ FRzF AGFABEE
or loss during the year (Notes 11 and 12) (FaE11212) (206) (259) (204) (669)
As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R2019F3531H
K2019F4F18 (206) 924 - 718
Credited to consolidated statement of profit R AFABRER
or loss during the year (Note 11) (FzE11) (85) (226) - (311
At 31 March 2020 R202063A31H (291) 698 - 407
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax R¥EHR - NEEHB A E15,433,000
losses of HK$15,433,000 (2019: HK$9,856,000) available for offset 7T (2019 4F : 9,856,000 7T ) #) K B
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised MIEBBHEHERIOREN - EEH
in respect of HK$Nil (2019: HK$Nil) of such losses. No deferred FEET AT (20194 : T L) BREL
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining TIE & B o H AR DK TE B R 2R 4 F 2R
HK$15,098,000 (2019: HK$9,856,000) due to the unpredictability TR i A BE T #2 15,098,000 7% 7T (2019
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are % : 9,856,000 7T ) ERIELHIAEE -
losses of HK$335,000 (2019: HK$Nil) that will expire in 2024. Other K T 5 5% TE /B 18 B2 45 85 38 335,000 % 7T
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. (20194 : TETT) * #4170 2024 F & i

HipEE ] ER e -

35. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 35. ENSHARE

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 April 2018 K20184%4 A1 A -
Recognised in acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40) AU E A B #ER (Y7 40) 3,598
As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R20193 A31 8 &2019F4 518 3,598
Fair value change NEEE (3,598)
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H =
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35.

36.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES

(Continued)

Pursuant to the completion of the Acquisition, as a part of
consideration, the Group liable to settle the contingent
consideration by cash with aggregate amount of RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,940,000) to the vendors upon
subject to the fulfilment of profit guarantee provided by the
vendor for the years ending 30 June 2020 under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement. The audited consolidated net profit after
tax of the China Forest Food Group shall be not less than
RMB5,000,000 for the period from the Completion Date to 30
June 2019 and shall be not less than RMB10,000,000 for the
period from the Completion Date to 30 June 2020. The fair value
of the contingent consideration payables were in aggregate
amount approximately of HK$3,598,000 at the date of the
Acquisition.

The fair values as at the date of the acquisition and 31 March
2019 were determined with reference to the valuations as at
those dates performed by an independent valuers. The valuations
was calculated based on the expected cash flow approach which
determined the expected value probability weighted discount
cash flow at 31.48%. For the year ended 31 March 2020, fair value
change on contingent consideration payables was HK$3,598,000.

35. BERSARE )

BEBEWBEEENTK  AEBEQES
LAIR € S & £ AR 7,000,000 7T (48
B #97,940,0007% 7T ) s AR (E - A
ERREN—Hn  HEREEEWS
HFEHBITREE2020F6A308 IHF
EAIREAEFIRER - HAIEE - F
BEHMEREBMNEEZEARTBBLD
BT HEI E 201956 A 30 H (HHA
TS LM AREES5,000,0007T - BB
B H BB 2= 2020 6 A 30 H IEHIE T 15
DI AR 10,000,0007T © FAUEE B ER -
ENIARENRFELEED A
3,598,000 7T °

P UEE B #1 ) 20193 A 31 HHNAFE
TiE2EMmBIEEMPZS AEFTE
THMHBEMETE - HEDEREHRS
MEIR(E 12 31.48% 7 & Al gL pNAE B 3R
ReREMNEHEB)FTESH - HE
20203 A3 BIEFE  ENARE
B A EES) A 3,598,000/8 7T °

SHARE CAPITAL 36. R&
Number of
Share HK$'000
R EE FHER
Authorised: SETE
As at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, R2018%4A18
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 2019%3A318 -
201944 81H
%2020F3H31H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
As at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, R2018F4 818 -
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 2019538318 -
201954818 R
20203 A31A 800,000,000 8,000
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. RATIMBARIR K
THE COMPANY

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FAET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHBRRZIEE 39 - 13,612
Current asset REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and FERHIE - mEe Rk
other receivables H b e I GRIR 3,052 3,812
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFTAERD
through profit or loss TREE 22 750 1,495
Amount due from subsidiaries NG B 611 1,035
Cash and bank balances R NIRITA R 33,323 19,477
37,736 25,819
Current liabilities FREBEE
Accruals EatE A 1,847 864
1,847 864
Net current assets REBEEZFE 35,889 24,955
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERAEAE 35,889 38,567
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Contingent consideration JERT S ARE
payables 35 - 3,598
Bonds payable B ES 33 8,800 -
8,800 3,598
Net assets EEZFHE 27,089 34,969
Capital and reserves BEXR B
Share capital R& AR 36 8,000 8,000
Reserves e 38 19,089 26,969
Total equity RS 27,089 34,969
Approved and authorised for issued by the board of Directors on B R2020%F 6 B26 BEE EE It E IR
26 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by: BT W TV EERKREE
Fong Chun Man Lo Pui Yee
FEX ZmE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITESF
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38. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 38. KA FEI#EE

Share (Accumulated

premium losses) Total

IR E (R5HE5E) At

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT FHIT FHIT

At 1 April 2018 M20185F4 H1H 49,221 (19,237) 29,984
Loss and total comprehensive FABEELEEEERRE

loss for the year - (3,015) (3,015)

At 31 March 2019 and MR2019F3 A318B &

1 April 2019 2019F 4 1H 49,221 (22,252) 26,969
Loss and total comprehensive FHEBEREHEEIEERE

loss for the year - (7,880) (7,880)

At 31 March 2020 A 20203 A31H 49,221 (30,132) 19,089

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had distributable reserves of MR2020F3 A31H » ARAEIFAIHD IR

approximately HK$19,089,000 (2019: HK$26,969,000) calculated in B O 419,089,000 TT(20194 :

accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, 26,969,000/87T) « NIEBENESHER

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. AE (1961 FE IFED 4R S RIERT)
THE o
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39.

198

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39. X EMBAE

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Issued and paid up

RI|ERR - ARAINOEEH B RF
BT

Percentage of equity

Place and Principle capital or interest and voting
Date of country of registered power attributable to
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation capital the company Principle activities
TEEXH BRTRARE ARAEMGEESER
) NGRS EMRIEHR AR  HEER BEAGEMER REEEDL TREHR
Direct Indirect
E& i
% %
Ruigin Investments Limited ~ The BV, Hong Kong US$10.00 100 - Investment holding
5 January 2016
HHREBERAF EBRTHS 0 10.00%7T RAZR
2016F1H5H
Great Wall (International) Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$1.00 - 100  Sale and transportation of
QOil Limited 22 December 2005 diesel oil and related
products
R (BR) RRERAR  BE N 1.008 7T EhREBEREE
20055 12 5228 LEH
IFEHESH HRHLERAR  The PRC, The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 55  Manufacturing, sale and
10 July 2019 distribution of
steel products
R HE AK#30,000,0007T MEMBE  HERDH

201947108

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which, in the

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets

of the Group. To give detail of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary of

NAFE

39. FEME LT (&)
REEAKEREZNEZEWRE

TRETEAERFER RN A EE

the Group that have material non-controlling interests: IE2EMBATFEE -
Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests and
and principal voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AR L HR FERERHEN
(i) Pk IRERBY FERRERRERLY PERFHERBHNER EHE U
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 20194 2020 01945 2020 0194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THARL TER THRL TER
TEHESNMRERAE PR 45% - 158 - 14,762 -

T

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BREERFERERNARESMEB R
B BEMBERN T X - TIIME%
B2 SEEARRRYHATNESE

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

ITHEES HIBREBERAR FET FHET

Current assets MENVE E 19,948 -

Non-current assets EMBNVEE 20,480 -

Current liabilities mENBE (8,005) -

Equity attributable to owners RATHER NELER

of the Company 17,661 -
Non-controlling interest of TP E S R BR A AH

IR ESH R FR A A FEIE AR M 14,762 -
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. TEMB AT 4
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have BREERFERERNIEZENE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) NEIER(E)
2020 2019
HZE2020%F HZE20194F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
SIEFES DR ERAR FERT FAT
Revenue = 111,219 -
Cost of sales HENAR (110,100) -
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,469) -
Loss for the period HINEsE (350) -
Loss attribute to owners of the Company AR %A AEGEIE (192) -
Loss attribute to non-controlling interests  FE#5 i #E 2s FE (h 16 18 (158) -
Other comprehensive loss attributable AKX RIEEAE A JE(R
to owners of the Company Hi2HEEE (565) -
Other comprehensive loss attributable  JFE{E IS RE RS FEAS
to non-controlling interests Hih 2 HEEE (462) -
Total comprehensive loss for the period  HiAE {th 2 HE E518 (1,027) -
Total comprehensive loss attributable mEAEGEEEEESR
to owners (757) -
Total comprehensive loss attributable IR R E IR R
to non-controlling interests (620) -
Total comprehensive loss for the period  HiAZ M EIE42 % (1,377) -
Net cash flows used in operating activities 42 /EZENFTAKIR R E FEE (11,333) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & EBFTAMIRE K2 F5EE (21,028) -
Net cash flows generated from REESMEENRESREFE
financing activities 34,689 -
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 2,328 -
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 17 May 2018 and 11 July 2018, the Company entered into the
1st sale and purchase agreement (the “1st Acquisition
Agreement”) and 2nd sale and purchase agreement (the “2nd
Acquisition Agreement”) with the vendor and agreed to acquire
the entire equity interest in China Forest Food Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “"China Forest Food Group”), with total cash
consideration of RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,612,000). The cash consideration with the amounting of
approximately RMB8,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,014,000) was paid on the completion date and the
remaining cash consideration with amounting of RMB3,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,970,000) shall be payable
upon the fulfillment of profit guarantee for the years ending 30
June 2019 and 30 June 2020 respectively. The principal activity of
the China Forest Food Group is provision of sale and distribution
of health food. Pursuant to the 1st Acquisition Agreement and
2nd Acquisition Agreement, the vendor guaranteed a net profit
after taxation of not less than RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,753,000) for the period from 17 May 2018 to
30 June 2019 and for period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020
shall be not less than RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,505,000). The acquisition was completed
on 30 July 2018.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at
the date acquisition:

40. WEEHE A F

R20184F 58178 &2018%F7 11 8
ARRBEFDRFINE—HDEE R
(IB—EEHZ) RE-_MNEEHH
(B EERZ]  TREKEPEHE
FMERRERARLEEWB AR ([
BEHRMRRER]) 230 E  BReR
& A& A R #12,000,0007C (18 & 7 4
13,612,000/ L) - HEREHARK
8,500,000 7T ( #8 & 7 £710,014,000 7 7T, )
ERERAHYA  MHTESREA
R % 3,500,000 7T (48 & 7 %7 3,970,0007%8
TL)BRER D RIEE2019F 6 A30H
} 2020 6 A30H It FE &R FIREBR
SfF e FEHFMEREBRNTEEKE
RERFERMBEEDHE - REFE—HIK
BiHEEE_OWERZ BEHREB
201845 417 B#£ £ 2019F6 A30H 1+
HENBRBRELEFNTERARE
5,000,000 7T (#8& 72 495,753,000/8 7T )
mBE2019%F7 A1H #£ £202096 A30
HIEBREMBRBREEFI I TERARE
10,000,000 7T ( #8 & 7 #911,505,000 %
7T)  WHEEIED R 201847 A30B =K °

PR ) S0 MO P A B A R R B 0
AT

HK$'000
FHET

Net assets acquired: PR B E B RME ¢
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) M - BB KA (HE17) 39
Intangible asset (Note 20) |\ A E (M3 20) 11,722
Inventories FE 1
Trade and bills receivables B o RENFIERENRE 2,596
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE -« e RHEAEW TR 97
Cash and cash equivalents ReLRBEEEY 1,710
Trade and bills payables B S RNFIERENEE (1,243)
Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables — FEETE M -« 78U kI8 & E A FE FUOE (4,698)
Amount due to Group R AREEFRIA (3,650)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 34) IEERIR A& (Fi3E34) (2,930)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAFEAENAENEEFEERE 3,644
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition (note 21) W SR E A (M3 21) 9,968
13,612
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. WEEHI B 2 R (40
Total consideration satisfied by: BRUT A EFHERE :
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration HWERE 10,014
Add: Contingent consideration payables (Note 35) /il = E{F =k SRR AB (Fff 5 35) 3,598
Total consideration BRE 13,612
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WEB R D B AV IR &7 H R R
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid or payable in cash B ENESRE (10,014)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balance acquired & : EWEMIR € MRS EMEH 1,710
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition WHEEIBMESNR M FHE (8,304)
Included in the loss for the year of approximately HK$4,532,000 EZE2019F3A31HIEFE » 494,532,000
and revenue for the year of approximately HK$44,808,000 7 7T [2 944,808,000 7% T E 99 B ET AR
attributable to the Group during the year end 31 March 2019. SEEEFAEBRERFAKE -

202
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41. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

41. 7&IE

Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
2020 2019
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect MERTREEBFIYERE
of the construction in progress, RERE ISR T e &
contracted for but not provided BERNEARFES
in the consolidated financial
statements 15,883 -
Capital injection payable to a N —EEATEE
subsidiary 12,014 -
Acquisition of right-of-use assets  {# & EWHE F1E 28,570 -

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

(b) RKEHERE
AEEEAERBEA

REHREBHR - AEEFA A
HEEME 2 R RFEBENFKE

RTFIFERA

2019
2019 4
HK$'000
FAET

— Within one year ——FR

— In the second to fifth years, inclusive —FEFERFT (BEERWMT)

1,496
312

1,808

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of office premises. Leases are negotiated
at terms which range from 1 to 3 years. The Group does not
have an option to purchase the leased premises at the
expiry of the lease period.

REHENTBAREERE TEM
ZEMNEE HEUNF—E=F
MM REITRER - ARE Y ENHE
EMERMRBEREDENESE

o
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42.

43.

204

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(2019: HK$1,500) and they can choose to make additional
contributions. Employers; monthly contributions are calculated at
5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (2019: HK$1,500) (the “mandatory contributions”).
Employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or
total incapacity.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represent contributions
paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the Group
are disclosed in Note 10.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the share option schemes of the Company are set
out in the section headed "Share Option Scheme” in the Report
of the Board of Directors of this report.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 March 2017
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became
effective on the date of the Company’s listing (12 April 2018) and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
ten years from that date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of our Group and to
promote the success of the business of our Group.
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REBBE BB M RESFTENEAI R L
—HEHATHRZEHEQAESRIKET
FEI((EEeRE )  BIERESE
B BEERFESZ AFERS%  &E
1t 3% %8 &1,5007% 7T (20194 : 1,500/%8
TL) - REINEEELEIMEK - BE
2 G REFR TR EBREE AFS%ETE -
Ee M5 41,5008 7T (2019 £ © 1,500
BT ([E ) - /8 BT 65 BRRIN -
kTR R T IERE N - A 28U
BUE X AEAET 258 $IH 5K o

RiraBm MEMEE KA RIOFA S
ST EIE L RRIRE R &I fHRIE AR
SEZFEBRART AN ERESE M
K ERTHI R o

REE DA RN R TR K
10

BRESE

ARRABWBRAETENMEHN A RE
ExeWmE [BhEE] —&-

KARBER2017F3A23HFRH—I18
R AT &I ([BBARAERT 2 ) - BARMERT
EMARF ETHE(2018F48128)
SRk BRIESBERBEHEET - TRIB
BZHEBE T+ FR—E4EK -

BROE B 5 EWE RREREFHA
B MAKEREE(ZBERR) &
FWmAA B P ARE
HrEm K2 2P AXRBHERE
HEEREHBNRB AR AEE X
BRI -
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be,
including, where required under the GEM Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of our Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 80,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of share issuable under share
options granted to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding options)
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant or further grant of share options in
excess of this limit must be separately approved by shareholders
in general meeting. Any grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the Option). In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the total number of share issues and to be issued,
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to such
person under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company'’s
share at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such
further grant of options is required to be approved by
shareholders of the Company at a general meeting of the
Company, with voting to be taken by way of poll.

43. BREFTE (@)

Exg (RBERME (M GEM LR AIE
K)o RBEBILFRTES) I TER
BE2EEHAEEBERLIERAELH
AIREF M B RUR E R (B R ERN
SEEER -

H TR B B AT 8RR TR
MFTERBREM A TRITHRMEE £
PR 4%80,000,000 A% -+ 1 B B8 A% 4 £ 4% B
HEARFHRBEHARFDETRMDD
10% » PME(I 1218 A AR BB R i 5t &1 A
BRAERSEERINBEE (D
1718 e iR ARTT 0 VBB AR PSR O AT 7
BITRMHEE LR A/ARRE BTN
M1% ° R sE — R BB ERE
BREEERRNRRAS EEFH
e MARAES THRABRTER
REIRE A EATBE R AR D BB 3
THBREAREIIFNTES (TBHE
A& BBREAR AN TABILIERNIT
B - US> MEBRRIBIIF
HTESFIRFSANEMBEARD
EREREMERERER L A (B
#ZH) IEERI12EABEA - Bl A L
RATERIERE B & R AR R I HE
s B AT 81 R K TR 25
B (BRETE - SEHEMERITE
MR MR A A T BT RS T 31T
MR B A HBB AR RS HITRN
M0.1% R (IR N B R T B HIK
mEFE) REBRBSASET - BIFEN
BRHOBRERERRERNRFBRAS
LR ARRILAE -
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43.

44.

206

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer for the grant of share option must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.
The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offeror the grant of an option is HK$1. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to provision of early termination thereof. There is
no requirement of a minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. The subscription price of a
Share in respect of any particular option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i)
the closing price of the Shares as started in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the ate of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing prices of the
Shares as stared in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant of the option.

At the end of the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no option
has been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had also entered into the following
material related party transaction during the reporting period:

(a) Transaction with related parties

43.

44,

RS E (@)

BROBERENENRMELERZENR
HI (8% B) Bt H AR - B
S YNV S ESUES lER oy S G e
FMARBZM1ET - ARAATRES
AT BEEE A0 AR - RS AR IR AR M ST
BV IERTT B A HE - METTE IS
BE G AR TF  XXBREAR
IR ATARIR © I A R IR A A i
TEMNSDHEHNHAE - REBK
RERT B th ) (AT E BB AR 0 B0 3R
BEREFeIRETLANZEE
BABERTIREE « ()RERER
HAB(BEREER)RERMEH®R
EBRABOBADEHE : ()R EXBER
BERL AR AEE XA ERIMEA
WERMABHOBRD FHEHE - KR
BRERL AHNRNEE -

B E2020F K 2019F3A31AIEFE -
ARA BN AR IR B A A B L RB AR -

EXBBRIXS

BERA B I RRE T PR B E SN -
IR AR - AR RETSI A T E AR
LV ETE

(a) HEREBLTHNXZ

2020 2019
2020 20194
Name of the related parties Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2B REME THET FABT
Yuk Shing Engineering Co., Limited (Note (i)) Sales of products - 3,154
FERIEBRAR (M) EmiHE
Kit Ho Engineering Limited (Note (ii)) Sales of products - 7
g TIRAR AR (i) EmiHE
Kit Ho Earth Works Limited (Note (iii) Sales of products 3,373 1,961
s+ g EER AR (FIEE i) EmiHE
Wisdri (Xinyu) Cold Processing Engineering  Purchase of products
Co., Ltd (Note (iv)) 12,291 -
IR T GTR) RELFTM BRI AR AR i
(B3E )
New Steel (Shanghai) Trade Co., Ltd (Note (v)) Purchase of products 5,632 -

il (L8 BEHERAR (HEW) P o BRI
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44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

44 EXBEBERS (B

Balances with related parties (b) EHEEETS HIAEER
2020 2019
2020 % 2019 4F
Name of the related parties Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5B REME THET FET
Yuk Shing Engineering Co., Limited (Note () Trade receivables - 1,244
FRIEBRAR (M) B RWRIA
Kit Ho Earth Works Limited (Note (iii)) Trade receivables 768 427
kL BB AR AR (MR (i) 5 AR
Wisdri (Xinyu) Cold Processing Engineering ~ Prepayment
Co., Ltd (Note (iv)) 58 -
FUREA IR REAFMERMBERAT  FARFIA
(B EE (iv))
Notes: 5T
0] A close family member of an executive Director of the Company has 0] HE2019F3A831BILFE - ARA]

beneficial interest in Yuk Shing Engineering Co., Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

(if) A close family member of an executive Director of the Company are
the director of Kit Ho Engineering Limited.

(i) A close family member of an executive Director of the Company has
beneficial interests in Kit Ho Earth Works Limited.

—BRHTEEN —RIIHNEK TR
BRARHEA T o

(i)  ARB—BRTERN—RLRHGR
ETIRERAAMES -

(i)  ARB—BWITERHN—RMRNG
EENEERRAREAEMER

(iv) A non-controlling shareholders of non-wholly owned subsidiary has v)  FREMBARN—EIFRBERIR
beneficial interest in Wisdri (Xinyu) Cold Processing Engineering Co., ‘:F')Iﬁ@ﬁ(*ﬁ%”@ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁ]ﬁl‘ﬁ
Ltd. NEEEERER °

v) A non-controlling shareholders of subsidiary has beneficial interest in (v) — 2K B A E) IR AR AR TS (£

New Steel (Shanghai) Trade Co., Ltd.

For the transactions constitute connected transactions
under the GEM Listing Rules, please refer to the sections
"Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions” under the “"Report of the Board of Directors”.

Personal guaranteed provided by key management
personnel

The bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2020
were secured by personal guarantee of an executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Fong, life insurance and a
property owned by Mr. Fong.

Compensation of key management personnel

The Directors of the Company are identified as key
management members of the Group and the compensation
of Directors and key management personnel during the
reporting period is set out in Notes 13 and 14.

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR

BESGERATHEAE S

AR AR TR AR 2 5
MR5 BLMIERRRE] B
TIMERSREARERS ] —
i -

(c) AFEEEASRHENEAR
=

N E B R2020F3 831 HHERTT
BRBAARBNTESHAEHES
EAERE A AR ASR
S M EAVER o

FTEEEABNHE
ARREFREBRER/AEENTE

BERAE NBREHEEELTE
B ABBEHPMEI3N14-

(d)
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45.

46.

208

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged to
secure the borrowings of the Group as follow:

45.

EERH

ERATEREEEEERR  UEAX
SR (S FRIER

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBGEREE
profit or loss
— Key management personnel life —FEEBEABASRE
insurance policy 4,678 -
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITER 12,025 4,000
16,703 4,000
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. HEKWB AT
China Forest Food Limited PERMRRERAAE

As referred to Note 12, on 28 March 2019, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the 90% equity
interest in China Forest Food Limited (the “Disposal”) whose
subsidiaries included the De-consolidated Subsidiaries (as
defined below), which were principally engaged in sale and
distribution of health food in the PRC, at a consideration of
approximately HK$8,148,000. The Disposal was completed on 9
April 2019.

Details of the aggregate net assets of China Forest Food Limited
and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as at the completion date of the
Disposal are set out below:

2B 12 R2019F3A28H » A&
BTV EEHRAHERERNR R

RAF (ZARIEZRPBINLEHERD
HEERSM  HWB AR BEEUERE
ABRKMIB AR (FE R T30)) 8 90% ik i
(THEEE])  KR{EAEH%S8,148,000%
TT o HEEHER2019F4 9B =K -

REEEEZK B ARNEEGS M
BRENWPERMRDE R A F R EHK
BRREEAFEABNFBHIILT

HK$'000
T

Consideration transferred: EHEERE:
Cash consideration HWEeRE 8,148
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46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. HENB 2R @)
China Forest Food Limited (Continued) FEAMBRERAE ()
Analysis of assets and liabilities derecognised from the HEEETRE - GAEESABER
consolidated financial statements of the Group upon completion R AN BER A BN -
of the Disposal:
HK$'000
FAT
Total assets classified as held for sale ’\*Eﬁhf”lf HTEEEMRE 20,887
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEAREFERERE (11,834)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFR 9,053
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HE KB A Rl s
Consideration RE 8,148
Net assets disposed of EHEEESE (9,053)
Non-controlling interests e AR 25 905
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of KEMBA LG EE G E AR
the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from BEFERTELZHHER
equity to profit or loss upon loss of control of EMOBEEER
the subsidiary (27)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A R EE @7
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEERERANTFE:
Cash consideration RERE 8,148
Less: cash and bank balances classified as assets B DBRARFEFEEENRE R
held for sales HRITHE )
Less: other receivables (Note 26) R E A EUERIE (FFE 26) (3,650)
Net cash inflow WEMAHE 4,491
Fetb (ER)EEBARAR / —Z_TFFR 209
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

47. FEBFEARENYHE

Obligations
under
Bank Bank finance Lease Bonds
overdraft borrowings leases liabilites  payables Total
ROEY BOEE REHERE HEEE EMEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THEL THL T THEL
At 1 April 2018 RN2018E4A 18 - - 188 - - 188
Changes from financing cash flows: RERERLREME
Proceed from bank borrowings BETEEIE - 3,000 - - - 3,000
Repayment of obligation under BERERSAE
finance leases - - (188) - - (188)
Interest paid BHFIE (1) (134) 2 - - (137)
Total changes in financing cash flows BEELRERHEE (1 2,866 (190) - - 2,675
Other changes: EtnEe
Interest expenses R 1 134 2 - - 137
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R09FEIANAR
019F4A1H - 3,000 - - - 3,000
Impact on initial application of BRERBEANBOEER
HKFRS 16 (note) F 16k E (1) - - - 1,469 - 1,469
At1 April 2019 H019E4 18 - 3000 - 1469 - 4489
Changes from financing cash flows: RERERSRENS
Proceed from bank borrowings BITETAEE - 48990 - - - 48990
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFIER - (35,900) = = - (35,900)
Proceed from issuing bonds BIREREIA - - - - 8,800 8,800
Payment of lease liabilities HEBENT = = = (1,217) = (1,217)
Interest paid BIFIE (8) (632) - (29) - (669)
Total changes in financing cash flows RERSREREEE (8) 12,458 - (1,246) 8,800 20,004
Other changes: Hin g
Interest expenses FSREY 8 632 - 29 694 1,363
Accrued interest JEzHFI 2 = = = = (694) (694)
At 31 March 2020 R2020%538318 - 16,090 - 252 8,800 25,142

Mzt : AEED EARALETRIEERAEEN
TR EEAE 165 - WH2019F4 818 H
BENEHRUERE L AIRBE S ST £
FURNPEACEHENTHEFHEES
& BmRME2

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17. See Note 2.
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48. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 23 March 2020, the Company and the Vendor entered
into the SPA, pursuant to which the Vendor have
conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has
conditionally agreed to purchase 51% equity interest in the
Meijia Shell (Global) Lubricant Technology Limited at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$16,380,000.
The consideration was satisfied by the allotment and
issuance of 78,000,000 Consideration Shares under general
mandate at the Issue Price of HK$0.21 by the Company to
the Vendor. The acquisition was completed on 21 April
2020. Upon the completion, 78,000,000 new Shares,
representing approximately 8.9% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 21 April 2020 (as enlarged by the
issue of the consideration shares), have been duly allotted
and issued as fully paid to the Vendors at the issue price of
HK$0.21 each under the general mandate. Accordingly,
immediately after the completion, there are 878,000,000
Shares in issue. Please refer to the announcements
respectively of the Company dated 23 March 2020, 31
March 2020 and 21 April 2020 respectively for details.

The coronavirus disease 2019 outbreak since early 2020 has
brought additional uncertainties in the global
macroeconomic situation. The Group's financial
performance may have impact. The degree of impact could
not be reasonably estimated at this stage. The Group will
closely monitor the development of the epidemic and
assess its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

49. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

50.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019. Under
the transition methods, comparative information is not restated.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issued by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2020.

48. HEHREE

(a)

M2020E3A238 AAFEE
FEIMEER#H Bt EHEH
BHEREZEHE  mARFEE GG
EEBEEEHGRR) BEREA
RAAISI%RE BRE AN
16,380,000/ 7T ° RIBUUAR AR
B REEEETEI2NETME
77 g 2 K2 %597 78,000,000 A% AL B P&
MEEE - WHESEIEN 2020 4 A 21
A5 » REIE @ IRIE— AR
REMIREITE021BITME T ER
e kFHFTAERINBHARE 2
78,000,000 f% T ft 10 (AEE R AR A
A R2020F4 A 21 B &L BT (B
B EREBEEITIRALS.9%)
Ei BETHEZ A2aHA
878,000,000 & B, 87 TR% 10 - BEF
BB AR B E 5 542020
£3H23H *202063A31H K
2020F4 A 21 HEYAE ©

B 2020 4F 7] LA 2 1% 8% 2019 F 7Y
BRRSHER BB 25K
FEHTHEEMN - AEBMPEERIE
AJREAMEEFE - HIEBRMZE
IR EEEESAIBMET c AEME
BEYVERGIEMNERE - Wi HEH
HAEBY BN KRG EEENT
2 o

49. kBB F
AEBDRN2019F4A1BHERERS
BB S HREER E 165 - NBE B A
T thEERITEES) o

50.

RETIRGREMBE®RER

GAMBHRRDN2020F6A26BHE
EOIERIRET)E -

Fek (IR EMARAT / —T-_TFFR
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Financial Summary

MBME

RESULT E 4+
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B Z 20204 3 H 31 HIEF/Z

Continuing operations REREEK
Revenue = 146,920 180,616 164,491 229,718 439,338
Cost of sales HEMAK (125964)  (155773)  (139,670)  (207,995) ~ (415,521)
Gross profit EH 20,956 24,843 24,821 21,723 23,817
Profit and total comprehensive EANCIE 2PN AP =

income for the year attributable to BELEEBRN

the owners of the Company from FERF R

continuing operations HENFRE 12,303 7,282 1,241 5,336 4,506
Discontinued operation ERIEREEL
Loss for the year from REERIHEEEBN

discontinued operation FAEE - - - (4,532) =
Profit for the year FR&EF 12,303 7,282 1,241 804 4,506
Attributable to TH AL

Owners of the Company Vi/NCIEZZ=DN 12,303 7,282 1,241 804 4,664

Non-controlling interest FEiE i e - - - - (158)

12,303 7,282 1,241 804 4,506

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Non-current asset ETBEEE 2,189 1,073 12,385 10,166 34,103
Current assets REAE 33,933 49,825 88,234 108,992 118,704
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 1,552 188 1,183 4,522 9,498
Current liabilities REEE 12,540 21,398 11,662 26,085 36,775
Net current assets EEEERE 21,393 28,427 76,572 82,907 81,929
Net assets BEFE 22,030 29,312 87,774 88,551 106,534

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated Ll ZTHEN LB ZLRE P BHREKH—
ﬁ_j\ o

financial statements.

The financial information for the years ended 31 March 2016 were #H Z2016F3 AN BIEFE 2 BERES
extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 29 March 2017. ARARBHA20177F3H 298 2 BIREE -
Such summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group BRI Z VEFHIHIO AL FRITEBRZSE
had been in existence throughout these financial years and is B EE DT - WAL E M B WMERMFEIAM
presented on the basis as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated EHHERZT -

financial statements.
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